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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM (“GEM”) OF
THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG
LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to
which a higher investment risk may be attached than
other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally
small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to
high market volatility than securities traded on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance
is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or
completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in
reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this
report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of
Winson Holdings Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility,
includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM (the “GEM
Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with
regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their
knowledge and belief the information contained in this
report is accurate and complete in all material respects and
not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters
the omission of which would make any statement herein or
this report misleading.
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Financial Highlights
MBERE

Year ended 31 March

BZ3A31BLEE
Percentage
2019 2018 Change
2019F 20184F BOLLEE
(HK$ million) (HK$ million)
(AEER) (BE8AT)
Key Financial Figures TERKET
Revenue g 537.3 508.1 5.8%
Gross Profit E A 79.6 76.9 3.5%
Profit for the year F R A 20.8 21.8 -4.6%
Total Assets BEE 191.7 186.1 3.0%
Total Equity W 8RR 124.2 113.4 9.5%
Key Financial Ratios TEHHEER
Gross profit margin EFE 14.8% 15.1%
Net profit margin 4 | = 3.9% 4.3%
Return on equity A& AN B g = 16.8% 19.2%
Return on total assets WA ERFRE 10.9% 11.7%
Dividend payout ratio KB L& 48.2% 46.0%
Interest coverage ratio IPSKEERES 55.0 times{Z 27.0 timesfZ
Current ratio TmEhE R 2.8 times{% 2.4 timesf&
Quick ratio B & 2.8 timesf{Z 2.4 timesfZ
Gearing ratio BRBELE 0.1 times{Z 0.2 timesf&
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Chairperson’s Statement

ERHE

On behalf of the board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of Winson
Holdings Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present
the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2019 (“FY2019”).

During the FY2019, the Group remained focused on developing its
operations in the provision of environmental hygiene and related services
and airline catering support services and successfully obtained 18 new
contracts with total estimated contract sum of approximately HK$84.2
million and 68 renewed contracts with total estimated contract sum of
approximately HK$422.5 million respectively for environmental hygiene
and related services. The tender success rate and contract renewal rate
for environmental hygiene and related services for the FY2019 was
approximately 34.4% and 85% respectively; the high contract renewal
rate is a testimonial of customer’s satisfaction with the Group’s quality of
service, which is the underlying factor and principle leading to the solid
reputation of the “Winson” brand over the years. The Group adopts a
proactive approach to expand its market coverage in terms of both
geographic location and types of premises and new contracts secured
during the FY2019 comprised servicing the headquarter building and
substantial majority of administration buildings of a mass transit operator,
club buildings of a world-renowned sports club, branches of a local bank,
the Hong Kong flagship store of a worldwide luxury goods manufacturer
and retailer, and a number of upscale commercial buildings in the central
business district.

The Group’s airline catering support services business, which is a
relatively new line of business, achieved a stable performance and did not
enter into any new contracts for the FY2019. Meanwhile, the Group will
consolidate its experience from both operational improvement and
business development perspectives in order to culture future growth and
potential synergised development in this business segment. Please refer
to the Management Discussion and Analysis section of this annual report
for a more detailed presentation of the business and financial
performance of Group for the FY2019.
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Looking forward, it is expected that the demand for environmental
hygiene and related services will continue to rise, driven by growth in the
property market in general, urban renewal activities and public facilities
projects, amongst others. However, recent enactment of upward revision
to the minimum wage ordinance effective from May 2019 will cast
pressure on the Group’s profitability, with labour cost taking up a
predominant proportion of the Group’s cost of services. While the Group
will remain vigilant of potential business opportunities, we shall proceed
cautiously with project pricing and pay close attention to the Group’s
exposure to potential labour shortage and wage hikes, with an aim to
achieve revenue growth while safeguarding profitability, service quality
and without sacrificing interests of our employees, which is the Group’s
most valuable asset.

| would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to the
Group’s management team and staff members for their continuous
dedication and contribution to the Group over the years. | would also
offer my heartfelt thanks to the Group’s customers for their support and
trust. Last but not least, | convey my appreciation for the support of the
Company’s shareholders.

Ng Sing Mui
Chairperson

Hong Kong, 28 May 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The Group’s business performance for the FY2019 remained largely
stable from the year ended 31 March 2018 (“FY2018”). Revenue from
environmental hygiene and related services recorded an year-on-year
increase of approximately 6.6% whereas revenue from airline catering
support services declined slightly by approximately 4.5%; the Group’s
total revenue for the FY2019 was approximately HK$537.3 million,
representing a growth of approximately 5.8% or approximately HK$29.2
million from the FY2018.

Environmental Hygiene and Related Services

During the FY2019, the Group entered into 18 new contracts and 68
renewal of contracts for environmental hygiene and related services with
estimated total value of approximately HK$84.2 million and approximately
HK$422.5 million respectively. The Group’s tender success rate and
contracts renewal rate for the FY2019 in the environmental hygiene and
related services segment was approximately 34.4% and approximately
85% respectively. The high contracts renewal rate signifies customers’
satisfaction with the Group’s service quality and pricing. Amongst the
new contracts secured are for servicing the headquarter building and
substantial majority of administration buildings of a mass transit operator,
club buildings of a world-renowned sports club, branches of a local bank,
the Hong Kong flagship store of a worldwide luxury goods manufacturer
and retailer, and a number of upscale commercial buildings in the central
business district. Other than general hygiene service, the Group paid
particular attention to projects that involve premium services, such as
those requiring technical expertise and/or specialised tools and
equipment which the Group possessed with an aim to enhance not only
its revenue and competitiveness, but also the Group’s reputation and
market penetration. As a result of aforesaid factors, the Group’s
estimated value of contracts in hand as at 31 March 2019 surpassed the
HK$1 bilion mark to approximately HK$1,036.7 million, of which
approximately HK$630.7 million was ongoing contracts.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Airline Catering Support Services

During the FY2019, no new contracts had been entered into, and the
estimated total value of contract renewal was approximately HK$25.9
million. In addition, the Group observed that certain simple and repetitive
procedures involved in airline catering support services are gradually
being replaced by mechanised process, which contributed to the slight
decline in the Group’s revenue in this business segment in the FY2019.
Furthermore, the specific location at which the airline catering services
operates rendered difficulty on staff recruitment and pressure on labour
cost and profit margin. The Group will pay extra attention in cost control
and its pricing policy when negotiating for contracts in the airline catering
support services in order to counteract the effects of mechanisation and
labour constraint.

The estimated value of airline catering support contracts in hand as at 31
March 2019 decreased to approximately HK$27.5 milion, as the
remaining contracts in hand are due for renewal in the year ending 31
March 2020.

More detailed analysis on the financial performance of the Group is set
out in the financial review below.

Prospects

Looking forward, it is expected that the demand for environmental
hygiene and related services will continue to rise, driven by growth in the
property market in general, urban renewal activities and public facilities
projects, amongst others. Albeit rising demand in the market for services
that the Group provides, industry players including the Group continue to
be challenged by labour shortage and rising cost of wages. In particular,
an upward adjustment to the minimum wage in Hong Kong by
approximately 8.7% has taken effect from May 2019, which no doubt will
exert further pressure on the Group’s profit margin. The Group will uphold
stringent control over project tendering and expenditures and continually
strive for the best interest of all stakeholders, including our customers,
business partners, employees and shareholders.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DN

Revenue

For the FY2019, total revenue was approximately HK$537.3 million,
representing an increase of approximately 5.8% (2018: approximately
HK$508.1 million). Such increase in revenue was attributable to the
securing of several relatively sizeable contracts i.e. the headquarter
building and substantial majority of administration buildings of a mass
transit operator, club buildings of a world-renowned sports club,
branches as of a local bank, the Hong Kong flagship store of a worldwide
luxury goods manufacturer and retailer, and a number of upscale
commercial buildings in the central business district.

The following is an analysis of Group’s revenue by segments:

Environmental hygiene and REBER

related services 18 8 AR 7% 498,771
Airline catering support services  fifi 25 & 88 57 12 R 7§ 38,553
Total 4a =t 537,324

For the FY2019, revenue from environmental hygiene and related services
and airline catering support services amounted to approximately
HK$498.8 million (FY2018: approximately HK$467.7 million), and
approximately HK$38.6 million (FY2018: approximately HK$40.4 million)
respectively, representing approximately 92.8% and 7.2% of total
revenue for the FY2019 (FY2018: approximately 92.1% and 7.9% of total
revenue). Revenue from environmental hygiene and related services and
airline catering support services increased by approximately 6.6% and
decreased by approximately 4.5% respectively as compared with the
FY2018.

Cost of Services

For the FY2019 and FY2018, the cost of services of the Group amounted
to approximately HK$457.8 million and HK$431.2 milion respectively,
representing approximately 85.2% and 84.9% of the Group’s revenue for
the corresponding years. The cost of services of the Group comprised
direct wages, consumables and sub-contracting fees. The slight increase
in cost of services in proportion to the Group’s revenue was mainly due
to rise of operation labour cost.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The gross profit slightly increased from approximately HK$76.9 million for
the FY2018 to approximately HK$79.6 million for the FY2019. The gross
profit margin decreased from approximately 15.1% for the FY2018 to
approximately 14.8% for the FY2019. The following table sets forth
breakdown of gross profit and gross profit margin by segments.

Year ended 31 March 2019
BZ2019F3A31 AL FE EERIGEESYRIN=NE-35

BEESN®E DN
ERREFE

EF BE2018 FHH76.9F B 78 T & i 18
IE20198 F 796 EH & B L - EFI=
B 201881 4 H) £915.1% 38 > = 201981 &£ 19
#4914.8% - THREI LD HBE DK EFRTE
FIER B4

Year ended 31 March 2018

Gross Profit Gross Profit

Gross Profit Margin Gross Profit Margin
T Tk £F EH %
HK$’000 % HK$’000 %
THET FET

Environmental hygiene and RIBEHER
related services 18 8 Al 7% 75,515 15.1 72,576 185
Airline catering support services it 2= & 8k 3 1 IR 7% 4,040 10.5 4,314 10.7
Total et 79,555 14.8 76,890 15.1

The gross profit of environmental hygiene and related services slightly
increased by approximately 4.0% from approximately HK$72.6 million for
the FY2018 to approximately HK$75.5 million for the FY2019. But the
gross profit margin decreased from approximately 15.5% for the FY2018
to 15.1% for the FY2019. The decrease in gross profit margin of
environmental hygiene and related services was mainly because of the
rise in labour cost which adversely affected the overall gross profit.

The gross profit of airline catering support services decreased by
approximately 6.4% from approximately HK$4.3 million for the FY2018 to
approximately HK$4.0 million for the FY2019. The mechanization of
certain job types by customer reduced the required manpower to
perform the job and reduce their demand on manpower supply. The
decrease in gross profit margin of airline catering support services for the
FY2019 was mainly due to the increase in labour cost.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DN

General Operating Expenses

The general operating expenses increased by approximately HK$4.1
million, representing an increase of approximately 8.3% to approximately
HK$53.8 million for the FY2019 as compared with that for the FY2018
which was mainly attributable to increase in motor vehicles expenses
because of purchasing additional motor vehicles, depreciation and rental
expenses. The legal and professional fee increased by approximately
70% from approximately HK$2.0 million for FY2018 to approximately
HK$3.4 million for FY2019. A substantial portion of the increment in the
legal and professional fee is non-recurrent in nature.

Finance Costs

The Group’s finance costs decreased by 53.4% from approximately
HK$1.0 million for the FY2018 to approximately HK$0.5 million for the
FY2019, as the Group required less external financing for working capital
requirement.

Profit and Total Comprehensive Income for the
Year Attributable to Owners of the Company

The Group’s profit and total comprehensive income attributable to
owners of the Company for each of the FY2019 and FY2018 were
approximately HK$20.8 milion and HK$21.8 million respectively,
representing of approximately 3.9% and 4.3% of the respective year’s
total revenue.

Capital Expenditure

During the FY2019, the Group’s capital expenditure which mainly
included additions in motor vehicles and equipment amounted to
approximately HK$3.9 million (FY2018: HK$5.2 million). These capital
expenditures were mainly financed by fund generated from operating
activities.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s total current assets and current
liabilities were approximately HK$155.7 milion (31 March 2018:
HK$148.6 million) and HK$55.8 million (31 March 2018: HK$62.4 million)
respectively, while the current ratio was approximately 2.8 times (31
March 2018: approximately 2.4 times).
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As at 31 March 2019, the Group had total assets of approximately
HK$191.7 million which were financed by total liabilities and total equity
of approximately HK$67.5 million and HK$124.2 million respectively. As
at 31 March 2019, the Group had cash and bank balance of
approximately HK$33.8 million (31 March 2018: approximately HK$39.5
million).

The Group’s gearing ratio was 0.1 times as at 31 March 2019 (31 March
2018: 0.2 times), which was calculated based on the total bank
borrowings over total equity of the Group.

There was no change to the Company’s capital structure during the year
ended 31 March 2019. As at 31 March 2019, the issued share capital of
the Company was HK$6,000,000 divided into 600,000,000 shares of
HK$0.01 each (the “Shares”).

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had 2,120 (31 March 2018: 2,101)
employees. The Group enters into separate employment contracts with
each of the Group’s employees in accordance with the applicable
employment laws in Hong Kong. The remuneration package includes
basic salary, bonuses and other cash allowances or subsidies. The
Group conducts annual review on salary, bonuses and promotions based
on the performance of each employee. The total staff costs and related
expenses (including directors’ remuneration) for the year ended 31 March
2019 were approximately HK$309.4 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 3.2% or approximately HK$10.4 million as compared with
approximately HK$319.8 million for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Apart from basic remuneration, share options have been granted under
the pre-IPO share option scheme to recognise the contribution to the
Group by an executive Director and certain employees of the members of
the Group. Further share options may be granted under share option
scheme to attract and retain the best available personnel, provide
additional incentive to employees (full-time and part-time), as well as
promote the success of the business of the Group.

In order to provide quality services to customers, the Group provides on-
going training regularly to relevant staff across different departments with
topics including but not limited to information technology, environmental
protection, ISO training, safety training as well as trainings for supervisory
roles, etc. Such trainings are either provided internally or by external
parties.
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EEENWR DN

Since the Group generated most of the revenue and incurred most of the
costs in Hong Kong dollars for the year ended 31 March 2019, there was
no significant exposure to foreign exchange fluctuation and the Group did
not maintain any hedging policy against foreign exchange risk. The
management will consider hedging significant currency exposure should
the need arise.

The contingent liabilities of the Group is the exposure of the fine from the
actual use of the leasehold land and buildings (the “Property”) does not
comply with the permitted use and breach of section 25(1) of the
Buildings Ordinance (Chapter 123 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for failure
to notify the Buildings Department regarding the change of land use.

Although the Group changed the use of the Property from head office to
warehouse in December 2017, and the use of the Property as warehouse
is complied with the permitted use, the prosecution under the provisions
of the Buildings Ordinance may be commenced within 12 months of the
same being discovered by or coming to the notice of the Buildings
Department. As such, as at 31 March 2018 and 2019, pursuant to
section 40(2) of the Buildings Ordinance, the maximum exposure of the
fine as a result of the aforesaid matter is approximately HK$0.1 million.

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings of carrying value of
approximately HK$28.2 million as at 31 March 2019 (31 March 2018:
approximately HK$29.2 million), were pledged to secure the Group’s
bank loans.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had no capital commitments (31 March
2018: approximately HK$0.4 million in respect of contracted but not
provided for purchase of property, plant and equipment).
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OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had total commitments under operating
leases in respect of non-cancellable operating leases for land and
buildings to make payment in the future years of approximately HK$0.8
million which represent rental payable by the Group for office and staff
quarters (31 March 2018: approximately HK$2.0 million).

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

The Group did not have any material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the year ended 31
March 2019.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

The Group did not have any significant investment held as at 31 March
2019.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 28 February
2017 (the “Prospectus”), the Group did not have other plans for material
investments or capital assets as of 31 March 2019.
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EEENWR DN

Based on the offer price of HK$0.42 per share, the net proceeds from
the share offer, after deducting listing related expenses, amounted to
approximately HK$40.1 million. The Group has utilised and will continue
to utilise such net proceeds from the share offer for the purposes set out
in the section headed “Statement of Business Objectives and Use of
Proceeds” in the Prospectus. As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s planned
application and actual utilisation of the net proceeds is set out below:

Percentage
of total net
proceeds
4B T8 FRIE
Use of proceeds FIBRERE FHEESL
For strengthening the Group’s hno& 7N & B /Y A] A B 45.0%
available financial resources to BERUNEREZS
finance cash flow mismatch #IE TR @ mis e
under the tender contracts RMHES
For increasing the market A N0E AN E B R 7.0%
penetration by strengthen the HERSMHLA
promotion of the Group’s brand =
For strengthening the established & [E £ & 78 18 35 R 75 19.0%
position in the environmental XA A AL
services industry in Hong Kong
For enhancing the information neg &R B R A A 19.0%
technology system to 12 = AL R K R
strengthen operational efficiency 758 %=
and service qualities
For the use as general working ~ FR{EAREE — R &8 10.0%

capital of the Group B®
Total et

As at 31 March 2019, the unutilised net proceeds of approximately
HK$6.2 million have been placed as interest bearing deposits with a
licensed bank in Hong Kong and are intended to be applied in a manner
consistent with the proposed allocations in the Prospectus.

BRBREBERERM0ETHE  RHEE
P8R E S5 (KB EMHEBRAXE) LN
BAOAEBEB T - AEECHARBEE
EHRBRERANIESEBEZMRt XS RER
®RI—MFHE B RHABEBRGEENS
FRIEEEE - R2019F3A31 8 A&EBEAE
HBEFEZFEARLERSABRET
U

Unutilised net

Actual usage proceeds as

Planned up to 31 at 31 March
applications March 2019 2019
B Z2019F A20194F

3A31A 2 3A31HZ

EREA KEA

e A ® TR FEREFHE
HK$ in million  HK$ in million ~ HK$ in million
BEAT ER=-N BEETT
18.1 18.1 —

2.8 1.8 1.0

7.6 7.6 —

7.6 2.4 5.2

4.0 4.0 —

40.1 33.9 6.2
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An analysis comparing the business objectives of the Group as setoutin ~ R ERAEH A EB O XK S IZE A E
the Prospectus with the Group’s actual business progress for FY2019 is 201981 FF K B B 2 7% B 1 t 8 5 47 £ 7]

set out below: U N
Business objective Actual business progress
XBEE EREKER

Increase the market penetration by strengthen the promotion of the Group’s brand

BREMEAEEREEERRESTEERER

—  Distribution of company brochure and marketing materials —  The new company brochure is now being used and
to target customers distributed to potential tendering parties and target
customers
— RMEREFDBEAFRESEMETHEHEEER — HBEERHMAREEM XOETEEREA
TREEERER
—  Continue to maintain online platform to provide on-ine —  Company website is under revamp, online
communication channel for major customers communication channel for clients and customers
is also under the website revamp project
— HEBEAFRELTYE RIZEFPREMBLBMRERE — QAAHEELERR - BEEREPMALBEMES
TMER A B M RIE B
—  Social media management — Advertisement placed at trade association
yearbook and annual directory
- HXRERERE - REIMSFERFEEHRMES
—  Upgrade training facilities — Al in one laptop with presentation facilities has

been acquired. Up-to-date cleaning equipment
such as wireless scrubber and wireless vacuum
cleaner has been used to demonstrate
improvement of cleaning efficiency

—  FREIRE — EREBEAAERYEN—RBABRK BEXRARK
IBRRE NEESERERERRESS U
BN R RMEMRA
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Business objective Actual business progress
XBER BEREBER

Strengthen the established position in the environmental services industry in Hong Kong

EEEERRERBEANR AL

— Acquire additional equipment such as cleaning carts and —
garbage compressor vehicle

— BEEIRE WBRERNREBEREE =

2 passenger vans have been purchased to set up
2 more mobile teams. Additional equipment
including escalator cleaner, steam carpet machine,
wireless scrubber and wireless vacuum cleaner
have been purchased to enhance cleaning
standard

CHEMBEAEUAEARES IR ZEE) KA -
SEBBRIRERREBERSE AW
e BEEGKERERRES  URABRER

e

Enhance the information technology (IT) system to strengthen operational efficiency and service qualities

MBRERANKRAGURSKRERERRBEEER

—  Enhance daily operation by procuring cloud storage server —
services

— ZBERGERRERARSREREABEEZLE =

—  Maintenance of IT systems and softwares

- HEEAMRERREM

— Addition of IT equipment at headquarters and worksites
— HERIRI(ESMAEEMB A

Designated system server, software, equipment
and cloud storage are being purchased and
upgraded in progress for respective operation
functions
FERBXRBIRBERENE T RRMAMR
BB REBRERFERT
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The Directors recognise the importance of good corporate governance in
management and internal procedures so as to achieve effective
accountability. The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in
the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (“‘CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules as its own
code of corporate governance.

Save for the deviation of code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code as
described in the paragraph headed “Chairperson and Chief Executive
Officer” below, the Board considers that, the Company has complied, to
the extent applicable and permissible, with the code provisions as set out
in the CG Code during the year ended 31 March 2019 and the Directors
will use their best endeavours to procure the Company to comply with
the CG Code and make disclosure of deviation from such code in
accordance with the GEM Listing Rules.

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings set out in
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as its code of conduct for
securities transactions by Directors. The Directors are reminded of their
obligations under the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules on a regular basis. The Company has
made specific enquiry to all Directors, and all Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the required standard of dealings set out in
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 31
March 2019.
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The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group, gives
direction and make decisions on the Group’s strategies, policies,
business plan and financial budget and monitors business and
performance. The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for day-to-day management and operation of the Group to the senior
management of the Group. In addition, to oversee particular aspects of
the Company’s affairs, the Board has established three Board
committees, namely the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the
nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”). The Board has
delegated to the Board committees responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference. Further details of the Board committees
are set out in this report.

Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises nine members,
consisting of four executive Directors, and five independent non-
executive Directors as set out below:

Executive Directors

Madam Ng Sing Mui (Chairperson)
Ms. Sze Tan Nei

Mr. Ang Ming Wah

Mr. Sze Wai Lun

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen
Mr. Chung Koon Yan

Mr. Ma Kwok Keung

Mr. Wong Yat Sum

Mr. Chan Chun Sing

During the year ended 31 March 2019 and up to the date of this annual
report, there was no change in the composition of the Board.

Each Director has relevant experience, competence and skills appropriate
to the business requirements of the Company. The biographical details of
the Directors are set out on pages 60 to 65 of this annual report.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” that Madam Ng Sing Mui is the mother of Ms. Sze Tan Nei
and Mr. Sze Wai Lun, and Ms. Sze Tan Nei is the sister of Mr. Sze Wai
Lun, the Board members do not have any financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships among themselves.
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Pursuant to Rule 5.05(1) of the GEM Listing Rules, every board of
directors of a listed issuer must include at least three independent non-
executive directors. In addition, pursuant to Rules 5.05A and 5.05(2) of
the GEM Listing Rules, every listed issuer is required to have such
number of independent non-executive directors representing at least
one-third of the board, and at least one of whom must have appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The Board consisted of five independent non-executive
Directors during the year ended 31 March 2019, with three independent
non-executive Directors possessing appropriate professional
quallifications or accounting or related financial management expertise,
and the number of independent non-executive Directors represents more
than one-half of the Board. There is a strong independent element in the
Board to provide independent judgement.

The Company has received the annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules. The Board has assessed their independence
and concluded that all independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company for an initial term of three years with
effect from 16 March 2017, being the date from which the Shares are
listed on GEM (the “Listing Date”), unless terminated by not less than
three months written notice to the other party or otherwise in accordance
with the terms of the letter of appointment. Each of such appointments is
subject to the rotation and retirement provisions in the articles of
association of the Company.

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code requires the responsibilities
between the chairperson and chief executive officer should be separated
and should not be performed by the same individual.
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Up to the date of this report, the Company has not appointed a chief
executive officer and the role and functions of chief executive officer have
been performed by all the executive Directors, including Madam Ng Sing
Mui, the chairperson of the Company (the “Chairperson”) and an
executive Director, collectively. The Board considered that this has the
advantages of allowing contributions from all executive Directors with
different expertise and will review the current situation from time to time
and shall make necessary arrangements when the Board considers
appropriate.

The Board adopted on 13 March 2017 a board diversity policy (“Board
Diversity Policy”). The Company continuously seeks to enhance the
effectiveness of its Board by maintaining the highest standards of
corporate governance and recognizing and embracing the benefits of
diversity in the boardroom. The Company sees diversity as a wide
concept and believes that a diversity of perspectives can be achieved
through consideration of a number of factors, including skills, regional
and industry experience, cultural and educational background, race, age,
gender and other qualities etc. In forming its perspectives on diversity,
the Company will also take into account factors based on its own
business model and specific needs and disclose the rationale for the
factors it uses for such purpose from time to time. The Board will give
adequate consideration to the Board Diversity Policy when it identifies
suitably qualified candidates to become members of the Board and will
review the Board Diversity Policy on a regular basis and make such
revisions as may be required to ensure its continuing effectiveness.

The Board intends to hold board meetings regularly at least four times a
year at approximately quarterly intervals. Notices of not less than 14 days
will be given for all regular board meetings to provide all Directors with an
opportunity to attend and propose matters to be discussed in the
meeting agenda.
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For other Board and Board committee meetings, reasonable notice will
generally be given. The agenda and accompanying documents are
dispatched to the Directors or Board committee members at least 3 days
before the meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time to review the
documents and be adequately prepared for the meetings.

When Directors or Board committee members are unable to attend a
meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be discussed and given an
opportunity to make their views known to the Chairperson prior to the
meeting. Minutes of the Board meetings and Board committee meetings
will be recorded in sufficient detail to include the matters considered by
the Board and the Board committee and the decisions reached, including
any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board
meeting and Board committee meeting will be sent to the Directors for
comments within a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting
is held.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Board held 7 Board meetings
and passed resolutions by way of written resolutions. The attendance
record of each Directors is set out in the table on page 28 of this annual
report.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, 1 general meeting of the
Company, being the 2018 annual general meeting held on 8 August
2018 (the “2018 AGM”), was held. The attendance record of each
Directors is set out in the table on page 28 of this annual report.

The Company established the Audit Committee on 21 February 2017
with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
Audit Committee comprises four independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chung Koon Yan, Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen, Mr. Ma
Kwok Keung and Mr. Chan Chun Sing with Mr. Chung Koon Yan being
the chairperson of the Audit Committee.
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Amongst other things, the primary duties of the Audit Committee are to
review, in draft form, the annual report and accounts, half-year report and
quarterly reports and to provide advice and comments to the Board. In
this regard, members of the Audit Committee will liaise with the Board,
the senior management and auditors. The Audit Committee will also
consider any significant or unusual items that are, or may need to be,
reflected in such reports and accounts and give consideration to any
matters that have been raised by the accounting staff, compliance officer
or auditors. Members of the Audit Committee are also responsible for
reviewing the Group’s financial reporting process, internal control and risk
management systems.

The corporate governance functions are also performed by the Audit
Committee. The corporate governance functions are to develop and
review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance to
comply with the CG Code and make recommendations to the Board, to
review and monitor the training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, to develop, review and monitor the
code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors, and to review the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Audit Committee held 6 meetings during the year ended 31 March
2019. The attendance record of each members of the Audit Committee
at the above meetings is set out in the table on page 28 of this annual
report. In addition, the Audit Committee also dealt with matter by way of
circulation of written resolutions during the year.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Audit Committee had
performed the following work:

—  reviewed and made recommmendation to the Board the engagement
of BDO Limited in respect of the audit of financial statements of the
Group and perform agree-upon procedures for the interim and
quarterly results announcements;

—  discussed with the Company’s auditor the audit planning;
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—  reviewed the quarterly, interim and annual financial statements and
the related results announcement, documents and other matters or
issues raised by the Company’s auditor and made recommendation
to the Board the re-appointment of the Company’s auditor;

—  reviewed and made recommendation to the Board the engagement
of external consultants in respect of the provision of enterprise risk
assessment services and assistance in drafting Environmental,
Social and Governance report;

— discussed and confirmed with the management the effectiveness of
the Group’s financial reporting process, risk management and
internal control systems, reviewed the risk management and
internal control systems and made recommendation to the Board;
and

—  reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code during the
year ended 31 March 2018 and corporate governance related
matters.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 and is of the opinion that
such consolidated financial statements complied with the applicable
accounting standards, the GEM Listing Rules, other applicable legal
requirements and that adequate disclosures have been made.

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 21 February
2017 with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code.
The Remuneration Committee comprises two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen and Mr. Chung Koon Yan
and one executive Director, namely Ms. Sze Tan Nei with Mr. Yuen Ching
Bor Stephen being the chairperson of the Remuneration Committee.

Amongst other things, the primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
are to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policies
and structure of the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and to set up a formal and transparent procedure for
determination of such remuneration policies.
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The Remuneration Committee has adopted the approach under code
provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code to make recommendations to the
Board on remuneration packages of the Directors and the members of
senior management.

The Remuneration Committee held 3 meetings during the year ended 31
March 2019. The attendance record of each members of the
Remuneration Committee is set out in the table on page 28 of this annual
report.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Remuneration Committee
performed the following work:

— discussed and reviewed the existing policy and structure of the
remuneration for the Directors and senior management; and

— made recommendations to the Board on salary adjustment
proposals for the executive Directors and senior management.

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 21 February
2017 with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code.
The Nomination Committee comprises one executive Director, namely
Madam Ng Sing Mui and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen, Mr. Ma Kwok Keung and Mr. Wong
Yat Sum with Madam Ng Sing Mui being the chairperson of the
Nomination Committee.

Amongst other things, the primary duties of the Nomination Committee
are to make recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors
and succession planning for the Directors. In assessing the Board
composition, the Nomination Committee will take into account various
aspects set out in the Board Diversity Policy.

To ensure changes to the Board composition can be managed without
undue disruption, there should be a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for selection, appointment and re-appointment of Directors, as
well as plans in place for orderly succession (if considered necessary),
including periodical review of such plans. The appointment of a new
Director (to be an additional Director or fill a casual vacancy as and when
it arises) or any re-appointment of Directors is a matter for decision by
the Board upon the recommendation of the proposed candidate by the
Nomination Committee.
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The criteria to be applied in considering whether a candidate is qualified
shall be his or her ability to devote sufficient time and attention to the
affairs of the Company and contribute to the diversity of the Board as well
as the effective carrying out by the Board of the responsibilities which, in
particular, are set out as follows:

(@ participating in Board meetings to bring an independent judgment
on issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability,
resources, key appointments and standards of conducts;

taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

serving on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee (in the case of candidate for non-
executive Director) and other relevant Board committees, if invited;

bringing a range of business and financial experience to the Board,
giving the Board and any committee on which he or she serves the
benefit of his or her skills, expertise, and varied backgrounds and
qualifications and diversity through attendance and participation in
the Board/committee meetings;

scrutinising the Company’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of
performance;

M ensuring the committees on which he or she serves to perform their
powers and functions conferred on them by the Board; and

conforming to any requirement, direction and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the
constitutional documents of the Company or imposed by legislation
or the GEM Listing Rules, where appropriate.

If the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an independent non-
executive Director, his or her independence shall be assessed in
accordance with, among other things, the factors as set out in Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules, subject to any amendments as may be made
by the Stock Exchange from time to time. Where applicable, the totality
of the candidate’s education, qualifications and experience shall also be
evaluated to consider whether he or she has the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise for
filing the office of an independent non-executive Director with such
qualifications or expertise as required under Rule 5.05(2) of the GEM
Listing Rules.
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The Nomination Committee held 1 meeting during the year ended 31 & E2019E3H31HILEE - BEREEEE
March 2019 at which the members of the Nomination Committee #2471 A €% @ F EX4ZB 2K EHKE
reviewed the Board'’s structure, size, composition and diversity, assessed EE & 2288 - 1K A K Z ol 7
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors, and made B~ IESHTEE 2 B L 14+ R 3R 20184
recommendation to the Board on the re-election of retiring Directors at R EREBEF AL FHERTESMES D E
the 2018 AGM. The attendance record of each members of the HEERZH - IBEZLTEeZKE 2 &%
Nomination Committee is set out in the table on page 28 of this annual  [EER4FE N A ERE 28 2 FIRA o

report.

Attendance of each Directors at all the Board meetings, Board committee & & = 1 & R 8, 220193 A31H It F &
meetings and general meeting held during the year ended 31 March STy FiEEEe e =L E8e g

2019 is set out as follows:

Name of Director

Esnsg

Executive Directors

BITES

Madam Ng Sing Mui (Chairperson)
REEEL L (FE)

Ms. Sze Tan Nei

e FH e 22 =

Mr. Ang Ming Wah

HLERE K A4

Mr. Sze Wai Lun

ME1E fl %5 A&

Independent non-executive Directors
BYEHITES

Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen
RERFEE

Mr. Chung Koon Yan

EIEA LA

Mr. Ma Kwok Keung
BBl 98 % &

Mr. Wong Yat Sum
m—EE

Mr. Chan Chun Sing
BRIR 2 5E &

Board
Meeting
By
28

7/7
7/7

6/7
6/7

5/7
5/7

7/7
7/7

7/7
7/7

7/7
7/7

7/7
77

7/7
7/7

7/7
7/7

AEMBERRGZBEREIWAT

Audit Nomination Remuneration

Committee Committee Committee General

Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
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N/A 1/1 N/A 1M1

38 1/1 3 A 11

N/A N/A 2/3 1/1

TiE R TER 2/3 1/1

N/A N/A N/A 1/1

A A A 11

N/A N/A N/A 1/1

N iE A T iE M T E A 1/1

5/6 11 3/3 1/1

5/6 11 3/3 1/1

6/6 N/A 3/3 1/1

6/6 3 3/3 11

6/6 11 N/A 1/1

6/6 1/1 3@ A 11

N/A 11 N/A 1/1
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Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities. All
Directors are aware of their responsibilities to the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) and have exercised their duties with care,
skill and diligence, in pursuit of the development of the Group. The
Company continuously updates the Directors on the latest developments
regarding the GEM Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory and
statutory requirements from time to time to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices. The
Company also provides briefings and other training to develop and
refresh the Directors’ knowledge and skills.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional development
and provided a record of training they received for the year ended 31
March 2019 to the Company. Training record of each Director received
for the year ended 31 March 2019 is summarised below:

Name of Director

E=pE

Madam Ng Sing Mui (Chairperson) REBELLE(EE)
Ms. Sze Tan Nei BE ST 4 22+

Mr. Ang Ming Wah BLRREE A

Mr. Sze Wai Lun HE1E 5t &

Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen RIBK &

Mr. Chung Koon Yan EIEE &

Mr. Ma Kwok Keung 5 Bl 58 o A

Mr. Wong Yat Sum 5O %AE

Mr. Chan Chun Sing PR ¥R 22 5 4
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The remuneration of the senior management (comprising Directors) of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2019, by band is set out below:

Remuneration Band

FHEE

HK$1,000,000 or below

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000

T

HZE2019F3A3HIEFEAR A G RE
BE(REEE)MNH BN IR H N E B &5

Number of individual

A
1,000,000 7T LA T 7
1,000,001 7 7T 1,500,000 7T 2

1,500,001 78 7T—2,000,000 7% 7T
2,000,001 7 7t —-2,500,0007% JT
2,500,001 % 7t 3,000,000 7% JT
3,000,001 % 7T 3,500,000 % 7T
3,500,001 7% 7T —4,000,000 % 7T

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on
requisition by Shareholders

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year and at the
place as may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other
than an annual general meeting, shall be called an extraordinary general
meeting.

Pursuant to article 58 of the articles of association of the Company, any
one or more Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. The aforesaid written requisition should
be deposited to the Board or the company secretary of the Company at
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Suite 2702,
27th Floor, Tower 2, Nina Tower, No. 8 Yeung Uk Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories, Hong Kong.
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If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) themselves may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting forward Proposals at General Meetings

Save for the procedures for the Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting, there are no provisions allowing Shareholders to
propose new resolutions at the general meetings under the articles of
association of the Company or the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, as amended, modified and supplemented. Shareholders may
follow the procedures set out above to convene an extraordinary general
meeting for any business specified in such written requisition. The written
requisition must state the objects of the meeting, and must be signed by
the relevant Shareholder(s) and deposited to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company at the Company’s principal place of business
in Hong Kong at Suite 2702, 27th Floor, Tower 2, Nina Tower, No. 8
Yeung Uk Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong.

Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries
to the Board

Shareholder(s) may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing through the company secretary of the Company by post
to Suite 2702, 27th Floor, Tower 2, Nina Tower, No. 8 Yeung Uk Road,
Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong, or via email at the contact
information as provided on the website of the Company.

There has been no change in the articles of association of the Company
since the Listing Date and up to date version of the articles of association
of the Company is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.
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The Board’s Responsibilities for the Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk management
and internal control systems and oversees such systems on an ongoing
basis, while ensuring a review of the effectiveness of these systems of the
Group is conducted at least annually. The scope of such review covers
all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls. The Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
designed to managing risks rather than eliminating the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has delegated its responsibilities (with relevant authorities) of
risk management and internal control to the Audit Committee, and
management has provided a confirmation to the Audit Committee and
the Board on the effectiveness of these systems for the year ended 31
March 2019.

Main Features of the Risk Management System

The Company recognises that good risk management is essential for the
long-term and sustainable growth of a business. The Group’s risk
management structure and the major responsibilities of each role of the
structure are summarized below:
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Role Major Responsibilities At TERE
Board — determines the business strategies and EZE® - EFEASEBEZEBRE

objectives of the Group, and evaluates and
determines the nature and extent of the risks it is
willing to take in achieving the Group’s strategic
objectives;

oversees management in the design, implement
and monitoring of the risk management and
internal control systems;

oversees the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis and
ensures the Company establishes and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems;

reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems at
least annually, and such review should cover all
material controls including financial, operational
and compliance controls;

reviews the emerging risks of the Group annually,
and the risk management and the internal
controls in place to address those risks;

discusses the risk management and internal
control systems with management of the Group
to ensure that the management of the Group has
performed its duty to have an effective systems.
The discussion should include the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function and
to rectify any weaknesses that may be revealed
from time to time;

considers major investigation findings on risk
management and internal control matters as
delegated by the Board or on its own initiative
and the Group’s management’s response to
these findings;
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Role

Management —

Risk Owners =

Major Responsibilities

designs, implements and ongoing assesses the
Group’s risk management and internal control
systems;

gives prompt responses to, and follow up the
findings on risk management and internal control
matters as delegated by the Board, on Audit
Committee’s initiative or raised by the external
risk management and internal control review
advisor(s);

provides confirmation to the Board and the Audit
Committee on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems;

ultimately accountable for ensuring the risk is
managed appropriately; and

responsible for, or oversight of, activities to
manage each identified risk.

In addition, the Company has engaged external consultant to conduct a
review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems for the year ended 31 March 2019.

KIEZERERERAF

At TERE

HE BHERISEMG
AEEMERERE LA
ERESPE R4

& 18 [ —

- EBEEZTEMNZR BX
ZEag XN BER
IR & S BE B R AT R
Mgl HRKRERER
RHAELEEZFTHNERER
A (o] JE 7 R 3

- REFELRERZES
i3

EARBREENAS
ERBHARIE
EREEA — HKATHEREARSTZE
BEEE R
- RAEREEEERER

1 NN 3 N [ e =
K A Ep B o ? Eﬁzizoﬁﬁsﬁwati
AR ETHE



Main Features of the Internal Control System

The Company has in place an internal control system which enables the
Group to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness and efficiency of
operations, reliability of financial reporting and compliance with applicable
laws and regulations. The components of the framework are shown as

follow:
Control —

Environment

Risk Assessment —

Control Activities

Information and —
Communication

Monitoring =

Process used to
Significant Risks

|dentification —

Evaluation —

Management =

a set of standards, processes and structures
that provide the basis for carrying out internal
control across the Group.

a dynamic and iterative process for identifying
and analyzing risks to achieve the Group’s
objectives, forming a basis for determining
how risks should be managed.

actions established by policies and
procedures to help ensure that management
directives to mitigate risks to the achievement
of objectives are carried out.

internal and external communication to
provide the Group with the information
needed to carry out day-to-day controls.

ongoing and separate evaluations to
ascertain whether each components of
internal control is present and functioning.

Identify, Evaluate and Manage

identify ownership of risks, business
objectives and risks that could affect the
achievement of objectives.

analyze the likelihood and impact of risks and
evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication with the Board in respect of
the risks and on-going monitor the residual
risks.
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Process used to Review the Effectiveness of the
Risk Management and Internal Control Systems
and to Resolve Material Internal Control Defects

Risk assessment report and internal control review report are submitted
to the Audit Committee and the Board annually. The Board, through the
Audit Committee, had performed a review on the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems, including, but not
limited to, (i) the changes, in the nature and extent of significant risks and
the Company’s ability to respond to changes in its business and the
external environment, (i) the scope and quality of management’s ongoing
monitoring of risks and of the internal control systems, (i) the extent and
frequency of communication of monitoring results to the Audit Committee
and the Board which enables them to assess control of the Company
and the effectiveness of risk management, (iv) significant control failings
or weaknesses that have been identified, and (v) the effectiveness of the
Company’s processes for financial reporting and GEM Listing Rules
compliance, and considered that the risk management and internal
control systems were effective and adequate for the year ended 31
March 2019. No significant areas of concern that might affect the
financial, operational, compliance controls, and risk management
functions of the Group were identified. The scope of such review covers
the adequacy of resources, qualification and experience of staff of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting functions and their attitude
against internal control of the Group. The Board will continue to work
with the Management to discuss and follow-up on the status of
remediation of the internal control weaknesses and to monitor the risks of
the Group in the coming years.

Procedures and Internal Controls for the Handling
and Dissemination of Inside Information

In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside information,
and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness and timeliness of
its public disclosures, the Group also adopts and implements an inside
information policy and procedures. Certain reasonable measures have
been taken from time to time to ensure that proper safeguards exist to
prevent a breach of a disclosure requirement in relation to the Group,
which include:

— access of inside information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis.

—  transmission of inside information in electronic form should be
password-protected.

—  prohibit employees to discuss inside information in public area.
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— code names are assigned to confidential projects so that any
reference to them would not be linked to the projects themselves to
minimize possibilities of unintentional leakage.

— trainings or briefings are provided to employees who will be in
possession of inside information to ensure that they are fully
conversant with their obligations to preserve confidentiality with
reasonable care.

—  confidentiality agreements are in place before the Group enters into
significant negotiations.

—  officers and employees other than the designated representative
are prohibited to speak externally on behalf of the Company when
communicating with external parties such as the media, analysts or
investors.

The Company does not have an internal audit department. The Board
has reviewed the need for an internal audit function and is of the view
that in light of the size, nature and complexity of the business of the
Group, as opposed to diverting resources to establish a separate internal
audit department, it would be more cost effective to appoint external
independent professionals to perform independent review of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group. Nevertheless, the Board will continue to review at
least annually the need for an internal audit department.

The Company engaged an external professional company secretarial
services provider, Uni-1 Corporate Services Limited (“Uni-1”), to provide
compliance and full range of company secretarial services to the Group
in order to assist the Group to cope with the changing regulatory
environment and to suit difference commercial needs.

Ms. Chan Pui Shan, Bessie (“Ms. Chan”), the representative of Uni-1, has
been appointed as the Company Secretary with effect from 13 June
2016. Her primary corporate contact person at the Company is Ms. Sze
Tan Nei, an executive Director and the compliance officer of the
Company.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, Ms. Chan has undertaken not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training in accordance with Rule 5.15
of the GEM Listing Rules.

Annual Report 2019 20195 F#k

Corporate Governance Report
TXRERME

- HRTBEEREAREH £FREMA
HEHBEAERSIRERBAS K
BRRBEAREME-

- RAKAAREENEBRREHEEIXRE
N BERSEDATREFNGE
EERTAREWREEL

- AEEEAEXEBANZTRZIREH

N
2
A

- BREEEFAN ZLEEABRERE
BUARDABEERE DK KR
BEEFZIBALRR

ARRYEAREZBFHI-EETECRE
CAMBLZDENTE TR/ ERAE
BORBERER HEREREE  ZEINE
BYUERALTHASEREREERAIE
BEERGOREERAREETBELELZR
DEERKIEBNAIEZIFFIE AKX
ARz AN EFTSREEZLEFER
NEPEZBFINFE o

ARFRBEN AL T ERBRER
G—CERBAERAF(H—)) AALE
BHABRR AN ADNERS U
74 9 [ e 0 T8 AL B0 B R OB R AR T
CIEL S

m—zREBERAMzE(RLET)DEESZ
EAERARIME  B2016F6 A13H LA -
ERARBNEBRRBIEAE BARRF
HWITESERERETESEL LT -

HE2019F3A31HILFE BB RIE
GEMEMRAESASEZRELMT LR
+RHE/NEFAERE R ELET -



WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED XK|E#EZEREBERA T

Corporate Governance Report
Mz fobe S \Aiﬁ H

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Pursuant to Rule 5.19 of the GEM Listing Rules, Ms. Sze Tan Nei, who is
also an executive Director, was appointed as the compliance officer of
the Company on 20 June 2016. For her biographical information, please
refer to the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
potential legal actions against its Directors and officers.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the total fees in respect of audit and
non-audit services provided by BDO Limited, the auditor of the Company,
are set out as follows:
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Fee paid/

Services rendered payable

R 7% 28 5l g1/

ENER

HK$'000

FH&T

Audit services FET AR 560

Non-audit services: FETF R -

—  Perform agree-upon procedures for inteimand — A EEREEEELNSHNITHERR

quarterly results announcements 180

—  Other services -  HEMR® 100

Total ot 840




The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements of the Group and other financial disclosures required under
the GEM Listing Rules and the Company’s management will provide
information and explanation to the Board to enable it to make informed
assessments of the financial and other decisions.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, information
and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The statement of the auditor of the Company in respect of its reporting
responsibilities on the Company’s financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2019 is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages
91 to 96 of this annual report.
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The Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report
published by Winson Holdings Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”)
presents the efforts and achievements made in sustainability and
social responsibility by the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group” or “we”). The ESG Report details the performance of
the Group in carrying out the environmental and social policies and
fulfilling the principle of sustainable development.

1.1

1.2

1.3

Scope of the Report

The ESG Report covers the environmental and social
performance of the Group’s business for the period between
1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019 (the “Year”). The
environmental key performance indicators (“KPI”) as disclosed
in the ESG Report are based on the performance of the
principal office, the warehouse and the fleet vehicles of the
Group for the Year'. For details of corporate governance,
please refer to the corporate governance report on pages 19
to 39 of this annual report.

Reporting Standard

The ESG Report was prepared in accordance with the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (“ESG
Reporting Guide”) under Appendix 20 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited and has complied with the “comply or
explain” provisions of the ESG Reporting Guide.

Stakeholder Engagement

The engagement of our employees from different departments
of the Group helps us recognize our sustainability
performance. The diligently collected and carefully analyzed
data underscores not only the Group’s sustainable initiatives
for the Year, but also the Group’s short-term and long-term
sustainability strategy. The Group will continue to increase the
involvement of stakeholders via constructive conversation
with a view to charting a course for long term prosperity.

1 The Group relocated to the current office premise in December 2017, the
previous principal office has served as a warehouse since then. Both the office
and warehouse have already been included in the scope of the 2018 ESG
Report, which is the same as that of the ESG Report of the Year.
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1.4 Information and Feedbacks

Your opinions are highly valued. If you have any queries or
suggestions, please feel free to contact the Company:

Email: ir@winsongrouphk.com

Address: Suite 2702, 27/F,
Tower 2, Nina Tower,
8 Yeung Uk Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories, Hong Kong

As a business providing environmental hygiene and related
services, it is the Group’s target to keep the city clean and green.
The Group is aware of the impacts on the natural environment
caused by its businesses so we strive to protect our environment
during our operation and service provision. We are dedicated to
adopting an effective environmental management system, as well
as carrying out an assortment of measures with respect to emission
control, waste management and resources conservation in an effort
to help shape a green city.

2.1 Environmental Management System

To achieve green management, the Group has adopted an
environmental management system which is certified to ISO
14001. The Environmental Protection Committee (“EPC”),
which serves to oversee the environmental management of
the Group and maintain close collaborations with green
groups and chambers of commerce, continues to ensure the
management system operates effectively and to promote
sustainable development within the Group. Under the
guidance of EPC, potential negative environmental impacts
during operation are continuously assessed so that
corresponding solutions can be implemented.
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2.2

The Group fully understands that the provision of
environmental hygiene and related services has direct
impacts to the environment, thus the environmental
management system was designed to minimize possible
impacts arisen from air emission, water discharge and waste
disposal. We are also able to implement environmentally-
friendly measures for cutting down emission and resources
consumption with the environmental management sytem. The
system also helps to minimize impacts of our services which
allows our clients, when using our services, to reduce their
environmental impacts. For instance, we advocate the use of
cleaning procedures with lower level of harmful chemicals in
detergent and pesticides to avoid detrimental impacts on the
environment and we also carry out waste sorting for our
clients for recycling.

As part of the comprehensive management system, training
such as introduction to environmental ordinances pertained
to wastewater discharge, carbon auditing and courses about
the impacts of climate change on outdoor hygiene works
were provided to our employees during the Year.

Wastewater and Air Emission

Detergents are frequently used during the provision of our
hygiene services, which are therefore the major source of
wastewater discharge of the Group. By sticking to local laws
and regulations such as Water Pollution Control Ordinance
and Waterworks Ordinance, wastewater generated after our
services is discharged into the municipal sewage system. Our
on-site employees are required to follow standard water
pollution control procedures such as the dilution of
wastewater before discharge, in a bid to minimize relevant
impacts.

In regard to air emission, our fleet vehicles, which include
trucks and private cars owned by the Group in supporting its
environmental hygiene and related services, are the main
source of air emission of the Group. The Group strictly
complies with relevant laws and regulations such as Air
Pollution Control Ordinance and Ozone Layer Protection
Ordinance for proper emission management.

2.2
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Air pollutants emission (for the year ended 31 March 2019
and 31 March 2018)%

RE HERERRS

ERSEMERE (B E2019F3A318 &
201843 A31HILEE)?:

2018
Types B 20184
Nitrogen oxides (NO,) (kg) [EWNO) (T=) 1,451 1,126
Sulphur oxides (SO,) (kg)* mEAWSO)(Fr) 1.78 1.65
Particulate Matter (PM) (kg) BF R (PM) (T 52) 94 73

Apart from air pollutants, greenhouse gas is another major
type of air emission of the Group. Our fleet vehicles release
not only pollutants, but also greenhouse gases such as
carbon dioxide (CO,), methane (CH,) and nitrous oxide (N,O).
Besides, the operation of our office will also directly and
indirectly emit greenhouse gas through the use of electricity
and disposal of paper to landfill.

Greenhouse gas emission (for the year ended 31 March 2019
and 31 March 2018):

BZERESEADIN RERBAAEEESR
B —EEZR8H - RANEFER T
EBEROS R > BN Z | ALK (CO,)
FHRCH)RABELTZTANOZ R ERE - It
S HPIMERNEENSER NEERBE
BENERREAREREMRERE

BEREEHRE(E ZE2019F3A318 &
201843 A31HILFE) :

2018
Indicators BE 20184
Total greenhouse gas emission (tons CO,) BERBHRES 349 322
(Mg =& 1b k)
Direct emission (Scope 1)* BEEER(EE) 306 284
Indirect emission (Scope 2)° MR (HEE2)° 33 27
Indirect emission (Scope 3)°¢ ME R (EE3)° 10 11
Total greenhouse gas emission per revenue WK B =R EEH WA 0.65 0.63
(tons CO,/million Hong Kong dollars of revenue) & (BE — &/t fi W 25
ER- V)

Recognizing the impacts of greenhouse gases on global
warming and climate change, the Group has been committed
to controlling its carbon footprint through a number of
measures including the reduction of paper consumption and
energy conservation (For details, please refer to “Waste
Management” and “Energy and Water Conservation”).

Data of 2018 in the table was restated.

The data are rounded to 2 decimal places for better comparison.

Data includes greenhouse gas emission derived from fuel combustion of the
Group’s vehicles.

Data includes greenhouse gas emission derived from the use of purchased
electricity in the Group’s principal office and warehouse.

Data includes greenhouse gas emission derived from disposal of paper to
landfills and water and sewage treatment.
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2.3 Waste Management

In addition to wastewater and air emission, proper waste
management is also a core part of our green management.
Office operation is always essential in supporting the main
business of the Group, which will generate both hazardous
and non-hazardous waste. During the Year, the non-
hazardous waste as disposed of from our principal office and
warehouse consisted mainly of paper and daily garbage
discarded by staff, while hazardous waste included toner
cartridges, printer rollers, light bulbs, chargers and printed
circuit board assembly. As the Group was not involved in
product manufacturing and processing, no packaging
materials were used and no waste associated with packaging
was generated during the Year.

Non-hazardous waste disposal (for the year ended 31 March
2019 and 31 March 2018):

Indicators EBE

Total non-hazardous waste (tons) mEREYEE (M)
Non-hazardous waste per office staff ERANEETELEN
(tons/person) mEEY (W ZA)

Hazardous waste disposal (for the year ended 31 March
2019 and 31 March 2018):

Indicators EE

Total number (pieces)’ BE (B
Toner cartridge 22
Printer roller Ef) ) 3% %
Light bulb )
Charger FTER

Printed circuit board assembly
Number per office staff (pieces/person)

(& =FAN)
Toner cartridge £=2
Printer roller B[ ) 3% %
Light bulb el
Charger FTERS

Printed circuit board assembly

7 Weight of hazardous waste was not measured or provided by the qualified waste
collection companies.
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2018
20184

2.4 4.1
0.05 0.09
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2018

20184

13 25

1 0
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To appropriately handle the waste generated, the Group
strictly conforms to the laws and regulations regarding waste
management such as the Waste Disposal Ordinance, and
works with a qualified waste collection company so as to
ensure both the non-hazardous and hazardous waste are
treated properly. In an effort to cut down on waste, we
encourage our office staff to use reusable and recyclable
appliances such as bottles, cups, chinaware, rechargeable
batteries and other equipment. Besides, we advocate the use
of environmentally-friendly materials where appropriate, for
instance, to print internal documents with recycled paper. For
toner cartridges, all used cartridges are collected
independently by the suppliers for recycling in a bid to avoid
harmful impacts and at the same time reduce waste.

Paper saving and recycling play a vital role not only in waste
reduction, but also the alleviation of global warming. The
Group implements the policy of double-sided printing and
copying and disseminates information by electronic means
whenever possible to reduce the consumption of paper.
Recycling bins are also available for staff to recycle used
paper and paper products. We aim to lower the amount of
waste discarded to landfill and hence reduce carbon
emission.

Energy and Water Conservation

Energy and water conservation is a key element of our
environmental management system as the use of energy and
water is unavoidable in office operation. During the Year, the
burning of fuels for vehicles and the use of electricity were the
major sources of energy consumption of the Group, which
resulted in a total energy consumption of 1,194 MWh (2018:
1,075 MWh), while the average consumption per million Hong
Kong dollars of revenue was 2.22 MWh (2018: 2.12 MWh).
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Energy Consumption by Types?®
RERE 5 W e TR E S

8

In consideration of the potential impacts of energy
consumption to the environment, one of the Group’s
subsidiaries has shouldered the burden of energy
conservation through signing the “Energy Saving Charter
2018” and implementing energy-saving measures. As part of
our many initiatives, we require the temperature of our office
to be maintained at an energy-efficient level, which is set at
between 24°C-26C. The Group’s subsidiary has also signed
the “Energy Saving Charter on No Incandescent Light Bulbs
(ILB)” to abandon the use of ILB and to install energy-saving
fluorescent tubes. To optimize the efficiency of fuel
consumption for vehicles, checkups and maintenance are
periodically performed in an attempt to maintain the optimal
condition of our vehicles. By practically improving energy
efficiency and reducing consumption, we strive to minimize
our carbon footprint in office operation.

As water is a precious natural resource, the Group believes
that everyone shares the responsibility to adopt a sustainable
use of water resources. Therefore, we encourage our office
staff to use water only when justified. We also work to prevent
wastage of water by installing flow restrictors and spray
nozzles wherever possible, reminding employees to turn off
the faucet tightly and fix dripping taps immediately once
discovered.

Data of 2018 in the graph was restated.

8

Use of vehicles 2018

=LA 2019 ™

Electricity usage 2018 I Unit: MWh
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Water consumption (for the year ended 31 March 2019 and
31 March 2018):

Indicators EE

Total water consumption (m?)° BwAREKE(ZHXK)®

Water consumption per office staff ZWMEBEEREEINAKE
(m%/person)® (AR BA)°

Human resources are the foundation hence the most valuable asset
of the Group, thus building a reliable, efficient and productive team
is of paramount importance. We have established a comprehensive
human resources policy, taking care of the employment,
remuneration, development as well as the rights and welfare of our
employees.

3.1 Employment

The Group highly focuses on recruiting talents as it is our
conviction that employing suitable persons is of ultimate
importance to the business’s thriving development. We
strictly abide by local labor laws and regulations regarding
compensation, benefits, dismissal, working hours and rest
period, such as the Employment Ordinance and Employees’
Compensation Ordinance. Throughout the whole recruitment
process, a non-discrimination approach is put in place that
the Group also employs people with disabilities without any
discrimination (For details, please refer to “Contribution to the
Community”).

Besides, the Group stringently prohibits the employment of
child labour through identity and age verification such as ID
card check. To avoid forced labour, employees are required
to enter into the labour contract clearly stating their duties
and responsibilities before the official commencement of
work. Overtime work is on a voluntary basis to further prevent
forced labour and overtime pay will be made in accordance
with relevant laws and regulations. For resigned employees,
we are also committed to paying outstanding wages on time.

Water supply and discharge of the Group’s principal office is controlled by the
management company of the building where the office is located, hence water
consumption record is not available for both years. The data presented in 2018
was from the previous principal office, which served as the warehouse during the
Year, and hence no water was consumed.
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As at 31 March 2019, the Group has employed in total 2,120 H E=2019F3A31H  AEEHE
employees, the total workforce by gender and employment A& #2,120%EE - MZEMERIR
type are as follows: EBEEBHESHNEEAZDT :

By Gender By Employment Type

=B & 2 RERERES

W
590
636 28% 151;0
30%
'72% 2,2206/0 95%

Male 2018 Fulltime 2018

At 2019 e 2019

it 2019m R 2019

3.2 Welfare and Benefits 3.2 EBAKRER

The Group is responsible to assure all our staff of the AEBEETREZEBINE
statutory rights and welfare and is pleased to provide FEREMBEEMNITFEES AESRMHE
employees with extra benefits so that they can achieve BINER  UFERFEHE LK
maximum satisfaction from working in the Group. We offer EBRREHESEARE - &M
our employees a competitive remuneration package that BEEBERHAEGZ INETEWNEFS
discretionary bonus is also provided based on their individual (MMEBEFEEFaFRIALAE
performance and the Group’s financial performance. Apart BIRIVIBEBBIEAL) - K&
from statutory holidays, our employees can also enjoy EREN - EENMATZEZER
different types of leave, including annual leave, sick leave, B PEFR RE =B B
casual leave, compassionate leave and maternity leave. As an MmERER AEBTHFRER
appreciation for the contribution and dedication of long- HRGRIERERPREEE P
serving employees, long service award will be presented. 1B B B K 2 B A9 B -
The Group believes that two-way communication is essential AEBHEEERBERAYERZ
to employee engagement that brings job satisfaction, high B B E - HA S RIIEmWRE
productivity, and low turnover rate. Staff Welfare Committee BR-SAEERREEIRAR-
was thereby set up to provide proper channels for quality AAEBEERIETEMNEZES
communication between employees and management. In EUARAEELREEERMNELE
order to foster team spirit, we have organized several BIEHESEE - BEEEBKGE
recreational activities during the Year such as Chinese New e RPN AFEEEESERE
Year dinner. Furthermore, the introduction of casual wear day EE MEBEHEBRE o LI
every Friday and the birthday leave also represents the BEREREARABRBRRILE
consistent endeavor of the committee in providing a friendly ABREATEAZESRHERTT
workplace. During the Year, one of our subsidiaries was ERENERE N -RAFEE
awarded the “Happy Company” label under the Happiness at KPR —EB AR EREEE
Work Promotional Scheme 2018 held by the Hong Kong ENRERBHOR L TIERE
Productivity Council as recognition of its care to the E:tZI2018T B TH B O 12 |1Z
employees and effort in maintaining a joyous workplace. W EREEEBERBNGR

B THRIRIEAR
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Career Development

In order to maintain the competitiveness of our employees
and establish an excellent team, we review our employees’
performance regularly and provide recommendations on their
training needs and career development during the
performance appraisals. Promotion opportunities are
provided so that employees can find their career paths within
the Group. Our promotion is executed on a fair and open
basis that employees’ character, ability and performance at
work are taken into consideration, while any forms of
discrimination on grounds of gender, race, skin colour, age,
religion and nationality are intolerable.

Nurturing Talent and Succession Planning

To enrich our employees’ experience and industry knowledge,
the Group provides orientation and internal training to
employees in a targeted, systematic and forward-looking
approach. During the Year, apart from new employees
training and general business operation training, the Group
also provided training on different topics such as media
handling, anti-corruption, information technology system
application, environmental protection, ISO implementation
and workplace safety to employees from different
departments.

In addition, to further strengthen employees’ skills and enrich
their knowledge, employees are encouraged to join external
training that is subsidized by the Group. We put specific
attention to safety training that we highly recommend a
number of courses organized by professional bodies such as
the Occupational Safety and Health Council, the Hong Kong
Safety Training Association and the Construction Industry
Council to employees. Employees are also encouraged to
attend external talks and seminars to enrich their knowledge
in discharging their duties.

3.3

3.4
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Health and safety issues in the workplace are risks that could
probably hinder the development of a business. On the contrary, a
safe and healthy workplace not only protects the well-being of
employees, it also enhances productivity and competitiveness.
Thus, the Group sees occupational safety and employees’ health
as an integral part of its sustainable development and always puts
priority on the protection for employees’ health and safety.

4.1 Safety Management System

A comprehensive work safety management and supervision
system is vital for enhancing safety performance. We strictly
comply with local laws and regulations regarding occupational
health and safety, such as the Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance, Factories and Industrial Undertakings
(Dangerous Substances) Regulations, when implementing our
safety management. Our safety management system is
certified to the Occupational Health and Safety Assessment
Series (OHSAS) 18001, which is an internationally-recognized
standard. The Safety Committee, which oversees the safety
management of the whole Group, is involved in promoting
occupational health and workplace safety to our employees
and conducting periodic review on workplace safety and
occupational health measures. Externally, one of the Group’s
subsidiaries is also a member of the Green Cross Group
organized by the Occupational Safety and Health Council.

4.2 Safe and Healthy Workplace

The Group has formulated a full set of guidelines and
procedures for safety training, operation inspection and risk
assessment. We provide personal protective equipment to
our employees whenever necessary, and at the same time
offer safety briefing and training to raise their awareness of
workplace safety and health. Workplace safety inspection is
conducted regularly to identify the hazards associated with
activities of different working procedures and to evaluate the
risks associated with the hazards identified. In response to
the risk evaluation result, preventive and protective measures
are implemented. In order to minimize the occupational health
and safety risk, some employees are required to obtain
relevant certificates through completing courses such as
work at height safety training course so that they are
knowledgeable about the job-related protective measures.
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The Group believes that having a safe, healthy and joyful
workforce is the cornerstone for the long-term success of the
business. Therefore, during the Year, one of the Group’s
subsidiaries pledged to promote physical and mental well-
being among employees with emphasis on healthy eating,
physical activity and mental well-being by signing the
“Joyful@Healthy Workplace Charter”.

4.3 Accident Handling Scheme

Our employees are subject to work-related accidents and
injuries given the nature of our service despite that protective
measures have been implemented. In case there is work-
related accident, we conduct a detailed analysis for the cause
of injuries and implement measures to improve or rectify the
issues. We continuously monitored the improvement
measures and our employees have participated in fire drills to
minimize the possibility of accidents.

As a high-end service provider, quality, reliability and safety of our
service are keys to our success. The Group never spares itself in
the pursuit of excellence in its operations and service through the
management of its supply chain, service quality and the provision of
customer services.

5.1 Supply Chain Management

The Group pays careful attention to the management of the
entire supply chain by sticking to the commitment of
sustainable development. During supplier and sub-contractor
selection, a balanced judgment is made by considering a
plenty of factors, including their environmental performance.
Emphasis is laid especially on the aspects of environmental
protection, quality as well as health and safety, where
suppliers with certification of ISO 14001, ISO 9001, OHSAS
18001 or other accreditation will be given preference during
selection.
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5.2

After supplier selection, we continuously evaluate our
suppliers and sub-contractors in regard to raw materials and
service quality, reliability, environmental performance and
occupational health and safety as well as timely delivery to
minimize the relevant risk. We also take green purchasing
principle into consideration. Besides, the usage of material is
constantly evaluated to avoid overstocking and squandering
resources.

Service Quality

Service quality is one of our major concerns as we aim at
providing the best quality service to our clients. The Group
places great emphasis on quality control and our quality
management system has been certified to ISO 9001. We
have set formal procedures for quality check that employees
are sent to check the quality of service performed on-site
regularly, which include services delivered by both the
Group’s employees and third-party service providers. We
also visit our clients to conduct client review and to record
occasions of substandard performance for follow-up actions.

The Group is also committed to protecting the health and
safety of our clients. For example, Winson Professional Pest
Control Company Limited, a subsidiary of the Group which
provides pest management services, is required to use
pesticides registered under the Pesticides Ordinance. This is
to eradicate harmful pests while taking into account the basic
principles of public health and environmental protection.
During the Year, one of the Group’s subsidiaries also signed
the “Charter on Preferential Appointment of OSH Star
Enterprise”, pledging to give preferential appointment to
enterprises which implemented effective safety management
system and passed Occupational Safety and Health Council’s
stringent safety audit when choosing third-party service
providers.

5.2
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Client Services

The Group is devoted to achieving the highest customer
satisfaction by providing professional and client-oriented
service. To understand clients’ needs, we conduct site
assessment and communicate with clients before service
provision. Our management will hold regular meetings with
on-site employees to review operations in various aspects so
as to ensure that clients’ expectations can be met. Clients’
feedback on service quality, environmental and workplace
safety performance and application of material and tools is
also collected as a source for making corresponding
improvement. In response to client complaints, we will
investigate the root cause and carry out remedial and
preventive action promptly.

Advertising and Information Security

With regard to advertising and labeling, the Group has
designated specialized employees to monitor notices, news
and information in the media in connection with tenders
relating to environmental hygiene and related services and
airline catering support services. We strive to ensure relevant
local laws and regulations are strictly conformed with.

The Group highly values the confidential data of our clients.
We strictly comply with local laws and regulations regarding
privacy matter, such as the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance. We are committed to maintaining transparency,
legitimacy, relevance and accuracy when we handle the
confidential data of our clients. Every employee is required to
enter into a confidentiality agreement which forbids him/her to
disclose confidential or proprietary information outside the
Group, either during or after employment, without the
Group’s authorization. Besides, we endeavor to protect the
[T system from virus contamination, cyber attack and leakage
of confidential information by implementing the IT security
policy that specifies the roles of different parties within the
Group and regulates the access and protection of
information. Training relating to cyber security and relevant
risk management would be provided to our employees from
time to time to enhance their awareness of cyber security.
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5.5 Anti-corruption

In order to maintain the Group’s integrity and justice, we
strictly comply with the laws and regulations regarding
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering, such as the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance. To maintain high standards
of corporate governance, we fulfill our commitment through
abiding by anti-corruption policies and guidelines, such as
those related to acceptance of gifts and conflicts of interest.
Related procedures and guidelines are available in the
employee handbook. Employees can report any irregularities
to the designated personnel and the Group will investigate
the improper behaviors and take corresponding remedial
measures against the irregularities. During the Year, the
Group is not aware of any breach of laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group in relation to any kinds
of corrupt practices.

The Group has long been putting great effort in creating a
harmonious and inclusive community through various ways. During
the Year, we continued to provide employment opportunities for
people with disabilities to help them integrate into the community.
Based on the disability and expertise, we made appropriate
arrangements of work for the disabled employees. Appropriate
types of support, such as targeted training and emotional
counseling, were always available when required. In order to
promote the disabled employees’ integration with the community
and foster social integration of able-bodied and disabled persons,
out-of-work gathering and counseling are organized in their spare
time and working time.

As recognition of our care to the people with disabilities, one of the
Group’s subsidaries was named the Caring Employer for the year
of 2018 under the “Caring Employer Commendation Scheme
2018” co-organized by the Kwun Tong District International Day of
Disabled Persons Working Group and the Hong Kong Federation of
Handicapped Youth.
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On the other hand, the Group also supports social service and
education by making charitable donation. During the Year, the
Group has made a donation to The Mental Association of Hong
Kong for supporting its self-financed social housing service. We
also sponsored the outstanding trainee selection of the School of
Vocational Training of Hong Kong College of Technology (“HKCT”),
which helped to nurture talent for the community.

Moreover, we are a member of “Employers Consultative
Committee” organized by HKCT to provide up-to-date industry
information to our youth. Our social commitment also encompasses
the establishment of the Social Service Committee through which
our employees actively participate in community service and
stimulate a corporate culture of caring and respect. The spirit of
service, as well as the care and love shared by the committee not
only helps to make a difference among the needy, but also helps to
foster care and harmony within the community.

Looking into the future, the Group will continue with its efforts in
supporting and empowering the community. It is hoped that long-
term values can be created for the society so that the Group can
grow together with society and the people.
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FEAEEEEYHEER(MEREE - BEYPER
Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and, Waste Management 44-45

where appropriate, intensity.

ELBEEERYEER (MER)EE -
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R HERERKRS

KPI
BREMIER

A1.5

A1.6

Description

g

Description of measures to mitigate emissions
and results achieved.

HAUB R BERER B RFTSAR -
Description of how hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes are handled, reduction
initiatives and results achieved.
HEEEEREZTEEMNF L  BE
EEXEENHRELRMERR -

A2 Use of Resources

BEREM

A2.1

A2.2

A2.3

A2.4

A2.5

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by
type in total and intensity.
READESMEER SIEEEREES
REE o

Water consumption in total and intensity.
BEKERTE -

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives
and results achieved.

e RE ARG RAEKR -
Description of whether there is any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency initiatives and results achieved.
SR BGE R KR ER BEREE - AR
RARKRSFERPAEHR -

Total packaging material used for finished
products and, if applicable, with reference to
per unit produced.

S mATAREMANEE R(WNER)E
SEBRGE -

A3 The Environment and Natural Resources
RERRXARER

A3.1

Description of the significant impacts of
activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to manage
them.

HIL X EHHRELRABERNERY
ZEREENERFEXENTE -

Chapters
=4:0)

Waste Management ; Energy and
Water Conservation
REMEIR : B KRR KK E IR

Waste Management

BE ¥ E 12

Energy and Water Conservation
& 4 82 IR KK B TR
Energy and Water Conservation
B 4 BB IR BK & TR
Energy and Water Conservation

BRI BE IR S K B IR

Energy and Water Conservation

BRI BE TR KK B IR

Waste Management

R E

Environmental Management System,
Wastewater and Air Emission; Waste
Management; Energy and Water
Conservation

RREERBZRE: BKRERE
W EMER: AR RKE
R

Page No.
BIX

44-47

44-45

45-47

45-47

45-47

45-47

44-45

41-47
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RE HERERRS

Description

BMEAXRER  #d

Social
e
B1 Employment

=%

B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type,
age group and geographical region.

BRI BEEEAL  FRARN RMEE D
B{E BB -

B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group
and geographical region.

ZMR - FEAR RMEE S HEERK
b o
B2 Health and Safety

REEZR

B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities.
ETEBEMELTHASRKLE-

B2.2 Lost days due to work injury.
HAIGEAIERS -

B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety
measures adopted, how they are implemented
and monitored.

RPN ERRET2HEME UK
HEARITRERAE-
B3 Development and Training

R RIE

B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by
gender and employee category.
rUERMEEERANESOXIEER D
Lt o

B3.2 The average training hours completed per

employee by gender and employee category.
EZHEREREBERNE D BHREETKT
Bl RS=liss e

Chapters
=4:0)

Employment

& 1%

No relevant disclosure for the Year

ANERE IR R EFH

No relevant disclosure for the Year

AERIWEEREREFH

No relevant disclosure for the Year

AERE IR EFH

Safety Management System; Safe
and Healthy Workplace; Accident
Handling Scheme

ZEEERBR  REMEERENT

E5FT BN IR BB

No relevant disclosure for the Year

AERNEHBRKEFE

No relevant disclosure for the Year

AERI AR EFH

Page No.
BIX

47-48

N/A

N/A
NiEH
N/A
8 A
50-51
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KPI

BRAMRER

Description

g

B4 Labor Standards

B5

B6

T A
B4.1

B4.2

Description of measures to review employment
practices to avoid child and forced labour.
iR BB EPI B AR R E T KR
BT

Description of steps taken to eliminate such
practices when discovered.

B IR ERIB R HRE BB O TR
HUR 25 5% o

Supply Chain Management

HEREE
B5.1

B5.2

Number of suppliers by geographical region.
iR E S HEREEA -

Description of practices relating to engaging
suppliers, number of suppliers where the
practices are being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored.

Mo EERERAHRERNEN  MERTAE
BEMIMEREEEE URBEBEENHR
TRERERE-

Product Responsibility

EmRfE
B6.1

B6.2

B6.3

B6.4

Percentage of total products sold or shipped
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons.
PESEERXEmABTRAL S HERE
AmARKKNE D -

Number of products and service related
complaints received and how they are dealt
with.
EEMNERRBRBEORFERE AREY
JI0E e

Description of practices relating to observing
and protecting intellectual property rights.
RGN RENBEREGANED -

Description of quality assurance process and
recall procedures.
HAEREERTRELEKREF -

Chapters
=4:0)

Employment

No relevant disclosure for the Year

REZIEIFE 1 FEFEH
Supply Chain Management

TR E R

N/A

N iEH

No relevant disclosure for the Year

AERIEHERKEFR

N/A

8 A

Service Quality

RGEE

Page No.
BIX

47-48

N/A

%
[
3

N/A
TiEH
51-52

N/A

N/A

N iEH

N/A

A iE H
52
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RE HERERRS

Description

g

Description of consumer data protection and
privacy policies, how they are implemented
and monitored.
HEEEERNRERLERER  LAKRME
BT NERTE -

B7 Anti-corruption

B8

R&ES
B7.1

B7.2

Number of concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the issuer or
its employees during the reporting period and
the outcomes of the cases.
RBERANHETASIEERERETEHF
ROBSFLARENEE RFRER -
Description of preventive measures and
whistle-blowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored.

HMPy S E M R BB - LA RBBEBAT
MEERTE -

Community Investment

HERE

B8.1

B8.2

Focus areas of contribution.
ErEREE -
Resources contributed to the focus area.

EEISBMBAER-

Chapters
=4:0)

Advertising and Information Security

BEEREALE

Anti-corruption

RES

Anti-corruption

R&EB

Contribution to the Community
O] £5 #t [@

N/A

i A

Page No.
ED/N

53

54

54

54

N/A

NiE
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ESNEREEE

Madam Ng Sing Mui (REEHS) (“Madam Ng”), aged 58, a co-founder
of the Group, has been appointed as an executive Director since 31 May
2016 and is currently acting as the Chairperson. She is also the
chairperson of the Nomination Committee and holds directorships in all
subsidiaries of the Company. Madam Ng is primarily responsible for the
strategic planning, operation planning and overall management of the
Group.

Madam Ng has more than 30 years of experience in the environmental
hygiene services industry in Hong Kong. She has held a leadership role in
the overall management and business development of the Group and
has maintained relationships with key customers since co-founded the
Group in December 1983.

Madam Ng is a certified associate fellow of the Institute of Managers and
Leaders Australia and New Zealand (formerly known as Australian
Institute of Management) since September 1995. She was also awarded
a Training Certificate on Fire Prevention (Commercial Sector) issued by
the Occupational Safety & Health Council in August 2001.

Madam Ng is the mother of Ms. Sze Tan Nei and Mr. Sze Wai Lun, both
are executive Directors. She is the sole director of Rich Cheer
Development Limited and Sze’s Holdings Limited, both companies have
disclosable interests in the Shares under the provisions in Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”).

Ms. Sze Tan Nei (F&f}1E) (“Ms. Sze”), aged 38, joined the Group in
February 2007 and was appointed as an executive Director on 20 June
2016. She is also the compliance officer of the Company and a member
of the Remuneration Committee. Ms. Sze also holds directorships in
several subsidiaries of the Company. She is primarily responsible for
strategic planning, operation planning and compliance control of the
Group’s business operation.
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Bl A - 2016531 B EEZ T AT
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Ms. Sze graduated from Queensland University of Technology, Australia,
with a Bachelor of Business (Management) in October 2004. She
completed the Pest Control and Pesticide Safety for Industrial
Undertakings course organised by The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in 2008. Ms. Sze was certified as a Quality Management Systems Auditor
by the International Register of Certificated Auditors, by completing the
Lead Auditor Training Course (in accordance to international standards
ISO 9001:2008 & ISO 19011:2002) co-organised by the Hong Kong
Quality Assurance Agency and International Management Systems
Associates Limited in October 2009. She has also completed the
Environmental Management Systems Auditor/Lead Auditor Training
Course for ISO 14001:2004 & ISO 19011:2002 in January 2010, and the
Occupational Health & Safety Management Systems Auditor/Lead
Auditor Training Course for BS OHSAS 18001:2007 & ISO 19011:2002
in April 2011. In July 2017, she has completed the Intensive ISO
9001:2015 QMS and ISO 14001:2015 EMS Internal Auditor Training
organised by SGS Hong Kong Limited.

Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Sze was employed as property
management assistant in April 2005 by Jones Lang LaSalle Management
Ltd, being a company engaging in the provision of services specialising in
real estates. She was subsequently promoted to the position of assistant
management surveyor in March 2006 and remained in that position until
she left such company in August 2006. In August 2006, she was
employed as a marketing assistant in the communications department of
Hongkong Land Group Limited, being a company engaging in property
investment, management and development until February 2007.

Ms. Sze is the daughter of Madam Ng Sing Mui, the Chairperson and an
executive Director, and the sister of Mr. Sze Wai Lun, an executive
Director.

Mr. Ang Ming Wah (7£83%) (“Mr. Ang”), aged 63, joined the Group in
March 2007 and was appointed as an executive Director on 20 June
2016. He is primarily responsible for the business development and
planning, control and management of the Group’s business operation.

Mr. Ang graduated from the University of Waterloo, Canada, with a
Bachelor of Mathematics in October 1978, and Bachelors of Arts in
October 1979. He also completed an Executive Program organised by
the Business School of the University of Michigan in 1997. Mr. Ang was
admitted as an associate member of the Hong Kong Management
Association in 1986 and was appointed as an “Occupational Safety and
Health Ambassador” by the Occupational Safety & Health Council in
2008.
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Mr. Ang has over 30 years of experience in the environmental hygiene
services industry in Hong Kong. Before joining the Group, Mr. Ang was
employed by Reliance Services Company Limited (now known as ISS
Facility Services Limited), being a company engaging in the provision of
environmental hygiene related services, as operations manager in May
1986. He was subsequently promoted to senior operations manager in
October 1988. Mr. Ang left such company in February 2000 and his last
position held was director in operation department. Mr. Ang subsequently
joined Best Result Cleaning Services Ltd., being a company engaging in
the provision of cleaning services, as general manager in July 2000 and
was appointed as director and general manager in 2004. He held that
position until he left such company in September 2006.

Mr. Sze Wai Lun (/&%) (“Mr. Sze”), aged 36, joined the Group in
September 2007 and was appointed as an executive Director on 20 June
2016. He is primarily responsible for the overall management of IT
development of the Group.

Mr. Sze graduated from Giriffith University, Australia, with a Bachelor of
Commerce in December 2006, and a Diploma of Commerce from
Queensland Institute of Business and Technology (now known as Griffith
College), Australia, in February 2003. He has also obtained a Diploma in
SME Company Operation & Management from Hong Kong Productivity
Council in September 2014, a Certificate of Data Centre Operation and
Maintenance Engineers Course from Hong Kong Productivity Council in
February 2015 and a Certificate of CGEIT (Certified in the Governance of
Enterprise IT) from Hong Kong Productivity Council in May 2015.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Sze was employed by Citicorp International
Limited, being a company which provides banking and financial services
as a securities operations professional in the securities operations
department of the operations and technology group in April 2007. He
held that position until he left such company in August 2007.

Mr. Sze is the son of Madam Ng Sing Mui, the Chairperson and an
executive Director, and the brother of Ms. Sze Tan Nei, an executive
Director.
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Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen (Zi&i&) (“Mr. Yuen”), M.-H., aged 71,
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 21 February
2017. He is also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a
member of each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Yuen graduated with a Master of Science in Interdisciplinary Design
and Management from The University of Hong Kong in November 2013.
He is an Eminent Fellow Member of the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors, Fellow Member of Chartered Institute of Housing, Fellow
Member of the HK Institute of Housing and a Member of the Chartered
Institute of Arbitrators. He has more than 30 years of real estate
experience from both public and private sectors.

Mr. Yuen was the ex-chairman of the Industry Training Advisory
Committee (property management) of the Education Bureau, past
chairman of the Real Estate Service Training Board, ex-committee
member of the Employee Retraining Board, ex-member of the Land and
Building Advisory Committee, past chairman of the Chartered Institute of
Housing (HK branch), past President of the HK Association of Property
Management Companies and past president of the HK Institute of Real
Estate Administrators. Mr. Yuen has retired from the office of executive
director of a real estate investment fund and has been appointed as its
non-executive chairman since June 2017. Mr. Yuen has also served as a
non-executive director and chairman of the board of Affluent Partners
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1466) since February 2018 and an
independent non-executive director of Real Nutriceutical Group Limited
(stock code: 2010) since January 2019, the shares of both companies
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chung Koon Yan ({15 &) (“Mr. Chung”), aged 55, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 21 February 2017. He is
also the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Chung graduated with a Master of Professional Accounting from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University, Hong Kong in November 2000. He is
a practicing member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Chung is also a fellow member of each of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales since October 2003, February 2007
and November 2014 respectively.
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Mr. Chung is currently a director of Chiu, Choy & Chung CPA Ltd. and
has more than 20 years’ experience in accounting, auditing and taxation.
Currently, he is also an independent non-executive director of Asian
Citrus Holdings Limited (stock code: 73), the shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and were admitted to trading
on AIM (a market operated by the London Stock Exchange) in 2005 but
which have been cancelled from trading on AIM since 29 March 2017, an
independent non-executive director of Synergy Group Holdings
International Ltd. (stock code: 1539), the shares of which are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and an independent non-
executive director of Great World Company Holdings Limited (stock
code: 8003), the shares of which are listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Ma Kwok Keung (5 E58) (“Mr. Ma”), aged 59, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 21 February 2017. He is also
a member of each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee.

Mr. Ma is a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong. He graduated from the
Australian National University, Australia with a Bachelor Degree in Arts in
1983 and a Bachelor Degree in Laws in 1984. He was admitted to the
High Court of Hong Kong in July 1987 and is also a qualified lawyer in
both state and federal courts in Australia. Mr. Ma is currently a partner of
Chiu & Partners and his main practice area is securities, banking and
commercial law.

Mr. Wong Yat Sum (Z— 1) (“Mr. Wong”), aged 42, was appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director on 21 February 2017. He is also
a member of the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Wong obtained a Degree of Bachelor of Science in Accounting from
The University of Hull in the United Kingdom in July 2000. He has been a
fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since
October 2014 and Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since
August 2013.

Mr. Wong has over 17 years of auditing, accounting and financial
management experience. He worked for Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from
September 2000 to October 2007. From November 2007 to November
2009, Mr. Wong worked for a private wood flooring company as a
financial controller in Shanghai, China. He has been the chief financial
officer of Youyuan International Holdings Limited (stock code: 2268), the
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
since December 2009 and has been its company secretary and
authorised representative since January 2010.
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Mr. Chan Chun Sing (FR#z%) (“Mr. Chan”), aged 39, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 21 February 2017. He is
also a member of the Audit Committee.

Mr. Chan has over 17 years of experience in the fields of accounting and
auditing matters of listed companies in Hong Kong. He obtained a
bachelor’'s degree of arts in accountancy from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in 2001. In November 2015, Mr. Chan obtained an
executive master of business administration from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and has been a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors since March 2013. Mr. Chan worked for Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu from September 2001 to July 2011 and his last
position held was senior manager in the audit department.

Mr. Chan joined a private company as chief financial officer from July
2013 to February 2014 and was appointed as executive director from
March 2014 to April 2015 and was re-designated as non-executive
director from May 2015 to March 2017. He has served as an independent
non-executive director of Lai Si Enterprise Holding Limited (whose shares
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 2266)
since January 2017. He has also been appointed as the chief financial
officer and the company secretary of Lap Kei Engineering (Holdings)
Limited (whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 1690) since February 2015 and January 2018
respectively.
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Mr. Leung Chi Kong (£&Ml) (“Mr. Leung”), age 57, is the senior
manager — Operations & Development of the Group. He is primarily
responsible for the overall management of sites operations of the Group.
Mr. Leung has over 35 years of experiences in the environmental hygiene
services industry in Hong Kong. He was employed by Reliance Services
Company Limited (now known as ISS Facility Services Limited), being a
company engaging in the provision of environmental hygiene related
services, as an assistant foreman. He left such company in February
2001 and the last position held was site manager. Mr. Leung then joined
Best Result Cleaning Services Ltd., being a company engaging in the
provision of cleaning services, where he worked as assistant operations
manager in February 2001 and was subsequently promoted to operation
manager in October 2004, where he held such position until he left the
company in September 2006 and joined the Group in February 2007 .

Mr. Leung has obtained a Certificate Programme on Supervisory
Management from The Hong Kong Management Association in March
2000 and he was awarded a Training Certificate on Safety for Cleansing
Work (managers and supervisors) by the Occupational Safety & Health
Council in December 2009. Mr. Leung also obtained an Aluminum Mobile
Working Platform Training Certificate issued by Origin Production Limited
trading as The Hong Kong Safety Training Association in July 2004 and
held a Construction Industry Safety Training Certificate from June 2004
to June 2007.

Mr. Chow Kai Chi (B %) (“Mr. Chow”), age 51, is the Group Senior
Finance Manager. He is primarily responsible for the financial reporting,
financial planning, treasury, financial control matters of the Group. Mr.
Chow obtained a Bachelor of Arts in Business Accounting in September
1999 from the University of Lincolnshire & Humberside (now known as
the University of Lincoln), the United Kingdom by long distance learning.
He is currently a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and was admitted as a member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in October 2001.

2EBMEETREE]D 575 AEEF
e —EERBR - BFEBELAEH
HMBREENEREETE - REEHBFRIHF
BEERNEEFERBTESCR BEXER
Z W R B R A 7 (3R 1SS Facility Services
Limited * &t EIRHIRBHEBBERBEH
NEDETBHEE T - HHR2001F2 A B #%
NABER HSBBMUAEGEE - 2 %2
FAER2001F2AMAEBRERREBER A
AI(REREBTRRBH AR EEHESE
BB HER2004F1I08EHBLEK
B —EETZBEZ2006F69A B% A F
BEBE o (92007 F2 A MAREE -

REER00FIARBEEEBREED
B EE % & 12 Certificate Programme
on Supervisory Management) * 3 74 2009 4F 12
AEBEXZ2RERAETBERIME(KE
R EEE 8) & 215 5|7% F (Training Certificate
on Safety for Cleansing Work (managers and
supervisors)) © 2 5t 4 I8 A2004F 7 A K&
EE(HRBE)ARAGNEBEELE2EISG
KRE)BERIDEC BB IETREINIES
(Aluminum Mobile Working Platform Training
Certificate) * If 72004 F 6 H %2007 6 H
B B 17 ¥ % & 5 5)I # F (Construction
Industry Safety Training Certificate) °

AREERETAXE]D 515 AEB SR
MBEKE - BREXZEEAEBTBHRE -
W5HE - B MREZEFE - ALLE
M199FOA BRBEREBEN TABRE
University of Lincolnshire & Humberside ( 3R 7
B A E (University of Lincoln)) 15 & 2 & 5t
XETEU -RRARBEEGFMLAEEE
I 722001 F 10 A B /42 & B 57 3F 2 R & & AD

AT =
NEEH o



Annual Report 2019 20195 F#k

Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Chow has over 27 years of experience in accounting industry in Hong
Kong. He was employed as a clerk in the finance department by Nanyang
Brothers Tobacco Co., Ltd, a tobacco manufacturer in June 1988. He
was promoted to senior clerk in January 1991 and held that position until
he left in August 1991. Mr. Chow then joined Yue Po Engineering Co.,
Ltd, being a company that provides kitchen design services and supplies
catering equipment as senior clerk in the accounting department in
March 1992 and was promoted to account officer in October 1992, in
which position he remained until he left such company in March 1995.
He then joined Siu Wor Trading Co. Ltd, being a company engaging in
jewellery trading related business as an accountant in April 1995 and left
the company in January 1998. Mr. Chow subsequently joined Trans Asia
Computer Superstore Ltd., being a company engaging in sales of
computer related equipment as an accountant from June 1998 to August
1999. He then worked as a senior accountant in Hung Mau Realty &
Construction Ltd, being a company engaging in the provision of general
construction works from November 1999 to July 2002. From July 2002
to April 2005, Mr. Chow worked as an accountant at Broadway Photo
Supply Ltd, then being an exporter of camera and photographic
equipment. He then worked as an accountant in Suga Electronics
Limited, being a company providing advanced electronics manufacturing
services, from May 2005 to August 2005 and joined the Group in
November 2005.
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The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2019.

The principal business of the Group is provision of environmental hygiene
and related services and airline catering support services in Hong Kong.

A detailed review on the Group’s business performance and the material
factors underlying its financial position, as well as the development and
likely future prospects of the Group’s business are provided throughout
this annual report and in particular under the following separate sections:

(@ review of the Company’s business and financial position, and
development and future prospects of the Company’s business are
shown in the “Chairperson’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report;

(b)  the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group are shown in
the section headed “Principal Risks and Uncertainties” below;

(c) the Group’s environmental policies and performance are shown in
the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this annual
report and the section headed “Environmental Policies and
Performance” below;

(d) the Group’s key relationships with employees, customers and
suppliers are shown in the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” of this annual report and the section headed “Relationships
with Key Stakeholders” below;

(e) the Group’s compliance with the relevant laws and regulations are
shown in the section headed “Compliance with Laws and
Regulations” below and the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” of this annual report; and

()  details of key performance indicators are shown in the “Financial
Highlights” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report.
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These discussions form part of this Report of the Directors.

No significant events that have an effect on the Group subsequent to the
year ended 31 March 2019.

The Group’s businesses, financial condition, results of operations and
growth prospects may be affected by risks and uncertainties directly or
indirectly pertaining to the Group’s businesses. The risk factors set out
below are those that could result in the Group’s businesses, financial
conditions, results of operations or growth prospects differing materially
from expected or historical results. Such factors are by no means
exhaustive or comprehensive, and there may be other risks in addition to
those shown below which are not known to the Group or which may not
be material now but could turn out to be material in the future.

Strategic Risks

The competition in the environmental hygiene and related services market
is intense due to low barriers of entries.

The Group continuously reviews its competitive edges in view of the
industry and will continue to strengthen its established position in the
environmental hygiene and related services industry by () building and
sustaining the reputation as socially responsible and high quality services
provider; (i) increasing operational efficiency and service excellence to
enhance customer experience; and (i) treasuring the business
opportunities from client referrals.

Operational Risks

Being labour intensive industry, difficulties in recruiting new workers may
lead to lack of capacity to obtain new projects which in turn result in
losing market shares and competitiveness.

In response to the high labour turnover risks, (i) staff welfare committee
was set up by the Group to provide proper channels for quality
communication between employees and management; (i) exit interview is
conducted by the human resources department with leaving staff; (iii)
budget (including manpower budget) is prepared for every projects; and (iv)
third party service provides are engaged to ensure sufficient manpower.
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Increase in the statutory minimum wage may lead to high labour cost and
reduce in profitability. Nevertheless, the management has remained
resolute in controlling labour and other costs so as to maintain the
Group’s competitiveness and bolster its market position. Certain
measures are adopted to monitor costs, for example, increase salaries of
front-line staff in accordance with the statutory minimum wage rate
adjustment, prepare budget on a project basis based on experience of
senior management and establish approval procedure for incurring
additional costs to accommodate for situations when additional
expenditures are required.

Uncertainties of tender contracts is also principal risk facing by the
Group. A majority of the Group’s service contracts are under tendering
which have fixed service terms that range from one to three years,
contributing significant amount of the Group’s revenue. Since the
tendering process is very competitive, it is uncertain that whether the
customer will award new contracts or renew the existing contracts with
the Group. To response to the above risk, the Group has established a
relatively broad customer base ranging from various government
departments in Hong Kong and subsidiaries of multi-national companies
to tenants of various premises.

Compliance Risks

The Group is exposed to litigation claims including employees’
compensation claims and common law personal injury claims and
insurance coverage may not adequately protect the Group against
certain risks. Through close monitoring of various legal and regulatory
pronouncements from the government by its legal and compliance
personnel, the Group is able to keep itself updated with various regulatory
requirements and complies with local labour laws and regulations such
as the Employment Ordinance and Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance. A comprehensive work safety management and supervision
system is also established for enhancing safety performance. In addition,
the management will review the insurance coverage on an ongoing basis.

Financial Risks

Please also refer to note 30 to the financial statements for the financial
risks facing by the Group.
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Employees

The Company treats human resources as the Group’s valuable assets.
Training and retaining good employees are always at top priorities.

Besides on-the-job trainings and funding for continuous learning, two
committees are set up to ensure good physical and psychological health
of our staffs. Workshops are held regularly to raise staff's awareness of
occupational health and safety. The risk-free working environment is
guaranteed by the certification of OHSAS 18001 Occupational Health
and Safety Management System. In addition, the Company also
organizes a range of recreational activities so as to foster team spirit.

Customers

Keeping strong relationship with the customers is critical to maintain the
competitiveness of the Group.

For servicing industry with human as the main concern, it is vital to have
an independent, comprehensive quality assurance mechanism in order to
maintain high level of service, in which rule-of-man style and subjectivity
in the old days can be eliminated. In view of this, the Company has
established an evaluation mechanism with mutual assessment by internal
and external teams of professionals audits. In order to achieve a set
standard of service and customers’ satisfaction, the work is monitored
and reviewed in various aspects including provision of resources, training,
infrastructure and working environment, with customers’ expectation as
the foundation. For services that are not up to high standard, remedial
action will be advised and implemented with continuous improvement
followthrough. Also, preventive measure will be formulated as future
guidelines.

Suppliers and Sub-contractors

The Group maintains a list of approved suppliers and sub-contractors
which are selected with reference to, among other things, material/
service quality, reliability and price. The Group performs annual evaluation
on the Group’s suppliers and sub-contractors with respect to raw
materials/service quality, reliability and timely delivery.

Further discussions on the relationship with key stakeholders is set out in
the Environmental, Social and Governance Report.
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The Group has been putting unremitting efforts in environmental
protection by introducing sustainable machineries, devices and
equipment for operation.

The Group’s Environmental Protection Committee (EPC) maintains close
collaborations with green groups and chambers of commerce to promote
the concept of sustainable development. The Group’s determination is
marked by the ISO 14001 Environmental Management System
accreditation obtained in 2001.

Further discussions on the environmental policies is set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

During the year ended 31 March 2019 and up to the date of this annual
report, the Board was unware of any non-compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operations of the Group.

Further discussion on the Group’s compliance with laws and regulations
is contained in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report.
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A summary of the published financial results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019, together with
the financial results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
four years ended 31 March 2018, is set out on page 192 of this annual
report. This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 and the state
of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 97 to 101 of this annual report.

The Board resolved to recommend a final dividend of HK1.67 cents (2018:
HK1.67 cents) per Share for the year ended 31 March 2019, amounting
to a total of HK$10,020,000. The proposed final dividend is subject to
the approval of the Shareholders at the annual general meeting of the
Company to be held on Thursday, 8 August 2019 (2019 AGM”) and is
expected to be payable on or about Thursday, 29 August 2019.

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2019 AGM, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 5
August 2019 to Thursday, 8 August 2019, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of Shares will be registered. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the 2019 AGM, all transfers of Shares
accompanied by the relevant share certificate(s) must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong,
Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Friday, 2 August 2019.
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For determining the entitlement of the Shareholders to the aforesaid
proposed final dividend, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Wednesday, 14 August 2019 to Thursday, 15 August 2019,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfers of Shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, which is
subject to approval of the Shareholders at the 2019 AGM, all transfers of
Shares accompanied by the relevant share certificate(s) must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Tuesday, 13 August 2019.

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 March 2019 are set out in note 14 to the
financial statements.

As at 31 March 2019, the Company’s issued share capital was
HK$6,000,000 and the number of its issued ordinary Shares was
600,000,000 of HK$0.01 each.

There was no movements in the Company’s share capital during the year
ended 31 March 2019.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2019 are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 99 of this annual report and note
23 to the financial statements.

As at 31 March 2019, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
to the Shareholders amounted to HK$60.3 million.
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The Company seeks to maintain a balance between meeting
Shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital management with a
sustainable dividend policy. The Company’s dividend policy aims to allow
Shareholders to participate in the Company’s profit and for the Company
to retain adequate reserves for the Group’s future growth. In proposing
any dividend payout, the Company would consider various factors
including but not limited to the Group’s overall results of operation,
financial condition, working capital requirements, capital expenditure
requirements, liquidity position, future expansion plans, general economic
conditions, business cycle of the Group’s business and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the business or financial
performance and position of the Group. Any declaration and payment as
well as the amount of the dividends will be subject to any restrictions
under the applicable laws and regulations and the Company’s
constitutional documents. The Company does not have any pre-
determined dividend distribution proportion or distribution ratio. Any
future declarations of dividends may or may not reflect the Company’s
historical declarations of dividends and will be at the absolute discretion
of the Directors.

The Board will continually review the dividend policy and reserves the
right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend, modify and/or
cancel the dividend policy at any time, and the dividend policy shall in no
way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company that
dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way obligate
the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.

The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2019 and up to the date
of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Madam Ng Sing Mui (Chairperson)
Ms. Sze Tan Nei

Mr. Ang Ming Wah

Mr. Sze Wai Lun

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen
Mr. Chung Koon Yan

Mr. Ma Kwok Keung

Mr. Wong Yat Sum

Mr. Chan Chun Sing
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Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, Mr. Sze Wai Lun, Mr.
Yuen Ching Bor Stephen and Mr. Chun Koon Yan will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the 2019 AGM.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for an initial term of three years with effect from the Listing
Date, unless terminated by not less than three months written notice to
the other party or otherwise in accordance with the terms of the service
agreement. They are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
annual general meetings of the Company pursuant to the articles of
association of the Company.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company for an initial term of three years with
effect from the Listing Date, unless terminated by not less than three
months written notice to the other party or otherwise in accordance with
the terms of the letter of appointment. They are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at annual general meetings of the Company
pursuant to the articles of association of the Company.

None of the Directors who is proposed for re-election at the 2019 AGM
has any service agreement which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without the payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Biographical details of Directors and senior management are set out on
pages 60 to 67 of this annual report.

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance (as defined under
Rule 18.25 of the GEM Listing Rules) to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries is or was a party, and in which a
Director or an entity connected with a Director, or the controlling
shareholder (as defined under the GEM Listing Rules) of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries, is or was materially interested, either directly or
indirectly, subsisted at 31 March 2019 or at any time during the year
ended 31 March 2019.
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No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed at 31 March 2019 or at any time during the year ended 31
March 2019.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Schemes” below,
at no time during the year ended 31 March 2019 and up to the date of
this annual report was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or their
associates to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and
senior management arising out of corporate activities.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, every Director
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or may incur or
sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or
about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective
offices; provided that such indemnity shall not extend to any matter in
respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of said
persons.

Save for the above, at no time during the year ended 31 March 2019 and
up to the date of this annual report, there was or is, any permitted
indemnity provision (as defined in section 9 of the Companies (Directors’
Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of Hong Kong)) being in
force for the benefit at any of the Directors (whether made by the
Company or otherwise) or any of the directors of an associated company
(if made by the Company).
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Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 11 to the financial
statements. The Remuneration Committee will review and recommend
the Board the remuneration and compensation packages of the Directors
and senior management with reference to their respective experience,
responsibilities, contribution, and time devoted to the Group and the
overall performance of the Group.

The Directors and senior management may also be granted options
under the share option scheme of the Company.

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a written resolution of the sole Shareholder passed on 21
February 2017, the principal terms of the pre-IPO share option scheme (the
“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) were approved and adopted. The
purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to aid the Company in
retaining key and senior employee of the Group. Principal terms of the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme were set out in the Prospectus and note
24 1o the financial statements.

An aggregate of 192,000 share options at an exercise price of HK$0.42
per Share, being the offer price under the share offer, were granted on
23 February 2017 to an executive Director and certain employees of the
Group. No further options will be granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme.
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Details of the share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option

Scheme are as follows:

Category of
participants

SEERR

Director
EZ
Ang Ming Wah

HBE

Sub-total
7N E—|-

4 Employees in
aggregate
4% EE

1 Employee

148

Sub-total
/J\ E—|-

Total
@t

Outstanding Exercised Cancelled
as at 1 April during the during the during the

2018
H2018 4
481H
RITHE

64,000

64,000

64,000
64,000

104,000

104,000

24,000

24,000

128,000
128,000

192,000
192,000

Annual Report 2019 20195 F#k

Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

REEXALAFAEEAMBREAIRL 2B

EFHBWT

Number of Shares (Note 1)

Rt 8B (1)

Lapsed Outstanding
as at 31
March 2019
RH20195
3A31H
RITHE

year year year

RER  REARA  RER
BIR &t 8 P

64,000

64,000

64,000
64,000

104,000

104,000

24,000

24,000

128,000
128,000

192,000
192,000

Exercise
Price per
Share
Option

BHBER
BITREE

HK$0.42

0.427% 7T

HK$0.42

04278 T

HK$0.42

0428 7T

Exercisable Period

16 March 2017 to 15 March 2027
(Note 2)

20173 A16 H £2027F3 A15H
(Fft3E2)

16 March 2017 to 15 March 2027
(Note 2)

20173 A16 H £2027F3 A15H
(Pt 5E2)

16 March 2017 to 17 December 2019
(Note 3)

2017%E3A16 B £2019F 12 517 H
(i #E3)
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Notes:

1. Number of Shares over which options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is exercisable.

2. All holders of options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme may only
exercise their options in the following manner:

(a) 50% of the options granted are exercisable during the period from 16
March 2017 to 15 March 2027; and

(b) the remaining 50% of the options granted are exercisable during the
period from 16 March 2018 to 15 March 2027.

3. In accordance with the terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, the legal
personal representative(s) of this employee may exercise the options granted to
him under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme within the period of 12 months
following his death.

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) which was approved by a resolution of the sole Shareholder
passed on 21 February 2017. No options under the Share Option
Scheme has been granted since its adoption.

Summary of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are as
follow:

(@) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional incentive to
employees (full-time and part-time), directors, consultants, advisers,
substantial shareholders, distributors, contractors, suppliers,
agents, customers, business partners or service providers of the
Group and to promote the success of the business of the Group.

(b) Participant of the Share Option Scheme

The Board may, at its absolute discretion and on such terms as it
may think fit, grant any employee (full-time or part-time), director,
consultant, adviser, substantial shareholder, distributor, contractor,
supplier, agent, customer, business partner or service provider of
the Group, options to subscribe at a price calculated in accordance
with paragraph (c) below for such number of Shares as it may
determine in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme.

B
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(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Price of Shares

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be a price solely
determined by the Board and notified to a participant and shall be
at least the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of
the option, which must be a business day; (i) the average of the
closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant of the option; and (i) the nominal value of Share
on the date of grant of the option.

Grant of options and acceptance of offers

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven
days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The
amount payable by the grantee of an option to the Company on
acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.

Maximum number of Shares of the Company
available for issue

The total number of Shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme is 60,000,000 Shares, represent 10% of the
Shares in issue as at the date of this annual report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of options granted to any participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) under the Share Option Scheme or any other
share option schemes of the Company in any 12-month period up
to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue.

Time of exercise of option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board
may determine which shall not exceed ten years from the date of
grant subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.

Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten
years commencing on 21 February 2017, subject to early
termination provisions contained in the Share Option Scheme.

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Annual Report 2019 20195 F#k

Report of the Directors >

EEEHRE

IR A0 B 1%

RIS B R At B 0 (A E R IR
BOBRNRABERNESTS2RET
TiEmz2EE BEAFERTIES
FORORBRERLBER(WAR
SEH)RBIMERRERMETL
mE:MERMRERBRERL RS
AAEEXREEBIMEARERAA
AP U E ¢ (i) B D 10 R B
REBHZEHE -

REBREREAEN
BEBREOEORNELEBEL
EH(EEER)BEARER  BR
HEARABRENZABRERNTE
REEADR LB -

RARFAHBETROEE LR

REBREFSETAHETZRMOHE
£ A60,000,000 % + 1h A A F 3R B 8
BETRM 210% °

ESRENEHELR

BERE BB EMA12(E A HEA -
R AR 1% 8 B #E At B sl AN X RME (] A
BRESEREM2EERONER
R (BRCITE RHEARTTEAERE)
BOUEMBETERETETORN R
g TRBBEEITRMOMNI% -

TREBRENKR
ERARREZTSAEEBEENHRE
BE B AR I8 BB AR R AT B A0 IR R TT(E B AR
B HEERPHEITGEEAERL B HE
AT FE WRABREAK IR
IR e

BRETTEIRERFR

B 28 N2017E2 821 B 5t
TEHBRN—EBN HASERE
STEIFTEIR AT AR LEIESTRTRIR ©



<

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED XK|E#EZEREBERA T

Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

As at 31 March 2019, the interests or short positions of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they are
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by
directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were
as follows:

() Long position in the Shares

R2019F3A31H ' RARIEEZTRETENTH
ABRARQBIKEEMEREE(EERLE
HFRHEEMEXVED) 2% - BRI &
BEETPHBREES NP EIEOEXVIEE
TR8DWAEMEARARRA MBI Z R R
KE(BREEREZEFRPEKRI ZZE
B EEREAEE 2 EEZIAR) K
RN IBEES KRB EKIEI2GETF
B2 B M AR B GEM 3R B £5.46 15
BE6TIE A ESTETELSR I 2R EA
MEAXARRBRTzERIARLT

I REROGHVEFR

Number of
Shares/  Approximate
underlying percentage
shares held/ of interest in
Name of Director Capacity/nature of interest interested in  the Company
iy ®E
BEHRG S HEATER
EERE BB HEmMtE HEROEE HHBAESL
Ng Sing Mui Interest of a controlled corporation; Settlor of 450,000,000 75%
a discretionary trust (Note 1)
RIEN XmEEER  2RESMEREA 450,000,000 75%
(BE&E1)
Sze Tan Nei Beneficiary of a discretionary trust (Note 2) 450,000,000 75%
1 T4k REEXHEA(ME2) 450,000,000 75%
Sze Wai Lun Beneficiary of a discretionary trust (Note 3) 450,000,000 75%
Bt 12 f@ 2REEEXEA (HFE3) 450,000,000 75%
Ang Ming Wah Beneficial owner (Note 4) 64,000 0.01%
AL EE BB A (iE4) 64,000 0.01%



(I) Long position in the ordinary shares of
associated corporations
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m AEBLIEZEERNERS

Number of
Name of associated Capacity/ shares held/ Percentage
Name of Director corporation nature of interest interested in of interest
i A
R &
EEpnE HEEEERH B EatE R4 & B Bok
Ng Sing Mui Sze’s Holdings Limited  Interest of a controlled corporation; 1 100%
Settlor of a discretionary trust
REEME MR ERARA A RiEsBEER 2EEAME 1 100%
FEA
Rich Cheer Beneficial owner 1 100%
Development Limited
EHRERGRAF ExnEAA 1 100%
Sze Tan Nei Sze’s Holdings Limited  Beneficiary of a discretionary trust 1 100%
i MeEERAERAF 2REAXEA 1 100%
Sze Wai Lun Sze’s Holdings Limited  Beneficiary of a discretionary trust 1 100%
e 18 fm MEERER AR AR PREFEEHEA 1 100%
Notes: Mt 55

All the 450,000,000 Shares are beneficially owned by Sze’s Holdings
Limited, which is in turn held by Rich Cheer Development Limited acting
as the trustee of the Sze Family Trust. The Sze Family Trust is a
discretionary trust set up by Madam Ng Sing Mui as settlor and Rich
Cheer Development Limited as trustee on 8 January 2015. The
beneficiaries of the Sze Family Trust include, inter alia, Mr. Sze Wai Lun
and Ms. Sze Tan Nei. Madam Ng Sing Mui is the settlor of the Sze Family
Trust and the sole director of Sze’s Holdings Limited and therefore
Madam Ng Sing Mui is deemed or taken to be interested in all the
450,000,000 Shares beneficially owned by Sze’s Holdings Limited for the
purposes of the SFO. Madam Ng Sing Mui is also the sole director and
shareholder of Rich Cheer Development Limited.

=

BT A 450,000,000 A% A% 17 ¥ B 1 IS 1% %
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RERIERER AR ESHBENIA
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2. Ms. Sze Tan Nei is the daughter of Madam Ng Sing Mui. Ms. Sze Tan Nei
is one of the beneficiaries of the Sze Family Trust and therefore she is
deemed or taken to be interested in all the 450,000,000 Shares
beneficially owned by Sze’s Holdings Limited for the purposes of the SFO.

3. Mr. Sze Wai Lun is the son of Madam Ng Sing Mui. Mr. Sze Wai Lun is
one of the beneficiaries of the Sze Family Trust and therefore he is
deemed and taken to be interested in all the 450,000,000 Shares
beneficially owned by Sze’s Holdings Limited for the purposes of the SFO.

4, Mr. Ang Ming Wah is interested in 64,000 Shares which may be allotted
and issued to him upon full exercise of all options granted to him under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company nor their associates had any interests and short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard
of dealings by directors as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing
Rules as at 31 March 2019.
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As at 31 March 2019, the following persons (other than the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

Long position in the Shares

Name of Shareholder Capacity/nature of interest

BRER gt EmnE

Beneficial owner
EnlEEA

Sze’s Holdings Limited
iVl = /N
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R2019%F3A31H U FTATHEESZEREA
RAEZITERAB)RA R A% =k 6 48 %
DR ERRRIREE S &I E K5 5336
KEGFEMNELMANERSAR

REROHERE

Number of Percentage of

Rich Cheer Development Limited Interest of controlled corporation as the trustee of

the Sze Family Trust (Note)
EHERBRE QA

Note: The entire issued share capital of Sze’s Holdings Limited is held by Rich Cheer
Development Limited as the trustee of the Sze Family Trust. The Sze Family Trust
is a discretionary trust established by Madam Ng Sing Mui. The beneficiaries of
the Sze Family Trust include, inter alia, Mr. Sze Wai Lun and Ms. Sze Tan Nei. By
virtue of the provisions of Part XV of the SFO, Rich Cheer Development Limited is
deemed or taken to be interested in all the Shares beneficially owned by Sze’s
Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, the Directors were not
aware that there was any person (not being a Director or chief executive
of the Company) who had, or was deemed to have, interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and was recorded in the register kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

RELEED  FRIERKKERZEA IR

Shares held/ interest in
interested in  the Company
¥ %A HARRAF
R K

vl gz Bk
450,000,000 75%
450,000,000 75%
450,000,000 75%
450,000,000 75%

M ERIERERAGNSHEEHTRAH LN
ERABRABD(RERRKRETNIEAS
B RREKEAERREBLIREYINEHE
ER BRREEENZIEZAREEGTE
EB)EEREEMBEM L L - RIZEH K H
BIRPIEXVEEM G SREBRER QA
BRAEERERERERARNEZEAN
PRAEKRMD oA R

Br EXFTiEEESIN 20196 3A31H &
EFEWTHABEMALTCGEESTHARAFE
THRAB) RS R AR AR E &G ki
RO R AREZESRBE GG EXVE
FORBDEBRENRARAHEERELNIE
BEARBEENFEIB6HREAARFENE
St EESORE -



WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED XK|E#EZEREBERA T

Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

Pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM Listing Rules, the changes in the
information of the Directors since the date of interim report of the
Company for the six months ended 30 September 2018 are set out

below:

Name of Directors

Esns

Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen, an
independent non-executive Director

RBRAELE  BIUFNTES

Madam Ng Sing Mui, an executive
Director and the Chairperson

REBZLT RITEFRER

Ms. Sze Tan Nei, an executive Director

R+ HITES

Mr. Ang Ming Wah, an executive

Director
HRAELEA  BITES

Mr. Sze Wai Lun, an executive Director

BEMTE RITES

RIEGEM T 8 Bl 5817.50AM &> B # =
20189 H30H IF618 B AR A HHmE B
HEZEZERNETHNNWOT

Details of Changes
BEFE

He was appointed as an independent non-executive director of Real Nutriceutical
Group Limited (whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 2010), with effect from 3 January 2019.
REZERMFEEAERAG(ZARZKRMREELZAER - RHK
5% - 2010) MBI IFATTE S - B2019F 1 ABE A -

Her basic annual remuneration has been increased from HK$3,439,800 to
HK$3,611,784 with effect from 1 April 2019.

18 2 B 7N 5 % $13,439,8008 7T £ 3,611,784/ 8 7T B2019F 4 A1 H &
e

Her basic annual remuneration has been increased from HK$2,755,620 to
HK$2,893,392 with effect from 1 April 2019.

% 2 E AN 5 i 2,755,620 T 1% £2,893,392/8 7t © H2019F4 A1 H L4
B o

His basic annual remuneration has been increased from HK$1,420,020 to
HK$1,491,012 with effect from 1 April 2019.

1% 2 A 0 1,420,0208 7T E1,491,012/8 7T B2019F4 A1 B £ 4
R o

His basic annual remuneration has been increased from HK$1,031,940 to
HK$1,083,528 with effect from 1 April 2019.

% 2 B AN F F 1,081,940 T8 £1,083,528/8 7C * H2019F 4 A1 H A
R o



As disclosed in the Prospectus, each of Sze’'s Holdings Limited, Rich
Cheer Development Limited, Madam Ng Sing Mui, Ms. Sze Tan Nei and
Mr. Sze Wai Lun (“Controlling Shareholders”) have entered into the deed
of non-competition undertakings (“Deed of Non-competition
Undertakings”) in favour of the Company (for its own and on behalf of all
members of the Group) on 23 February 2017, pursuant to which each of
the Controlling Shareholders, irrevocably and unconditionally, undertakes
and covenants with the Company that during the period that the Deed of
Non-competition Undertakings remains effective, each of the Controlling
Shareholders shall not, and shall procure that none of his/her/its
associates (except any member of the Group), directly or indirectly (other
than through the Group) engage, participate or hold any right or interest
in or render any services to or otherwise be involved, whether as a
shareholder, director, employee, partner, agent or otherwise (as the case
may be), in any business in competition with or likely to be in competition
with the Group’s existing business activity and any business activities
which may be undertaken by the Group from time to time and/or which
any member of the Group may undertake in Hong Kong from time to
time. Details of the Deed of Non-competition Undertakings have been set
out in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders —
Deed of Non-competition Undertakings” in the Prospectus.

The Company has received the annual declaration from each of the
Controlling Shareholders in respect of their respective compliance with
the terms of the Deed of Non-competition Undertakings during the year
ended 31 March 2019. The independent non-executive Directors, having
reviewed the annual declarations and made reasonable enquiry, were
satisfied that the Controlling Shareholders have complied with the terms
of the Deed of Non-competition Undertakings during the year ended 31
March 2019.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS OR
SUB-CONTRACTORS

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the percentages of (i) revenue
attributable to the Group’s major customers; and (i) cost of services
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers or sub-contractors are set out
below:

TEEFREAEBR I EHE

HE2019F3A31IBIEFE  (AEEEE
EEEMAKZDE  RiANERTEHERKD
BEELARBRANE DT OT :

Approximate percentage
of the Group’s

HEAEENBEABE I
Cost of
Revenue services
I B 7 BX 2%
The largest customer BARP 31.8% —
Five largest customers in aggregate hAREFER 61.5% =
The largest supplier or sub-contractor SAEERKXSBEE — 25.2%
Five largest suppliers or sub-contractors in aggregate T A EREHH BG4S &t = 31.7%

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any Shareholders
(which to the best knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
number of issued Shares) had any interest in the Group’s five largest
customers, five largest suppliers and subcontractors noted above.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles
of association or applicable laws of the Cayman Islands where the
Company is incorporated.

PURCHASES, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 March 2019, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

MEEEIARFNEMNETBERAXREMR
BRRAEEMAANAEEBBD BHITRNE
BE5%) D ARAREN LM AXRES R
AEEE LD BETHEETMER -

BrBEERE

RN A A A B A2 AR B 3R X B R AR SZ AR
EMHRAERENERARBENLERR
BRBEENKRX

BE - HERMEELT LD

HZE2019F3A31BILFEE  ARAIEME
MHEBARMERE LERELQ AR A
R ETES -



The Directors are not aware of any business or interest of the Directors
nor the Controling Shareholders nor any of their respective close
associates that compete or may compete with the business of the Group
and any other conflicts of interest which any such person has or may
have with the Group during the year ended 31 March 2019.

As notified by Messis Capital Limited (the “Compliance Adviser”), the
Company’s compliance adviser, save for the compliance adviser’'s
agreement entered into between the Company and the Compliance
Adviser dated 14 March 2017, neither the Compliance Adviser nor any of
its directors, employees or close associates, has or may have, any
interest in the share capital of the Company or any member of the Group
(including options or rights to subscribe for such securities) or otherwise
in relation to the Company which is required to be notified the Company
pursuant to Rule 6A.32 of the GEM Listing Rules as at 31 March 2019
and up to the date of this report.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group had not entered into
any connected transactions or continuing connected transactions that
are not exempted under Rule 20.71 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and to the
best knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirm that the Company
maintained the public float as required under the GEM Listing Rules
throughout the year ended 31 March 2019 and has continued to maintain
such float as at the date of this annual report.
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There has been no change in auditor since the Listing Date. The financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 have been audited by
BDO Limited, who will retire, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment at the 2019 AGM. A resolution will be proposed at the
2019 AGM to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Ng Sing Mui
Chairperson and Executive Director

28 May 2019
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Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk
|

a5 - +852 2218 8288
{EH : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG
LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Winson
Holdings Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) set out on pages 97 to 191, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019, and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2019 and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition

Refer to summary of significant accounting policies in note 4.8 and note
7 to the consolidated financial statements.

Service income from provision of environmental hygiene and related
services and airline catering support services is recognised when the
services are rendered. We have identified recognition of revenue as a key
audit matter because revenue is one of the key performance indicators of
the Group and there is an inherent risk over the recognition of revenue by
the management to meet specific targets or expectations.

Our response:

Our audit procedures to address the revenue recognition included the
following:

° evaluating the appropriateness of the recognition policy with
reference to the relevant accounting standard;

° inspecting, on sample basis, customer contracts to identify terms
and conditions relating to the provision of services;

° performing substantive analytical procedures to assess whether the
recognised service revenue was in line with the expected level;

° inspecting service income recognised during the year, on sample
basis, and comparing details of the service income being
recognised with relevant the underlying documentation, including
service contracts, service records and invoices; and

° assessing, on a sample basis, the service income recorded before
and after the financial year end date with the relevant underlying
documentation, including service contracts and service records, to
verify whether the service income had been recognised in the
appropriate financial period.
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The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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° conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those WHEEZEZEFRENETETR R E T YA
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated 4R A M ERRNEFZAEE > BAiME
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit K EE E+FT B 2 =B - B IEEAEZ S LR
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or AR HFAHABE BN EFH stV IBREAH
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in  BER T HZPRAREHEEHEAIASETE
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should notbe HIMTE R R BB AR ANBUSZEEHY
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing  Flz5 M AENRFERFE - TR MR
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits % S b R 5 A 5 a1t S F 18 -

of such communication.

BDO Limited BRIV CEZETTMEXMERAR
Certified Public Accountants HE DA

Lui Chi Kin =g e

Practising Certificate Number P06162 ¥ 3B E R 57 P06162

Hong Kong, 28 May 2019 B 201965 H28H
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LeEmEREKR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &= 201943 A31H It FE

2019 2018
20195 20184
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
D FE T THT
Revenue W 25 7 537,324 508,106
Cost of services PR 75 X A< (457,769) (431,216)
Gross profit ER 79,555 76,890
Other income and gains N NS 7 740 687
General operating expenses —MREER (53,794) (49,655)
Finance costs R & K AN 8 (482) (1,035)
Profit before income tax BR BT 18 B Az R 9 26,019 26,887
Income tax expense FriSfif X 10 (5,177) (5,083)
Profit for the year and total comprehensive  F RE R R A& A TAEE A
income for the year attributable to owners EEFEFRZEWNEEAE
of the Company 20,842 21,804
Earnings per share BREF 13
— Basic — EK HK3.47 cents HK3.63 cents
AL AL
— Diluted — s HK3.47 cents HK3.63 cents
B AL
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e BRI &

Asat31March2019 7201943 A31H

2018
20184
Notes HK$’000
Mo 5E TFH& T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERER
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment LEIN T 14 36,001 37,188
Prepayments SRR 17 = 292
36,001 37,480
Current assets REEE
Inventories 58 15 14 11
Trade receivables B 5 EWFIA 16 114,497 100,180
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables AftRIE - Re R HAM
JE W5k I8 17 7,263 8,928
Tax recoverable A Y [B] B 18 67 12
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEED 33,844 39,488
155,685 148,619
Current liabilities REBAEE
Trade payables B 5 EN A 18 14,710 12,790
Accruals, deposits and other payables EsrER e REM
N 18 30,069 30,495
Bank borrowings RITE K 19 9,364 17,533
Tax payable FE T I8 1,614 1,549
55,757 62,367
Net current assets hEBEEFEHE 99,928 86,252
Total assets less current liabilities WEERARBAERE 135,929 123,732
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Provision for long service payments REIR 2 B E 20 10,480 9,076
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFRIBAE 21 1,258 1,216
11,738 10,292
Net assets BEE 124,191 113,440
EQUITY R
Share capital B& 7N 22 6,000 6,000
Reserves = 118,191 107,440
Total equity XA 124,191 113,440

The consolidated financial statements on pages 97 to 191 were approved FE 7B ZF 191 HH 2 G AW EREE R
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 May 2019 and 201945 F 28 H # & = & # /ff I 1% 4 T 3%

are signed on its behalf by: WHTINESREES :
Ng Sing Mui Sze Tan Nei
REENS B -4
Director Director

EE EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Eqmt
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For the year ended 31 March 2019  #{ Z20194 3 831 H IE F &

Share

Share Share Merger option Retained

capital premium* reserve* reserve* profits* Total
i R R

B B EE & O ot 4 £R B om A st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$O000 HKEO000 HK$000 HK$000
THExT TET  FTExT  TFTExT  TET  TART

At 1 April 2017 MH2017F4H818 6,000 48,177 20,917 18 16,508 91,620

Profit for the year and total 4E A & K| K& 4F (A
comprehensive income 2 E UK A EE

for the year — — — — 21,804 21,804
Recognition of share- TR LA IR 1D =
based payment expense B &Y 1~ 5B 2 — — — 16 — 16

At 31 March 2018 as 201843 H31H
originally presented BREZ7
(audited) (BEZ) 6,000 48177 20,917 34 38,312 113,440

Effect of adjustment on  IRAF B ERE
adoption of HKFRS 9 AR FE 5 HY

AR = — = = (71) (71)

Restated balances at R2018F 4 A1 H
1 April 2018 KB AR 6,000 48177 20,917 34 38,241 113,369
Final dividend paid B RERE — — — — (10,020)  (10,020)

Profit for the year and total 4 A 3 ) & 4E ;&
comprehensive income & [ W 25 48 58
for the year = = = = 20,842 20,842

At 31 March 2019 "201963A31H 6,000 48,177 20,917 34 49,063 124,191

* These reserve balances comprised the reserve account as set out in the * %S HHE BB BEES M B AR R PTHFHH
consolidated statement of financial position. S5 o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AERETRER

KIEZERERERAF

For the year ended 31 March 2019 & £20194 3 31 H L F &

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Interest expenses
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation
Impairment loss on trade receivables
Share-based compensation

Operating profit before working capital changes

(Increase)/decrease in inventories
Increase in trade receivables
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables
Increase in trade payables
Decrease in accruals, deposits and other payables

Increase in provision for long service payments

Cash generated from/(used in) operations
Interest paid
Income tax paid

Net cash generated from/(used in) operating
activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Prepayments for purchase of property,
plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

RETHRETNE
BR P 15 ¢ B 4 7
R
FLE WA
B R X
HEWE BENIRHBZ
B8 (Was)
e
B 5 e WK AR B &5 1R
AR oD 7R AT 2 (8

EEESRHAKERT

FEOEm, m

B 5 & WK IR L hn

BRFIR - Be REMER
IR A (E )

B 5 IS 5RIAE H0

EEtER R REAMEN
RIER D

KB IR % & B R 18 10

mEmE/(FRRE
ENHME
ENMEH

RETHMEE (FRARE
R

REZFHRERE

BHAE

BEVE BELERE

BEVE BEL&RE AN
KA

HEME  BERKERE

HIA

REZDMABESFH

26,019

(6)
482

52
5,044
54

31,645
3)
(14,442)

1,665
1,920

(426)
1,404

21,763
(482)
(5,125)

16,156
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(100)
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Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from bank borrowings
Repayment of bank borrowings
Dividend paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Analysis of balances of cash and cash
equivalents
Cash and bank balances
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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MEETDREIRE
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3,647
(11,816)
(10,020)
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(5,644)

39,488

33,844

33,844

2018
20184
HK$’000
F# T

246,865
(268,975)

(22,110)

(31,928)

71,416

39,488

39,488
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥R 3% B 5

For the year ended 31 March 2019 & £20194 3 31 H L F &

Winson Holdings Hong Kong Limited (“the Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability on 31 May 2016 under the Companies Law, Cap. 22
(Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands. The Company’s shares have been listed on GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
since 16 March 2017.

The address of the Company’s registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman lIslands. Its principal place of business is Suite 2702, 27th
Floor, Tower 2, Nina Tower, No.8 Yeung Uk Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries (together with the Company, collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are set out in note 33.

The Company’s immediate holding company is Sze’s Holdings
Limited (“Sze’s Holdings”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) and the entire issued share capital of Sze’s
Holdings is held by Rich Cheer Development Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong, as the trustee of a family trust (the “Sze
Family Trust’). The Sze Family Trust is a discretionary trust
established by Madam Ng Sing Mui. The beneficiaries of the Sze
Family Trust included, inter alia, Mr. Sze Wai Lun and Ms. Sze Tan
Nei. Rich Cheer Development Limited is deemed or taken to be
interested in all the shares beneficially owned by Sze’s Holdings.
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A) ([B X AT ]) GEM £ 7T ©

7N A7) E it 9 = B 2 Hb HiE A& Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands » H + Z & XM 20 BB B R
ERIGEESHRINLEH 212712702
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For the year ended 31 March 2019  #{ Z20194 3 831 H IE F &

2.1 Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
following new standards and amendments issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”),
which are relevant to and effective for the Group’s financial
statements for the annual period beginning on 1 April 2018.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 1, First-time
adoption of Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of
Share-Based Payment Transactions

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

Amendments to HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers (Clarifications to HKFRS
15)

Other than as noted below, the adoption of these
amendments has no material impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”)

HKFRS 9 replaces Hong Kong Accounting Standard (‘HKAS”)
39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” for
the Group’s annual periods beginning on or after 1 April
2018. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for (1) the
classification and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities; (2) impairment and (3) general hedge
accounting. The adoption of HKFRS 9 from 1 April 2018 has
resulted in changes in accounting policies of the Group and
the adjustments to the amount recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 & £20194 3 31 H [t F &

2.1 Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs 21 KM FAT R EIBIT BB
(Continued) B % 3% & 28 Bl ()

HKFRS 9 (Continued) BBV HREEAFIF @

HKFRS 9 basically retains the existing requirements in ERMEHREERFIHRE

HKAS 39 for classification and measurement of financial RN ERZEBSHERFE

liabilities. However, it eliminates the previous HKAS 39 I EELMAE ﬁv\ B &

categories for financial assets of held to maturity HAECHEERTE - AM H

financial assets, loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial assets. The adoption of HKFRS 9 has
no material impact on the Group’s accounting policies
related to financial liabilities. The impact of HKFRS 9 on
the Group’s classification and measurement of financial
assets is set out below.

Under HKFRS 9, except for certain trade receivables (that
the trade receivables do not contain a significant
financing component in accordance with HKFRS 15),
the Group shall, at initial recognition, measure a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVPL”"), transaction costs. A financial asset is classified
as: () financial assets at amortised cost (“amortised
costs”); (ii) financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”); or (iii) financial assets
at FVPL. The classification of financial assets under
HKFRS 9 is generally based on two criteria: (i) the
business model under which the financial asset is
managed and (ii) its contractual cash flow
characteristics (the “solely payments of principal and
interest” criterion, also known as “SPPI criterion”).
Under HKFRS 9, embedded derivatives is no longer
required to be separated from a host financial asset.
Instead, the hybrid financial instrument is assessed as a
whole for the classification.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 & = 201943 HA31H It FE

2.1 Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs 2.1 W H ET BIEFTE R
(Continued) B S 3R 45 2 Bl (@)
HKFRS 9 (Continued) ERMBREERNEITR @

EeMEERKNANUT
MBI - B EEERA

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it
meets both of the following conditions and it has not

been designated as at FVPL: FEFARZ  AlZE/mE
ERBHEKAGE :

° It is held within a business model whose objective ° ZeMmEBEER—@EE

is to hold financial assets in order to collect TREeFELTRMEE

contractual cash flows; and WEHREHEEREN

EBRAMIFE K&

° The contractual terms of the financial asset give ° ZeMEENE HIF
rise on specified dates to cash flows that meet FREEBHELR
the SPPI criterion. ERE MEHAEST

EFEEINAER
FIBAZRAE o

The accounting policies would be applied to the LTE2aBREEARA

Group’s financial assets as follows: EEMNEmEE

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently HEBHEKAGTENESRSE

measured using the effective interest rate method.
Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

EHZEBERF EET
o MEWKA EX IR
&Eﬁ%b%&iﬂﬂﬁﬁ"%fﬁﬁ%
R o 2R E A R
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 & £20194 3 31 H [t F &

2.1 Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs 2.1

(Continued)

HKFRS 9 (Continued)

The following table summarises the original classification
under HKAS 39 and the new classification under
HKFRS 9 for each class of the Group’s financial assets

as at 1 April 2018:

Financial assets

THMEE

Trade receivables

B 5 e W R

Deposits and other receivables

12 & N Bl R YRR

Cash and cash equivalents

RehBAEFEY

Original
classification
under HKAS 39

R
BHBETER

New
classification

BR A0 F 5T B2
MBREE

B BERE

RIZET BB

JJ(E)

2 B 95 (@)

T R Bl AN 52 B 7R 2018 FF 4

A1B& 8BS
BEETERE

BEERESR
3958 IR A $2

FRBRBEREEV B REE
RSB QSR AT 8B R :

Carrying
amounts as at
31 March 2018

under HKFRS 9 under HKAS 39

RE
ERUBHSE
ZRIZEIHH

SE39R T BB HE B

Loans and
receivables

B & E W
KRIA

Loans and
receivables

B3R R
FKIA

Loans and
receivables

ERREK
FKIE

Amortised cost

B 55 K AR

Amortised cost

B 55 K AR

Amortised cost

B 55 A A

R i&
BEGTER
EIHERN
20184 3A31RH
#Y B {8
HK$’000

TAET

100,180

3,383

39,488

Carrying
amounts as at
1 April 2018
under HKFRS 9
BiE
ERMBRE
Z B 95K R
20184 A1H
K ARE &
HK$’000
FET

100,109

3,383

39,488
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 & = 201943 HA31H It FE

2.1 Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs 21 MAFIT RKETES
(Continued) B S 3R 45 2 Bl (@)
HKFRS 9 (Continued) BBV HEEAFIF @

The following tables summarised the impact of TR B EZEH B YK
transition to HKFRS 9 on the opening balance of R4 2 B 55 95 S & 22018
retained profits as of 1 April 2018: F4R18 2 BUIRE & A

BB -
Note HK$’000
Bt 5 TAT
Retained profits R 5 A
Retained profits as at 31 March 2018 R2018F 3 A31 H ZR& & 7 38,312
Recognition of additional expected credit ~ FEFRLA F K IB 2 FBINEBHEE
losses on: E 18 :
— trade receivables — B 5 EIKRIE 2.1(ii (71)
Restated retained profits as at 1 April 2018 7201844 A1 H Z & & 3|
R B % A 38,241

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has changed the Group’s
impairment model by replacing the HKAS 39 “incurred
loss model” to the “expected credit losses (“ECL”)
model”.

HKFRS 9 requires the Group to recognised ECL for
trade receivables and financial assets at amortised
costs earlier than HKAS 39. Except trade receivables,
the impairment of other financial assets measured at
amortised cost that are subject to ECL model is
immaterial at the date of transition.

KB BT BREERSE
oSk Bk B A £ B B EE
XN A[TBEHEEEE(E
HEEBRDEXIRRE
Be st ERIE395 B &£
EEER] -

FEEVBREERFIRR
EASEERERE LGS
% B 55 395% AT AR E B ] Bt
B 5 W R IR K 1R 5K
ROz 2 mEERRBE
HEEEBE -REZRUKK
THAN - B SHA AR B R B
XEHAEEBREEAMR
ZEMEREEZRER
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For the year ended 31 March 2019  #{ £201943 831 H It F &

2.1 Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs 21 MAFIT RKETES
(Continued) B E|EZER (&

HKFRS 9 (Continued) ERMBHREERNEITR @

Under HKFRS 9, the losses allowances are measured
on either of the following bases: (1) 12 months ECL:
these are the ECL that result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the reporting date:
and (2) lifetime ECL: these are ECL that result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument.

ECL are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an
approximation to the assets’ original effective interest
rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for
trade receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified approach
and has calculated ECL based on lifetime ECL. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is based
on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

BEEBUBHREERFEQ
5% EEEERATER —
BEHEES S (N)12/E A B
HEEBE: AR®REBRRE
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For the year ended 31 March 2019  #{ Z20194 3 831 H IE F &

2.1 Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs 21 MAFIT RKETES
(Continued) ,\71 i%iﬁ &2 8 @)
HKFRS 9 (Continued) 7B B 7% R 5 22 B S5 95K (40

For other financial assets measured at amortised cost,
the ECL are based on the 12-month ECL. The
12-month ECL is the portion of the lifetime ECL that
results from default events on a financial instrument that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
However, when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since origination, the allowance will be based
on the lifetime ECL. When determining whether the
credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue
cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis, based on the
Group’s historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default
when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions; or (2) the financial asset is more than
90 days past due.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019  #{ £201943 831 H It F &

2.1 Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs 21 MAFIT RKETES
(Continued) B 75 3R 45 2 Bl (@)

HKFRS 9 (Continued) ERMBHREERNEITR @

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial asset has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset
is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting
date. A financial asset is determined to have low credit
risk if (i) it has a low risk of default; (i) the borrower has
a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term; and (i) adverse changes in
economic and business conditions in the longer term
may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the
borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECL
is the maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at
amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

h%ﬁ&tt%ﬁi firl & &t
BENGEERRNRBRER
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 & = 201943 HA31H It FE

2.1 Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs 21 MAFIT RKETES

(Continued) B EmEZER (&

HKFRS 9 (Continued) =B I 2 RIS 95 (@)
As at 1 April 2018, the directors of the Company MR2018FE4 A1H » K A 7
reviewed and assessed the Group’s financial assets on EEZRES ST REE
that date that are subject to ECL requirements for Bl 2 B FE FRHES
impairment using reasonable and supportable RN A= NS Bz
information that is available without undue cost or effort AESZEEREEER &
in accordance with the requirements of HKFRS 9. The BEFABAEESHEE
results of the assessment and the impact are as RZBEEARXHBEHEES
follows: ?El Frii R R (B o 71 1d 2

EREZENAT :
o The increase in impairment allowance for trade o RIBEZE BBk
receivables upon the transition to HKFRS 9 as of LERFEFER B S
1 April 2018 were approximately HK$71,000. The U B R R (B A
adjustment to the opening retained profits as at 1 N B E20184F4 A
April 2018 amounted to HK$71,000. 18 A& #)71,0007% T °

M2018F4 A1 8 % &7
H 1R BB i F) {E H 78 &

71,0008 JT °
. Other financial assets of the Group included ° AEBz7HMSGE
deposits and other receivables and cash and EREKES RHEME
cash equivalents. The effect of applying the ECL WEHELAERS KB
model on 1 April 2018 was insignificant. 2 FE Y- MN20185F

AR1BERBEHEE
BEEANFEL T
BAo
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For the year ended 31 March 2019  #{ £201943 831 H It F &

2.1 Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs 21 MAFIT RKETES
(Continued) B 75 3R 45 2 Bl (@)

HKFRS 9 (Continued) EB Y KHREEREIR @)

The following table reconciles the impairment allowance TREHFIR2018F3 A31 H

measured in accordance with HKAS 39 (under incurred RIEE B @t % B 8395k

loss model) as at 31 March 2018 to the new impairment (BEEELEEBER) T

allowance measured in accordance with HKFRS 9 (under = 2R E B EERN2018F 4

ECL model) as at 1 April 2018: RA1BREBEEBG KR EE

AIFOR(REBEHEES
BEA)FEZHREER

Ml 2 $BR -
Impairment
Impairment Effect of allowance
allowance adoption of under
under HKAS 39 HKFRS 9 HKFRS 9
REEE BREEBHK
SEER HABEBHMK WMEER
H395E 2 & 2R FEIH 2
BERE FoHEzvE AERE
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT

Impairment allowances on: | 71| & 18 2 i (B & &
— trade receivables — B 5 EIKIE — 7 71
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 & = 201943 HA31H It FE

2.1 Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 (Continued)

The Group has applied the transitional provision in
HKFRS 9 such that HKFRS 9 was generally adopted
without restating comparative information. The
reclassifications and the adjustments arising from the
new ECL rules are therefore not reflected in the
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2018, but
are recognised in the statement of financial position on
1 April 2018. This mean that differences in the carrying
amounts of financial assets resulting from the adoption
of HKFRS 9 are recognised in retained profits as at 1
April 2018. Accordingly, the information presented for
2018 does not reflect the requirements of HKFRS 9 but
rather those of HKAS 39.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (“HKFRS 15”)

HKFRS 15 supersedes HKAS 11 Construction Contracts,
HKAS 18 Revenue and related interpretations. HKFRS 15 has
established a five-steps model to account for revenue arising
from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is
recognised at the amount that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring goods or services to a customer.

21 R REIERT & B
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For the year ended 31 March 2019  #{ £201943 831 H It F &

2.1 Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs

(Continued)
HKFRS 15 (Continued)

Revenues are recognised when or as the control of the asset
is transferred to the customer. Depending on the terms of the
contract and the laws that apply to the contract, control of
the asset may be transferred over time or at a point in time.
Control of the asset is transferred over time if the Group’s
performance:

— provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

— creates and enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

— do not create an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the asset. The progress
towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation
is measured based on one of the following methods that best
depict the Group’s performance in satisfying the performance
obligation:

— direct measurements of the value transferred by the
Group to the customer; or

—  the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the
performance obligation.
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2.1 Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs

(Continued)
HKFRS 15 (Continued)

Under the requirement of HKFRS 15, revenue from sale of
goods and provision of services by the Group will be
recognised when the customer obtained control of the
promised goods or services in the contract. For the revenue
from the contract related to the provision of routine services,
service income is recognised over time on a straight-line
basis over the contract terms as the work is performed. For
services that are provided on ad-hoc basis, service income is
recognised at a point in time upon completion of the provision
of such ad-hoc services. The directors of the Company have
assessed and considered the adoption of HKFRS 15 does
not have a significant impact on the timing of revenue
recognition of the Group from provision of services.

Incremental costs incurred directly attributable to obtain a
contract, if recoverable, are capitalised as contract assets
and subsequently amortised when the related revenue is
recognised.

HKFRS 15 requires an entity to adjust the transaction price
for the time value of money when a contract contains a
significant financing component, regardless of whether the
payments from customers are received significantly in
advance of revenue recognition or significantly deferred.

The Group has reassessed its business model and contract
terms to assess the effects of applying the new standard on
the Group’s financial statements. The management of the
Group considered that HKFRS 15 did not result in significant
impact on the Group’s accounting policies.
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2.1 Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs

(Continued)
HKFRS 15 (Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, a receivable is recognised only if the Group
has an unconditional right to consideration. If the Group
recognises the related revenue before being unconditionally
entitled to the consideration for the promised goods and
services in the contract, then the entitlement to consideration
is classified as a contract asset. Similarly, a contract liability,
rather than a payable, is recognised when a customer pays
consideration, or is contractually required to pay consideration
and the amount is already due, before the Group recognises
the related revenue. For a single contract with the customer,
either a net contract asset or a net contract liability is
presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets and
contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on
a net basis.

The Group has completed the assessment of the impact of
HKFRS 15, which has no material impact on the Group. No
contract asset and contract liability is recognised upon
transition.

The Group has elected to use the cumulative effect transition
method by recognising any impact on the initial application as
an adjustment to the opening retained profits as at 1 April
2018 with no practical expedient under HKFRS 15 being
applied. Therefore, comparative information would not be
restated and continue to be reported under HKAS 18. As
allowed under HKFRS 15, the Group has applied the new
requirement only to contracts that were not completed before
1 April 2018.
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2.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the
Group’s financial statements, have been issued, but are not
yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Group.
The Group’s current intention is to apply these changes on
the date they become effective.

HKAS 19

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 16

HK(FRIC)-Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRSs

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement (amendments)’
Business Combinations?

Leases'

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation’
Definition of Material®

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle'

Conceptual Framework for Financial ~ Revised Conceptual Framework for

Reporting

1

Financial Reporting?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
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2.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been 22 EEMEBEEMARERZH

issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

Other than as noted below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the adoption of the other new or revised
standards would not result in significant impact on amounts
reported in the Group’s financial statements.

HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede
HKAS 17 “Leases” and related interpretations, introduces a
single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to
recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of
more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low
value. Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to
recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the
underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing its
obligation to make lease payments. Accordingly, a lessee
should recognise depreciation of the right-of-use asset and
interest on the lease liability, and also classifies cash
repayments of the lease liability into a principal portion and an
interest portion and presents them in the statement of cash
flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the lease liability are
initially measured on a present value basis. The measurement
includes non-cancellable lease payments and also includes
payments to be made in optional periods if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend the lease,
or to exercise an option to terminate the lease. This
accounting treatment is significantly different from the lessee
accounting for leases that are classified as operating leases
under the predecessor standard, HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those
two types of leases differently.

i REITERBUMBR
HZ A @)

B TEBN AARNEERE
S ORRE AT ST e AT A
TS EHYAEENERES
WU CEELBALE -

EBUMKEBREERE165
— e

BB R EERFE169 B ER
EARERRE BT ERE17
SIHE] REEARE E5| AR
—EAAAGHERER YT
ABARARBBI2EAZHREAE
HEBREELRAE KIEHES
EERBKEBEEAERNR &
BmE RIEFEMERSER
F169 A ABEREHEE
EEXRREEHEREHEES
E)RHEaBE(ERREFEEX
NAEEFRIE) - Bt - & A FERE
REAEEETENEEEET
B UTHRHEHEEBGBZHESERS
HAEAEHDRAELD LR
HeEREXRRKNES < fboh - FH
BEEMMEBBEVSKRAERE
EFE-FFERETATRERAE
3 MEFEEABAASERE T
BiTEEEREEER SR ITHE
ERERIEHAEZERLT  #HRE
EHEARAER 2SR tE5
RIS FEREESERFTES
FSrTERFEI7TROEALEHE Y
HEMNABASTEZBREDTR -

SREBASFEME  EEYB
HEERNF16HKABME AT HE
SR EREATHENHEA SR
EeFM HEAEEREEE
DHERKEHEXRERE I
B MEHEETITRNEE
# -



Annual Report 2019 20195 F#k

Notes to the Financial Statements

B # R R RE

For the year ended 31 March 2019 & = 201943 HA31H It FE

2.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been

(a)

(b)

(c)

issued but are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

As set out in note 26, the total operating lease commitment
of the Group in respect of rented premises as at 31 March
2019 amounted to HK$765,000. The directors of the
Company anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 16 would
not result in significant impact on the Group’s result but
expect that the above operating lease commitments will be
recognised as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in the
Group’s financial statements.

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “HKFRS”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance which concern the preparation of financial
statements. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange.

Basis of measurement
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollars (“‘HK$”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (“HK$’000”) except otherwise indicated.
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41 XBEHRGEEEE

4.1 Business combination and basis of

consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries. Inter-
company transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are eliminated in
full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition or up to
the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with
those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value
of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests
issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are principally measured at
acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured at acquisition-date fair
value and the resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit
or loss. The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, to measure the non-controlling interests that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary either at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value unless another measurement basis is
required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred are
expensed unless they are incurred in issuing equity
instruments in which case the costs are deducted from
equity.
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Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from new
information obtained within the measurement period (a
maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date) about the
fair value at the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration classified as an
asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able to
exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all
three of the following elements are present: power over the
investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the
investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of
these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, interests in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

4.1

4.2

4.3

¥KEMHRESEEm

RKREBI K TERZEMIAR
BRUEBEAZAFERER - H
BRHREZABREXRABRER
AEREEARERAYE LT =
BA)AMRESAEBERKERBS
ZRAFEZHERETT EEEE
R-DBEREEXRBEZHAR
EZREEMERBARBRYNIER
HRER

By B8 2 7]

Rl RNCTI NN TR R R 2 2]
BOREHR - UT=AR%X2
HwmRE  AAREHZEREY
ROHREHARNEN  REE
BB R A& A [ B SR ) &
NMAEBENZEZFTAZDOHRE
BN ERAZEABRBREM
ZEEHEARAEHRESE
SEM TGS

RARRB RN ER P - KB
N A) Y HE o 4R AR A R R 1B B 1B
(A Fk - KRB A E R A
XERDKRERREEEA
BE o

ME - BB RRERKARR T
WERRFTREBRIE-

ME BEMKBEORABEHR
BEEACBERHBEBEER
THHY A




WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED Xk|E#ZEREBERA T

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 ¥R 2R MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 & £20194 3 31 H [t F &

43 Y¥ BERRE@

4.3 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on the following property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line basis to allocate their
costs less their residual value over their estimated useful lives.
The useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.
The useful lives are as follows:

Over the term of lease
Over the shorter of lease
term or useful life

Leasehold land and buildings
Leasehold improvement

Office furniture and equipment 15-25%
Machinery and equipment 25%
Motor vehicles 25%

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sale proceeds
and its carrying amount, and is recognised in profit or loss on
disposal.
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Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on the straight-
line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised as an
integrated part of the total rental expense, over the term of
the lease.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.
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(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 April (A) E20185F4H1H & K&
2018 AHETEE

4.6 Financial instruments

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not
at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade
receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the transaction
price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.
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4.6 Financial instruments (Continued) 46 €@ T A @)

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 April (A) E20185F4H1H & K&
2018 (Continued) AR ST BE @

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. The following are the
measurement category into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets
at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest rate method. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any
gain on derecognition is recognised in profit or
loss.
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(A) E20185F4H1H & K&
FA B9 & 5T BUR ()

4.6 Financial instruments (Continued)

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 April
2018 (Continued)

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECL on
trade receivables and financial assets measured
at amortised cost. The ECL are measured on
either of the following bases: (1) 12 months ECL:
these are the ECL that result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the reporting
date; and (2) lifetime ECL: these are ECL that
result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The
maximum period considered when estimating
ECL is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019  #{ Z20194 3 831 H IE F &

4.6 Financial instruments (Continued) 46 €@ T A @)
(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 April (A) E20185F4H1H & K&
2018 (Continued) A e BR @
The Group has elected to measure loss AEBEREFAS

allowances for trade receivables using HKFRS 9
simplified approach and has calculated ECL
based on lifetime ECL. The Group has established
a provision matrix that is based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors
and the economic environment.

For other financial assets at amortised cost, the
ECL are based on the 12-month ECL. However,
when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since origination, the allowance will be
based on the lifetime ECL. When determining
whether the credit risk of a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition and
when estimating ECL, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is
relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information analysis, based on the
Group’s historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking
information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than 30 days past due.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019  #{ £201943 831 H It F &

4.6 Financial instruments (Continued) 46 @ T B @)

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 April (A) E20185F4H1H & K&
2018 (Continued) AR ST B E @

The Group considers a financial asset to be
credit-impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely
to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held); or (2) the financial
asset is more than 90 days past due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets
is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the
gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset. For non credit-impaired financial
assets interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount.

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair
value and financial liabilities at amortised costs
are initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 & = 201943 HA31H It FE

4.6 Financial instruments (Continued) 46 @ T B @)

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 April (A) E20185F4H1H & K&
2018 (Continued) FA B9 & 5T BUR ()

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilites at amortised cost including
trade payable, accruals, deposits and other
payables and bank borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
or payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019  #{ £201943 831 H It F &

4.6 Financial instruments (Continued) 46 @ T B @)
(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 April (A) E20185F4H1H & K&
2018 (Continued) A2 5 BUR ()
The Group derecognises a financial asset when EEBEeMEEZR

the contractual rights to the future cash flows in
relation to the financial asset expire or when the
financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired.

Where the Group issues its own equity
instruments to a creditor to settle a financial
liability in whole or in part as a result of
renegotiating the terms of that liability, the equity
instruments issued are the consideration paid and
are recognised initially and measured at their fair
value on the date the financial liability or part
thereof is extinguished. If the fair value of the
equity instruments issued cannot be reliably
measured, the equity instruments are measured
to reflect the fair value of the financial liability
extinguished. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability or part thereof
extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss for the year.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019  #{ Z20194 3 831 H IE F &

4.6 Financial instruments (Continued) 46 @ T B @)

(B) Accounting policies applied until 31 March (B) Bl £20184F3 HA31H
2018 ERzaEBE
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised EAEEBATESADKEX
on the consolidated statement of financial position MR S EELS
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual BmBEREAEMBERILER
provisions of the instrument. R o

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which
the asset was acquired. Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are initially measured
at fair value and all other financial assets are
initially measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets. Regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. A regular way purchase or sale is a
purchase or sale of a financial asset under a
contract whose terms require delivery of the asset
within the time frame established generally by
regulation or convention in the marketplace
concerned.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They arise
principally through the provision of goods to
customers (trade debtors), and also incorporate
other types of contractual monetary asset.
Subsequent to initial recognition, they are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019  #{ £201943 831 H It F &

4.6 Financial instruments (Continued) 46 @ T B @)
(B) Accounting policies applied until 31 March (B) B Z2018%3H31H
2018 (Continued) FE R 2z & 5t BUER (40)
The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting AREEBRSHEBHRK
period, whether there is any objective evidence A S E A REE
that financial asset is impaired. Financial asset is EHELNSREELIR
impaired if there is objective evidence of HAE - B X B & &
impairment as a result of one or more events that BREVIBEREE
has occurred after the initial recognition of the B LR —IA D % 18
asset and that event has an impact on the EHERLRHEE L
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset HBE - MA@ =G
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of HemBEEMTARRK
impairment may include: REREZHEEN

ARG 2REE
EHBRBE- BERE

B Re B g
—  significant financial difficulty of the debtor; - BEBAEBHEKX
B 75 IR B
— a breach of contract, such as a default or — ERAEXDHm
delinquency in interest or principal AEEEXAR
payments; B g A&
E
/N
—  granting concession to a debtor because of = B A& B
debtor’s financial difficulty; or 755 PR 8 i ) H {E
HES Bk
— it becoming probable that the debtor will — BB AETRE
enter bankruptcy or other financial EskiETT H 4B

reorganisation. T%EMH -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019  #{ Z20194 3 831 H IE F &

4.6 Financial instruments (Continued) 46 @ T B @)

(B) Accounting policies applied until 31 March (B) Bl £20184F3 HA31H
2018 (Continued) FE R 2 &5 LR (@)

For loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
and directly reduces the carrying amount of
financial asset when there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of financial
asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. When any part of financial asset is
determined as uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account for the relevant
financial asset.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent
periods when an increase in the asset’'s
recoverable amount can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to a restriction that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair
value and financial liabilities at amortised costs
are initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.
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4.6 Financial instruments (Continued) 46 @ T B @)
(B) Accounting policies applied until 31 March (B) Bl £20184F3 HA31H
2018 (Continued) FE A 2 & 5T BUR ()
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities at amortised cost are EBEKAGEZ

subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method. The related interest
expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
or payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 & = 201943 HA31H It FE

4.6 Financial instruments (Continued)

(B) Accounting policies applied until 31 March
2018 (Continued)

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows in
relation to the financial asset expire or when the
financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

4.7 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represented cash and bank balances.

4.8 Revenue recognition

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 April
2018
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.
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4.8 W =R m)
(A) E20185F4H1H & K&

4.8 Revenue recognition (Continued)
(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 April

2018 (Continued)

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
service may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or service is transferred over
time if the Group’s performance:

° provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to
date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the goods or service.
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4.8 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 April

2018 (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit of
financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amounts receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception.
Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to the
Group, revenue recognised under that contract includes

Annual Report 2019 20195 F#k
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4.8 W FHER @)

(A) E20185F4H1H & K&
Az &5 BUR (@)
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the interest expense accreted on the contract liability FEEXHNBEWNE ZFEH

under the effective interest method. For contracts
where the period between the payment and the transfer
of the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a
significant financing component, using the practical

expedient in HKFRS 15.
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(i)  Service income is recognised in the accounting ()  BRAS U A TE 32 4 AR 75

period in which the services are rendered. For the
service contract relates to routine services, the
service income will be recognised on a straight-
line basis over the contract terms as the work is
performed. For services that are provided on ad-
hoc basis, service income is recognised upon
completion of the provision of such ad-hoc
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(i) Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the () FEUWAZLE B R =X

principal outstanding at the applicable interest

ERARBEEAXASERE

rate. EERG o

(i) Rental income under operating leases is (i) HLEHEE2H2HKA
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease RESEERHEEH
terms. R o

(v)  Income from sales of goods is recognised at point vy EmHEKRARE R

in time when the goods are delivered to

customers and title has passed.
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4.8 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(A)

(B)

Accounting policies applied from 1 April
2018 (Continued)

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for services that the Group
has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration
is due) from the customer.

Contract asset is recognised when the customers retain
retention money to secure the due performance of the
contracts. Any amount previously recognised as a
contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables at the
point at which it is invoiced to the customer. If the
considerations (including advances received from
customers) exceeds the revenue recognised to date
under the output method then the Group recognises a
contract liability for the difference.

Accounting policies applied until 31 March
2018

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for sales of goods and services in
the normal course of business, net of rebates and
discounts.

The Group recognised revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities as described in note 4.8(A)() to (iv).
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4.9 Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred
tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts
used for tax purposes. Except for recognised assets and
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profits,
deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to the
expected manner in which the carrying amount of the asset
or liability is realised or settled and that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates
and jointly controlled entities, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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4.9 Income taxes (Continued)

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented in
net if, and only if,

@)

()

the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts; and

intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities in net if, and only if,

@

the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(i) different taxable entities which intend either to
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

4.10 Employee benefits

(i)

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected to be
settled wholly before twelve months after the end of the
annual reporting period in which the employees render
the related service. Short term employee benefits are
recognised in the year when the employees render the
related service.

4.9 FTBH @)

EHEZLRTIBNE - BV
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4.10 Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Defined contribution retirement plan
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss when the
services are rendered by the employees.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of termination
benefits.

Long service payments

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long service
amounts payable on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance is the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the
current and prior periods. Liabilities recognised in
respect of long service payment are measured at the
present value of the estimated future cash outflows
expected to be made by the Group in respect of
services provided by employees up to the reporting
date. The cost of providing the long service payment
liabilities is charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. The long service payment
liabilities are determined by the recent remuneration of
the eligible employees based on the requirement of
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, and is reduced by
entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement
plans that are attributable to contributions made by the
Group.

4.11 Impairment loss of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment and interests in subsidiaries
are subject to impairment testing.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of these assets to determine whether there
is any indication that these assets’ carrying amount may not
be recoverable.

410 E EEH @)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)
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JMEEREEREEE @

411 Impairment loss of non-financial assets

(Continued)

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value less
costs to sell and value in use) of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

4.12 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which require
a substantial period of time to be ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.
Income earned on temporary investments of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on those assets is
deducted from borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

4.13 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive as a
result of a past event, which will probably result in an outflow
of economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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414 Equity-settled share-based payment

transactions

The fair value of services received is determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the date of grant
and is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, with a corresponding increase in equity under the
heading of share option reserve.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in the share option reserve will
be transferred to retained profits.

4.15 Related parties

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the parent of the Company.
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4.15 Related parties (Continued) 4.15 BB B 75 ()
(o)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following b) MEE TIEMGEHE - BNE
conditions apply: PREAREERBE:

()  The entity and the Group are members of the () MERAEAEEBER
same group (which means that each parent, —SBEXNERAF (A%
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the BRG] WHEA
others). ISR S NEIE

It &) »

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the i) —HAEBRS—EB
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a B2 NRIE & B
member of a group of which the other entity is a ¥(HBZ—EBEBAEKE
member). RAEIZEEETKE

AElZHE RASE
B

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third iy MEEBHAER —F
party. =R AEERE-

(v) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and vy —HEBERE=FE
the other entity is an associate of the third entity. BERHE2bhE MR

—ERARZE=TE
BBREE AR -

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for V) ZEBARASENHE
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an AEBEBEZER
entity related to the Group. BLIE B 18N %S A) B

BiempEtal o

(v  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a V) FZEBEX@FPHERA
person identified in (). T ok S AL R AR o

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence Vi) @O BT A B A L
over the entity or is a member of the key HZEBEEATE
management personnel of the entity (or of a NHBZER(HZE
parent of the entity). BNSAR)EEER

(vii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it (vii) ZERBIZERBR —
is a part, provides key management personnel Bz EBEMRAKE
services to the Group or to the parent of the A &l A AN & B s AR &
Group. EMARRRHEES

BABRT -
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4.15 Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

4.16 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal financial
information reported to the executive directors for their
decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s business
components and for their review of the performance of those
components. The business components in the internal
financial information reported to the executive directors are
determined following the Group’s major operations.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” are
the same as those used in its financial statements prepared
under HKFRSs.

4.15 B 75 (®)
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In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors
of the Company are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results differ
from these estimates.

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year is set out below.

5.1 Estimated useful lives of property, plant
and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for the Group’s property, plant and
equipment based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. The Group will revise the depreciation charge
where useful lives are different to those previously estimated,
or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

The Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment in
accordance with the accounting policies stated in note 4.3.
The estimated useful lives reflect the directors’ estimates of
the periods that the Group intends to derive future economic
benefits from the use of these assets.

ERAKEEEHBRE  ARAESF
FERBEAMEINEMIREH 2EE
BB EZREEF G HE - SRR
ReFHARARBRRREBEL
BREAASMBEIEMEAREL - BR
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Impairment of financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS 9
across all categories of financial assets requires judgement, in
particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future
cash flows when determining impairment losses and the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These
estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in
which can result in different levels of allowances.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk for exposures
since initial recognition by comparing the risk of default
occurring over the expected life between the reporting date
and the date of initial recognition. The Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort for this purpose. This
includes quantitative and qualitative information and also,
forward-looking analysis.

Provisions

When there is a probability that an outflow of economic
benefits will occur due to a present obligation resulting from a
past event, and that amount is reasonably estimate, a
corresponding amount of provision is recognised in the
financial statements. However, no provision is recognised for
costs that need to be incurred to operate in the future.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognised
liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will affect the income
tax and deferred tax provision in the period in which such
determination is made.

5.2

5.3
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The information reported to the executive directors of the Company, RAARABRITES(NETELLERRER
who are the chief operating decision makers for the purpose of F)ERUAELIEERLFHRIEHN
resources allocation and assessment of performance, is the BRIVIBER ST ERE LR FRER
financial information of the Group as a whole as reported under REFBBRENHKER - AEERD A
HKFRSs. The Group is currently organised into two operating LA R & 48 & 93 6 -

divisions as follows:

(1) Environmental hygiene and related services () REHERBBRE

2)  Airline catering support services Q2 MZEERIIERY

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as & IR E) & st B SR B AN & E MY 5
the Group’s accounting policies described in note 4.16. For the A16FTI M SR ER - BERD
purpose of monitoring segment performance and allocating MWL EDLEHEER :

resources between segments:

— all assets are allocated to operating segments other than tax — KBRuUKEHBEEIESNESEE

recoverable and cash and cash equivalents. MINFTEBEEH DEZKEE D
7 o

— all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than — KBREBETEIZIREMNBREBEINAEAE
bank borrowings and tax payable. BEBEYOREREDEL o

— all profit or loss are allocated to operating segments other — BEZEWES BEKAKN TERH
than directors’ emoluments, finance costs, income tax Y REBEENSE T EH M A
expense and certain other income and expenses incurred by FREZI FTERBRESEEL

the head office. EoEp e
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.

7 EE R @
B EZ2019F3A31MBHLLFE

For the year ended 31 March 2019

Environmental

hygiene and Airline catering
related services support services Total
REHER =R
18 B AR 7% ¥ E R % st
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FET F&ET TFHET
Revenue 1 z=
Sales to external customers HINBR P HE
— recognised over time — R EERER 485,670 38,553 524,223
— recognised at point in time — LR EER 13,101 - 13,101
498,771 38,553 537,324
Segment results D EBELE 36,566 3,431 39,997
Directors’ emoluments =0 (10,193)
Finance costs A& B AN (482)
Unallocated corporate income and 7 2 it 22 & Y¢ A
expenses, net FRY  FEE (3,303)
Profit before income tax & BT 18 %1 B i 26,019
Income tax expense FEHAX (5,177)
Profit for the year F A A 20,842
Segment assets D ERE E 152,463 5,312 157,775
Tax recoverable a] 4g [ 7 18 67
Cash and cash equivalents BHEeRESEEY 33,844
Total assets BEE 191,686
Segment liabilities HEAE 54,276 2,241 56,517
Bank borrowings H|ATIE N 9,364
Tax payable FE{ BB 1,614
Total liabilities BEEHE 67,495
Other segment information Hih 2 HEHR
Depreciation e (5,044) = (5,044)
Additions to non-current assets JEm B E E A0 3,909 - 3,909
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For the year ended 31 March 2018

Revenue
Sales to external customers

Segment results

Directors’ emoluments
Finance costs

Unallocated corporate income and

expenses, net

Profit before income tax

Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Segment assets
Tax recoverable
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Segment liabilities
Bank borrowings
Tax payables

Total liabilities

Other segment information
Depreciation
Additions to non-current assets

Y s
HINREPHE

ok

DEEE

E=Me

BE KA

AR ABA R
X R

B P 15 50 A1 i 7

CIREE A2

5 75 I

DEEE
AJ Y [ 75 1R
ReLREFEY

HEE

DEAE
RIT 18
FEf IR IR

BfERE

~ 1=

Hitt 2 &R
e
R B E E IR N

KIEZEREBERDF

BHZEZ2018F3HA3MHLEE

Environmental
hygiene and Airline catering
related services  support services
REHER iz B
AR 7% &R
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
467,745 40,361
36,094 3,420
142,980 3,619
50,969 2,608
(3,748) =
5,237 —

Total

Mgt
HK$'000
THT

508,106

39,514

(10,459)
(1,035)

(1,133)

26,887

(5,083)

21,804

146,599
12
39,488

186,099

53,577
17,533
1,549

72,659

(3,748)
5,237
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The Company is an investment holding company and the principal
place of the Group’s operation is in Hong Kong. For the purpose of
segment information disclosures under HKFRS 8, Hong Kong is
regarded as the Group’s place of domicile. All the Group’s revenue
and non-current assets are attributable to Hong Kong for the years
ended 31 March 2019 and 2018, being the single geographical
region.

The geographical location of customers is based on the location at
which the services were provided. All the Group’s revenue from
external customers is sourced from Hong Kong.

Revenue from customers which individually contributed 10% or
more of the Group’s revenue, are set out as follows:

Customer A (note 1) ZEPEABFFED)
Customer B (note 2) ZFEB(KizE2)
Notes:

(1) It is a customer for environmental hygiene and related services for the

years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018.

2 For the year ended 31 March 2019, revenue of HK$28,837,000 was
generated from environmental hygiene and related services while revenue
of HK$29,383,000 was generated from airline catering support services
for this customer.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, revenue of HK$27,205,000 was
generated from environmental hygiene and related services while revenue
of HK$31,022,000 was generated from airline catering support services
for this customer.

RKARABEREERAR  AEBEXE
KEMM RS - B EE BT B R
ERERFEHETOBERBEMS -
EEWREAEBES  AEEE
220194 N20184FE3A31H IEFE K
FTERENRIERBEETRE E—i
[ &H o

TP IR AL B DA P AR (AR 7%t Ak 2% K
B AKBEXRBIBEFLWMAA s
BRNEE

BRME R EBUKREF10%HIA LB EF
WaEHT

2018
20184F
HK$’000
F# T

171,100 173,798
58,220 58,227

GEX

(1) HAEHZE20199F k201843 A31H IEF
EMREHERBERENES -

(2 B =201943A31H It F E: K =
28,837,000 7T 3K A 3R 55 &7 £ M A0 BA AR
7% T U 529,383,000 JT 2K B [ It &
FRENMZEERTIERE

#H £2018F3A31H It &£ F K =
27,205,000 7T 2R B IR 3% &7 & & 45 B8 AR
% 1 U 2531,022,00078 JT & B & it &
FRENME=ERTIERE -
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7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND 7. e RkEMBARKE
GAINS
Revenue represents the income from environmental hygiene and WS REIRE R E MEERE AR
related services and airline catering support services rendered. MEBERTERBATELENKA -
(@) Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group’s revenue @ TXEHINEAEEEZERG 2K ﬁ?’i
from major services. The Group’s revenue recognised within DT REBR BRI RS
the scope of HKFRS 15 are as follows: R 155 25 B A FE 38 2 W &= XZD
™~

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHE T F# T

Revenue: 5
Environmental hygiene and related services 3835 &7 4 & 4 F8 AR 75 498,771 467,745
Airline catering support services MBS IERE 38,553 40,361
537,324 508,106
Note: During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group has initially Mk - 8 220193 H31H IEEE » K
applied HKFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method. Under this EBERUBREEEFEAER
method, the comparative information for the year ended 31 March EBMIERELEBFE155 - B
2018 is not restated and was prepared in accordance with HKAS Z AR B E22018FE3H31H Ik
18. FEHOEBREHMTESES] HTy
BERBEBGHERFE18HREE -
(o) As at 31 March 2019, the aggregated amount of the (b) TH2019FE3A31H, P EEEAREE
transaction price allocated to the remaining performance REGHNETHRTREHEENR
obligations under the Group’s existing contracts as follows: SEBEWNT -
2019
20194
HK$’000
THET
Expected to be recognised within one year 18 8374 — F A #E R 387,546
Expected to be recognised after one year TR —FEER 252,611

640,157
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7. Wk EAMWARIKE @

GAINS (continued)
() The Group’s other income and gains recognised during the ) AEERFAEIRNEMBAR
year are as follows: W
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TAT
Other income and gains: H AU A RURES ¢

Bank interest income RITF B WA 6 3

Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME  BER
equipment RAEFT S W 2 - 100
Sales of scrap materials RERL$E & 665 527
Rental income HE WA 69 —
Sundry income LSRN - 57
740 687

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. BhE R A

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
Interest on bank borrowings RITHEFAE 482 1,085
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &= 201943 A31H It FE

9. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. BRETBH A=A
Profit before income tax for the year has been arrived at after ERNBFAEHA SN BENEG (51
charging/(crediting): A)

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHE T F# T

Auditor’s remuneration % R B &
— audit services — FBi R 560 560
— non-audit services — TR 280 180
840 740
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses EREHIHFEERKKN 16,104 14,203
Depreciation e 5,044 3,748
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plantand HE %% - HE R&RERE
equipment &8 () 52 (100)
Impairment on trade receivables Z 5 FE W IE R & 54 =
Minimum lease payments under operating THREFAKLESHEETH
leases for land and buildings: HEBEMK:
— staff quarters —BIE® 280 245
— office —HRAE 1,152 576
1,432 821
Employee costs (including directors’ EENA(RIEEEFHH)
remuneration):
— Wages, salaries and allowances —T1& %4 Nhah 296,488 306,473
— Retirement scheme contributions — RIRFT S 12,926 13,297
— Share-based compensation — U BEEHEE - 16

309,414 319,786
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For the year ended 31 March 2019  #{ Z20194 3 831 H IE F &

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided in accordance with two-
tiered profits tax rate regime, the first HK$2,000,000 of assessable
profits of a qualifying corporation of the Group is taxed at 8.25%
and the assessable profits above HK$2,000,000 are taxed at
16.5% (2018: flat rate of 16.5%).

BB G B AR 15 B AR 6 5T 12 B
fH AEEEG &K EE 52,000,000
T JE 3R B i A 1%28.25% 2 B R B 4 B
T8 - i #8 82,000,000 JT ) & 5% 7 0
F4216.5% 2 Tt % 24 4% i 78 (2018 4F -
F—HEHE16.5%) °

2018

20184

HK$'000

FAT

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax EVEAREIE — BB A S 5,157 4,800
Current tax — over-provision in prior years BNEARIE — @B T B R (22) (59)
Deferred taxation (note 21) FIEFE (M 7E21) 42 338
5,177 5,083

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting profit
at applicable tax rate:

Profit before income tax BR P45 B0 A1 g A

Tax at applicable tax rate (note) %2 i FA A 2= (B 5E)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AN A HOR S R TS Y &
Over-provision in prior years BEFEHEERE

Tax concession HIEER

Income tax expense Fris B =

Note:

For the year ended 31 March 2019, Hong Kong Profits tax of the qualified entity
of the Group is calculated in accordance with the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The profits of other Group entities in Hong Kong not qualifying for the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at the flat rate of
16.5%.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, Hong Kong Profits tax was calculated at a
flat rate of 16.5% of the estimated assessable profits.

FEHEE R ER R H R
5 4 B

2018
20184

HK$’000

T& T

26,019 26,887
4,128 4,436
1,131 792
(22) (55)
(60) (90)
5177 5,083

HZE2019F3ABIBILEFE  AEEAER
ERNBBFNESHRBAESH WA GHE -
TREMNEHMAFNERNEAEEEMES
BB HH F S 4 B 1R 16.5% Y 5 — B R B TR
I8 o

HE2018F3ABIBILFE  EBFERTIIE
b EtFE R R E M16.5% M 5t — K5 & -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 & £20194 3 31 H [t F &

(@) Directors’ remuneration (a) E= %M
Salaries,
discretionary  Retirement
bonus, allowances scheme Share-based
Fees and other benefits contributions compensation  Total
He METAL RK URG 5
e WHERHEMEAN FEMT ERNwHE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL FTHL THET THL TAT
Year ended 31 March 2019 #HZ201953A31HILEE
Executive directors: HITES:
Madam Ng Sing Mui RERZL - 3,440 172 - 3612
Ms. Sze Tan Nei 1 e 2 & - 2,755 138 - 2893
Mr. Ang Ming Wah HHAELE - 1,420 18 - 1,438
Mr. Sze Wai Lun MR R L& - 1,032 18 - 1,050
Independent non-executive B EHTES :
directors:
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen 5= 38 i 55 4 240 - - - 240
Mr. Chung Koon Yan BERLE 240 - - - 240
Mr. Ma Kwok Keung EEBLE 240 - - - 240
Mr. Wong Yat Sum B—DEE 240 - - - 240
Mr. Chan Chun Sing BRIRE L4 240 - - - 240
Total & 1,200 8,647 346 - 10,193
Year ended 31 March 2018 #HZ20183A31HILEE
Executive directors: BTES:
Madam Ng Sing Mui REREZL - 3,549 164 - 3713
Ms. Sze Tan Nei ez + - 2,843 131 — 2,974
Mr. Ang Ming Wah AR EE S A - 1,465 18 6 1,489
Mr. Sze Wai Lun {8 fm 5 £ - 1,085 18 - 1,083
Independent non-executive B EHTES
directors:
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen 5= 38 % 55 4 240 - - - 240
Mr. Chung Koon Yan BERLE 240 - - - 240
Mr. Ma Kwok Keung SEEEE 240 - - - 240
Mr. Wong Yat Sum = 0EAE 240 _ _ _ 240
Mr. Chan Chun Sing BRikE L4 240 - - - 240
Total AR 1,200 8,922 331 6 10,459
No directors waived any emoluments during the year ended HZE2019FE3A31H IFFE - #
31 March 2019 (2018: nil). 5 £ WE W B & (20184 -

&)
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #{ = 201943 A31H It FE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MNEERSREEEHNE @

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals b) ENESH AL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the KEBRUSZSME ALTH
Group, four (2018: four) were directors of the Company PUfz (20184 : WUfiz) AR A A&
whose emoluments are included in note 11(a) above. The E OEMEER EXHE11@) -
emoluments of the remaining one (2018: one) individual was RN —AL(20184%F : —f7) AT H
as follows: B & a0 T

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTE T F#E T

Salaries, discretionary bonus, allowances and 4 - B E4L ~ w86 & &

other benefits 8@ F| 580 600
Retirement scheme contributions RORET B3R 29 28
Share-based compensation AR BER A mE = 2

609 630

The remuneration paid to the above non-director highest paid EfNFTLENEEEESHFALTH
individual was within the following emolument band: HFMATR T BN & E -

2019 2018

20194 20184

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AE AE

HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 7% 7T & 1,000,000/% 7T 1 1

During the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018, no #H £20194F k201843 A31H Ik

remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors of the FEE ANEEBVYERAATHNE

Company or any of the five highest paid employees as an ST ANNESHEEYX

inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as FHE - EAE I A S IIAARE

compensation for loss of office. RSB (E SRR AE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &= 201943 A31H It FE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Senior management’s emolument

The remuneration paid to the senior management of the
Group (other than the directors as disclosed in note 11(a)
above) for the year fell within the following emolument bands:

MEENSAEEEHNE @

(c) EREEEM=

FRAENTAEEGREERE
(EXHE @M KRENE =R
SN B BN R T 5 B 2 85

2019 2018
20195 20184F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE A
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 7% 7T & 1,000,000% 7T 2 2
12. DIVIDENDS 12. K 2
(@ Dividends attributable to the year: @ ANFERERMELRKRE:

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHT

Proposed final dividend of HK1.67 cents e -l S K=l

(2018: HK1.67 cents) per ordinary share AR 1.67 81U

(20184F : 1.677&1L) 10,020 10,020

The final dividends proposed after the reporting date for the
years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018 were not recognised
as a liability at the reporting date. In addition, the final
dividend is subject to the shareholders’ approval in the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

(b)  Dividends attributable to the previous financial year, approved

H E20194F M2018FE3A31H IEFE
MBEBHEREFORPREILT RN
REBHBERABAE AN REK
BAGHREREREREBFT KRG it
HEFAEE o

b)) BEMBRFEEMGERE RAF

and paid during the year: & #E#E ROR A -
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET F#& T
Final dividend paid in respect of prior BAEFERMN KBRS
year — HK1.67 cents (2018: nil) per —FRIEEAZ1.6751L
ordinary share (20184F : ##) 10,020 =
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For the year ended 31 March 2019  #{ Z20194 3 831 H IE F &

The calculation of earnings per share is based on the earnings
attributable to owners of the Company and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the respective years.

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based on
the following information:

Earnings ZF|
Profit attributable to owners of the Company 78 2 Rl #E B A JE 15 % 7

Number of shares BB EE

SREFDRERGBEE AR AR
B A {5 R R B B 4T 2 AR 0 70 4R
FBHE -

BRERNLEHERNIREATER

S

2018
20184
HK$’000
FAT

20,842 21,804

2018
20184
'000
T A%

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 5t 5+ & & i% £ 78 & #58 2 7| 69

for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings & 3@ i% N1 F 5 2
per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31
March 2019 is based on the profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company of HK$20,842,000 (2018: HK$21,804,000)
and on the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
600,000,000 (2018: 600,000,000) in issue during the year ended
31 March 2019.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31
March 2019 and 2018 does not assume the exercise of the
Company’s outstanding share options as the exercise price of
those options is higher than the average market price for shares for
both years.

600,000 600,000

H E2019FE3A31IB It EEWNE R
ERBABBREARAQAEE AEN
£ A % F)20,842,00078 T (20184 :
21,804,000/ 7t) & # £20194 3 A 31
HIEFEERITTL RO MEFHEH
600,000,000 % (2018 4E : 600,000,000

B -

#H £2019F &20184E3H31H Ik F
E rARERENTEESRESGF
BmE - Wt EZWEEEN SRS
SERF R EBRETELRR B E R
TTIE A BE AR A o
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 & £20194 3 31 H [t F &

Leasehold Office  Machinery
Leasehold land and furniture and and Motor
improvement buildings  equipment equipment vehicles Total
HELH HARE wa
HEZE REF ET PET AE At

HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK§000  HK$000  HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT

Cost B A
At 1 April 2017 m2017E4 818 1,970 34,572 2,237 8,935 10,008 57,722
Additions AE 1,041 - 1,082 1,027 2,087 5,237
Disposals & = = = (675) (447) 1,122)
At 31 March 2018 and 7201843 A31H

1 April 2018 &2018F4 A1 8 3,011 34,572 3,319 9,287 11,648 61,837
Additions AE - - 87 2,500 1,322 3,009
Disposals & = = (299) (1,297) - (1,596)
At 31 March 2019 2019538311 3,011 34,572 3,107 10,490 12,970 64,150

Accumulated deprecation Z23HiTE

At 1 April 2017 R20174F4 18 1,247 4,402 1,481 6,077 7,906 22,013
Provided for the year FREE 347 997 252 946 1,206 3,748
Written back on disposals R EE R = = = (665) (447) 1,112
At 31 March 2018 and R2018%F 3 A31H

1 April 2018 %2018%4A1H 1,594 5,399 1,733 7,258 8,665 24,649
Provided for the year FERNEE 816 997 359 1,327 1,545 5,044
Written back on disposals R ErEEE = — (285) (1,259) - (1,544)
At 31 March 2019 R201943 A31 H 2,410 6,396 1,807 7,326 10,210 28,149
Net carrying amount REFE
At 31 March 2019 20193 A31 H 601 28,176 1,300 3,164 2,760 36,001

At 31 March 2018 2018463 A31H 1,417 29,173 1,586 2,029 2,983 37,188
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For the year ended 31 March 2019  #{ Z20194 3 831 H IE F &

As at 31 March 2019 and 2018, the leasehold land and buildings are
pledged as securities for the Group’s bank borrowings and banking
facilities granted to the Group (note 19).

In prior years, the Group used the leasehold land and buildings (the “Property”)
as its head office (“Actual Use”). The permitted use (“Permitted Use”) of
the Property as specified in each of the relevant (i) conditions of sale and
government grant; (i) occupation permit; (i) deeds of mutual covenant is (a)
for industrial purpose; (b) as workshops for non-domestic use; (c) for use
as prescribed by the government lease and the occupation permit
respectively. Accordingly, the Actual Use did not comply with the
Permitted Use as set out above and is in breach of section 25(1) of the
Buildings Ordinance (Chapter 123 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for failure to
notify the Buildings Department regarding the change of land use.

In December 2017, the Group had leased an office premises and the
Group’s head office had been moved into the leased office premises. The
Group has terminated to use the Property as head office since then. The
Property was then used by the Group as warehouse.

Although the Group changed the use of the Property from head office
during the year ended 31 March 2018, and the use of the Property as
warehouse is complied with the Permitted Use, the prosecution under the
provisions of the Buildings Ordinance may be commenced within 12
months of the same being discovered by or coming to the notice of the
Buildings Department. As such, as at 31 March 2018 and 2019, pursuant
to section 40(2) of the Buildings Ordinance, the maximum exposure of the
fine as a result of the aforesaid matter is approximately HK$100,000.

As at 31 March 2019, the carrying amount of the Property is
approximately HK$28,176,000 (2018: HK$29,173,000).

B &L

R2019F k20183 A31H  HE L i
FEFEEREARAEEBRITEERR
SEERZRITHE ZEREFE19) -

RBAFE ASEFREE LMK
BFE(ZWEDERENEE((EERA
®]) - EEBASEOEE RBFR DK
% 5 ()5 P AEF A &8 ¢ (i) AR FT 5 ¥ E it
ERE(BERRZ] DABIEQIER
B OEEEAENIS OBRNHEE
REAFAERENRSZ - Alt - BR
gt AREF EXESNERERR -
BEREF THAREHANEEFTE
i R B SR G 128 % EE W K5I 5
25(1) fi& °

R2017F 128 A& BMBAE —RBHA
EWE YEAEELHERBAEZA
EMAEYE-BUIt AEEDKIEE
BZMEFERBREE ZWEERD
HASEGREAERE -

BEAREBENEE2018F3A31H ILF
EHM¥EREHBEBEEREE  BZ
MEERRENARFTEHTIAR  H
BABRCGEEMIEOIVIESE L A ARE - 7]
FEFERRAEBEBEELTAE
1218 A AR H - Bt - B20184 %2019
F3A31H - BECEEW KO 4002)
&+ R bl I8 W 8 BUE KA & AR
% #9 /4 100,0007% 7T °

R201943A31H ZMEZEmMES
4928,176,0007% JT (2018 4F : 29,173,000
BIT) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &= 201943 A31H It FE

15. INVENTORIES

15. 7 &

2019 2018

20194 20184

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FBT

Consumables, at cost SHRE G (R AR) 14 11
16. TRADE RECEIVABLES 16. E 5 E W F 1|

2019 2018

20194 20184

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHExT FBT

Trade receivables, net of loss allowance B EWHRTE  MkEERE 114,497 100,180

Trade receivables are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars for both
years.

The credit terms of the trade receivables are ranged from O to 60
days (2018: 0 to 75 days) from the date of billing. Further details on
the Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from trade
receivables are set out in note 30(b).

The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on the invoice date
and net of loss allowance as of the end of the reporting period is as

B 1B 4E - 55 M IR 49 B
5HE -

ZEoRBUARENEERERAREAH
# N FOXR E60K (20184 : 0K =75
R -BRAEECEEBRRREZEK
REMEAEERR ZE—FTFEH
7 B 5E30(0) °

BEREHMR ERXBZAHNES
JE W R IR (HIBR B 1R B 48) Rk e 0 A 40

follow: T
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#& T FE T
Within one month —@AARN 47,162 44,721
One to three months —z==1@A 54,383 47,575
More than three months =@AMNUE 12,952 7,884
114,497 100,180
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #{ = 201943 A31H It FE

16. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 16. & 5 FE W 1EH @)
Movement in the impairment loss allowance in respect of Group’s EERNNEERZ S FEIWZIBREE
trade receivables for the year is as follow: BEE228MT :

HK$’000
F#& T
Balance at 31 March 2018 under HKAS 39 RIEF B @ % B F 395

M2018F3 A31 H Z &k -

Impact on initial application of HKFRS 9 BRAEAEEYBHRESER

EAeLiivd -2 71
Adjusted balance at 1 April 2018 R20184F 4 A1 8 2 (& & &4 71
Impairment loss recognised during the year FABERZBEEE 54
Balance at 31 March 2019 MR20194F3 A 31 H 2 & &4 125

17. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 17. FE{f R E RE& K HME

RECEIVABLES B
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FH T
Non-current: IERE :
Prepayments for purchase of property, BEYHE - BE MR
plant and equipment ") TR 1 IE = 292
Current: B
Prepayments for consumables Y FE G KO TR A K8 95 90
Other prepayments H b 78 5 5B 6,331 5,455
Deposits ®B& 667 673
Other receivables H b & YT IR 170 2,710

7,263 8,928
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 &= 201943 A31H It FE

18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 18. E 5 K H th FE (Y FKIH
2019 2018
2019 % 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FAT
Trade payables (note (a)) B rEMNFE(WE@) 14,710 12,790
Accrued staff costs FEEt B TRk AR 23,742 23,581
Other accrued expenses (note (b)) H h fE AT R 2 (MT & (o) 5,450 5,325
Other payables H b fE N R E 299 851
Deposits " 578 738
30,069 30,495
Notes: W & -
(@)  Trade payables are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars for both years. @ RREFE BF5EMRESAE T
A -

The ageing analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date as of the HEREHR EREZEHNEIE

end of the reporting period is as follow: NRIERRSTAOT -
2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHEIT
Within one month —@EAR 4,756 9,063
One to three months —Z==fA 9,172 3,113
More than three months =@ AN E 782 614
14,710 12,790
() As at 31 March 2019 and 2018, other accrued expenses mainly ()  P20194F K% 201843 A31H - HE it fE&T

represented the accrued untaken paid leave. AXEFE2REFTAZATHERY -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019  #{ Z20194 3 831 H IE F &

2018
20184F
HK$'000
FAT
Bank loans RITER 9,364 17,5633
All of the Group’s bank loans as at 31 March 2019 and 2018 K & B 20194 K 201843 A 31 H #Y
contained a repayable on demand clause and therefore the entire FIERITE R BIRERKEEBRR
bank loan balances for both years have been classified as current HMAEFENEIBEITEREHD
liabilities. DERRBEE-
Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the directors of ENAEENMBRR ARFIESE
the Company considered it is unlikely that the banks will exercise R RITPAARFAEBBEZRTAE
its discretion to demand immediate repayment. The directors of the R ARNBEEFRE BITERER
Company considered that the bank loans will be repaid in BERBGEAE O E KB BE
accordance with the scheduled payment dates set out in the loan B TERMMIZAS L ERBPFTHIETT
agreements. An analysis of the bank loans in accordance with the BRI
contractual repayment terms are summarised in the table below:
2018
20184
HK$'000
FAT
Analysed based on scheduled repayment RS R HEAEHNTE
terms set out in the loan agreements, BEREETHD N
into:
Within one year N—F R 2,346 9,099
In the second year RE—F 1,459 1,421
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F=FEERF
(BREEMF) 4,611 4,494
Beyond five years FENE 948 2,519

9,364 17,533



WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED Xk|E#ZEREBERA T

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 ¥R 2R MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 & £20194 3 31 H [t F &

Notes:
(i) All bank borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars. As at 31

March 2019, the bank borrowings carried floating interest rates ranged
from 2.60% to 3.93% (2018: ranged from 2.60% to 3.94%) per annum.

(i) As at 31 March 2019 and 2018, the banking facilities granted to the
Group were secured by the following:
() properties held by the Group with net carrying amount of

approximately HK$28,176,000 (2018:HK$29,173,000); and

(b) letter of undertaking and unlimited corporate guarantee executed
by the Company.

gl

o

il
B

Liabilities for employee benefit comprise: &

\

Long service payments accrual, classified as & HI iR 7% &
EjN=]

fEEtE R
non-current liabilities FEm E

&

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is
obliged to make lump sum payments on cessation of employment
in certain circumstances to certain employees who have completed
at least five years of service with the Group. The amount payable is
dependent on the employees’ final salary and years of service, and
is reduced by entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement
plans that are attributable to contributions made by the Group. The
Group does not set aside any assets to fund any remaining
obligations.

B

0] A RITE K AB T E - BR201943
A318  RITERAHAZEEBENT
FF2.60EE3.93FE (20184 : /1 F2.60
EZE394E) °

(i) 20194 K20184E3 A31H Ak EE
BHRITEE B T3 & EIE R -

@  AKEFTRREFE 428,176,000
7 7T (2018 4F : 29,173,000/ JT.) 2
W Rk

) ARAAFEIMEAFEERERGIA
AIER -

2018
20184
HK$'000
FABT

>H—
piuin]
af

10,480 9,076

*E}FE\‘\ BEGH AEEBEEET

ERATHRELERBERAKETKE
9‘£¢HE%H’U%3F1E,\§ZH*%M
He BXNZAABBERTZEFEER
MREHFEEREFH  LHBIRA
SEENRFTIBAEBEHRAAREN
FAER - AEEYEFEREMEEIN
REFRBTEERHRES -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019  #{ Z20194 3 831 H IE F &

Details of the deferred tax liabilities recognised and movements NABE R AFHECERELERIE

during the current and prior period:

As at 1 April 2017
Charged for the year (note 10)

As at 31 March 2018 and at 1 April 2018
Charged for the year (note 10)

As at 31 March 2019

Authorised:
Shares of HK$0.01 each

At 31 March 2018, 1 April 2018 and
31 March 2019

Issued and fully paid:
At 31 March 2018, 1 April 2018 and
31 March 2019

BEREHZFBNT

Accelerated tax
depreciation

MEFHEITE
HK$’000
TH& T
R2017F4 A1 H 878
F R (K EE10) 338
201843 A31H k20184 A1 H 1,216
F R (KT sE10) 42
R2019F3 A31 H 1,258
Number
of shares HK$’000
& H FE T
ETE
X E1E0.01 78 7T H % 17
R2018F3 A31H * 20184
4818 k20193 A31H 10,000,000,000 100,000

E#ETRERE
HN20184F3 31 H » 20184
4818 %20194%3 8318 600,000,000 6,000
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For the year ended 31 March 2019  #{ £201943 831 H It F &

Group

Details of the movements on the Group’s reserves for the years
ended 31 March 2019 and 2018 are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 99. The natures and
purposes of reserves within equity are as follows:

(@)

Share premium account of the Company represents the
excess of the proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares
received over the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued.

The merger reserve of the Group arose as a result of the
group reorganisation and represented the difference between
the consideration under the group reorganisation and the
nominal value of the share capital of the subsidiaries then
acquired.

The share option reserve represents the cumulative expenses
recognised on the granting of share options to the eligible
participants over the vesting period.

REE

RE&EEE =2019F K2018FE3 A31H
EFEZREZYHFBEVNENOE

ZHEEEREHRAN - BERFEBIE
ERE®IT

(@)

ARBZBENEEBREETE
PR P W BR 2 PR S SRIR R AR R
BERTRODEENIRLD -

A
A

AEBEEHERIBEBEAE
£ o HESEEHAR N RER
ERAMEEMNEARRARELZ
E® -

BREEEENRBENEA S
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Company b N/NEC|
(Accumulated
Share losses)/
Share Merger option retained
premium reserve reserve profits Total
(REtER)/
% 43 % 8 EOEE BRERE R & % F ot
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT
At 1 April 2017 2017548 1H 48,177 (10) 18 (10,729) 37,456
Profit for the year and & 93 7| ] £ /9
total comprehensive EHER B
income for the year — — — 20,945 20,945
Recognition of share- &R LA B 1D A& &
based payment 1 B A5 2
expense — _ 16 _ 16
At 31 March 2018 and 420184 3 A 31
1 April 2018 H K 201854 A
1H 48,177 (10) 34 10,216 58,417
Profit for the year and 45 (A % Al &2 &£ 4
total comprehensive & [ W 25 42 58
income for the year — = = 11,946 11,946
Final dividend paid ERNRERER — — — (10,020) (10,020)

At 31 March 2019 A20195F
3H31H 48,177 (10) 34 12,142 60,343



WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED Xk|E#ZEREBERA T

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 ¥R 2R MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 & £20194 3 31 H [t F &

(i

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 21 February 2017, a share option scheme was adopted
by the sole shareholder of the Company (the “Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme”). The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is a
share incentive scheme and is established to aid the
Company in retaining key and senior employees of the Group.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme is 192,000. No share options may be granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme if this will result in
the limit being exceeded.

The eligible participants include any full-time or part-time
employees of any member of the Group and any executive
directors of the Company.

Upon acceptance of the share option, the grantee shall pay
HK$1 to the Company by way of consideration for the grant.

On 23 February 2017, the Company has authorised to grant
to 6 eligible participants to subscribe for an aggregate of
192,000 shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. On
the same date, the Company has granted share options to 6
eligible participants to subscribe for an aggregate of 192,000
shares.

The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular
share option offered under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
shall be equal to the offer price of HK$0.42 per share.

(i)

=]

NHBENERE

¥

B S5

n

R2017FE2 8218 » KA A M —
REREM—EHEREE ([EX
AHABEAERETS]) -7 X
AHBERERESE A —ER
HEETE  HRL T E E W
ARARBRBAEEETEZ RS RIE
g o

ERE & X A% E R ERERT
2R A FT A BT M Al
TR (D B £ R &192,000
% o il AR 48 B R A B 3% & AT A
W T B 9% ) BE AR S 28 BB TR
B BT R AR -

BER2EEREAEBEEMAK
BRBIZEMEZBERBEER N
RARBZEFMATES -

AR AN B AR B A L B B
RERARAZMIBTERSR

& -

M2017F2H23H X A A B
REABREEBERAHAESHE
[REFEIM6H A ERDHEE K
i 7] R B & ££192,000 8% % 15 #Y
ERE-RAAB AQAFM6H
EEBSEERLITRES H
192,000 % A 17 B B AR 4 o

BB R A 73 E BB R AT 8108
TR b2 05 E R g 2 B
RBEREEEETR04I2BT

HE -
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Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The share options granted to each grantee under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme shall be entitled to exercise the share
options granted during the option period under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme in the following manners:

(@ 50% of the share options granted to grantee under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme at any time on or after
the first date on which dealings in the shares of the
Company commenced on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Date”) to the date immediately before the tenth
anniversary of the Listing Date; and

(b)  50% of the share options granted to grantee under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme at any time on or after
the date falling on the first anniversary of the Listing
Date to the date immediately before the tenth
anniversary of the Listing Date.

The share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme are not transferable and share options not exercised
within the exercise period will lapse and cease to be of further
effect. All the share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme shall lapse automatically and not be
exercisable (to the extent not already exercised) on the expiry
of the option period.

Share options granted prior to the expiration of the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme but not yet exercised at that time shall
continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

(i)

X
]

BEXRAHBENBRE
i &l (x

(%)

RIZ B R AR E A B RER S
A& AR ARG 2 BRESE T
152 55 ) A T 1) 75 =050 B R 1
BRI B R A 73 & A BB R AT
BTTER N Z B

—

@ B0%IRIEE R AR EER
BRESSRARARD
ZBEBREA R ARBR D
REXMAKREERE E A
TEPABDRZREE
EETRABE+EBFA
Al Z B AR 1T &

b) B50%1R % & X 2 FH#EE R
BREFIRARARD
ZEERBEATR LTRSS
—EABFRERHZIRE
EREFTEHETEAESF
B Al < B AR BE R 1T -

BRAFBEEMBREEAT
R zcBERERTTEZE KR
7158 B3] il AR AT 62 2 8 AR AR S K
METBRBERS - BERARME
EHEREASBETREZAE
BRESNEBEREDBREMS A
BRA R AR ITE (AR KRITE
ERR) -

RERAREE R ERE S E
A B E B R T A0 R AR
BEEEERRBRIBEERAFRE
SR BRERT &I A TATRE -
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24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 24. BB R EETE @)
(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued) () BEXAHBENERE
at &l ()
The following tables disclose details of movements of share TREEREBE X AHBENE
options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme: RERESTE I BB AR RS E)5E
15 :
Year ended 31 March 2019 BZE2019F3A3MHLFE
Number of share options
BREHE
Expired/
At Granted Exercised Cancelled At
Share 1 April during during during 31 March
option type 2018 theyear theyear the year 2019
FR
BRE R20185F B,/ R2019F
HE 4818 HFREH =& SHS31H
Director =
Ang Ming Wah  JtRH #= Tranche 1 32,000 - - - 32,000
£t
Tranche 2 32,000 — — — 32,000
£t
Employees =1
In aggregate = Tranche 1 64,000 - - - 64,000
£t
Tranche 2 64,000 — — — 64,000
£t

Total st 192,000 - - - 192,000
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(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued) () BXPHABEAMBRE
at 2l ()
Year ended 31 March 2018 B Z£2018F3A3MHLFE
Number of share options
BRRERE
Expired/
At Granted Exercised Cancelled At
Share 1 April during during during 31 March
option type 2017 the year the year the year 2018
FA
BIRE R2017F - B, 20185
BR 4818 FREYE FRTE i 3H31H
Director =
Ang Ming Wah it BF 2= Tranche 1 32,000 — — — 32,000
E—#
Tranche 2 32,000 = = — 32,000
B4t
Employees 3=
In aggregate =0 Tranche 1 64,000 — — - 64,000
E—#
Tranche 2 64,000 == = = 64,000
B4t
Total “at 192,000 = — — 192,000
Details of the share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share BEEXAAHZTERBERESZFELE
Option Scheme are as follows: ZHEREFBLT
Number of
share option Exercise
Share option type Date of grant granted Exercisable period price
BUHBRE )
BREER R BH BE TEHE TEE
Tranche 1 23 February 2017 84,000 16 March 2017 to 15 March 2027 HK$0.42
% —Ht 201742 A23H 20174316 HE 202743 A15H 0.42/8 7T
Tranche 1 23 February 2017 12,000 16 March 2017 to 17 December 2019* HK$0.42
F—4t 201742 H23H 201743 H16 H £20196F12 417~ 0.42% 7T
Tranche 2 23 February 2017 84,000 16 March 2018 to 15 March 2027 HK$0.42
E 4t 201742 A23H 20183 A16H £20274F3 A 15H 0.42& 7T
Tranche 2 23 February 2017 12,000 16 March 2018 to 17 December 2019* HK$0.42
E=H 20172 H23H 201843 A 16 H £2019412 417~ 0.427% 7T
* Upon the death of an employee during the year ended 31 March = HE2019F3831B ILEE B
2019, the exercisable period of his outstanding share options has EEtM® BERITEERE
been changed. Pursuant to the terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option TEHEEER - BIEE AR
Scheme, the legal personal representative(s) of this employee may BHERNERERMNIER  ZE
exercise the options granted to him under the Pre-IPO Share EMETEERE AR EH
Option Scheme within the period of 12 months following his death %121@ A R (BDA2019F 12 A 17
(i.e. on or before 17 December 2019). Bk A1) B EE R ARBEER

PR BT ER B RE
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(i

(i)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

QOut of the 192,000 outstanding share options, 192,000 share
options (2018: 192,000) were exercisable as at 31 March
2019.

The share options outstanding at 31 March 2019 had
weighted average exercise price of HK$0.42 (2018: HK$0.42)
and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 7.1
years (2018: 8.9 years).

Share Option Scheme

On 21 February 2017, a share option scheme was
conditionally adopted by the sole shareholder (the “Share
Option Scheme”).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and
retain the best available personnel, to provide additional
incentive to the eligible participants of the Group and to
promote the success of the business of the Group.

The eligible participants include any employee (full-time or
part-time), director, consultant, adviser, substantial
shareholder, distributor, contractor, supplier, agent,
customer, business partner or service provider of the Group.
The basis of eligibility of any participant to the grant of any
option shall be determined by the Board (or as the case may
be, the independent non-executive directors) from time to
time on the basis of his contribution or potential contribution
to the development and growth of the Group.

The subscription price of a share respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be a
price solely determined by the Board and notified to a
participant and shall be at least the higher of: (i) the closing
price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the
option, which must be a business day; (i) the average of the
closing prices of the shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
option; and (i) the nominal value of a share of the Company
on the date of grant of the option.

(i)

(ii)

BARAABEBERERKRE
at 2 (&)

R 192,00013 & & 77 F B I% &
F o F192,00010 f& A% #E (2018
% : 192,000 ) B 20194 3 A 31
BAE1T{E o

palf

|4
@

MR2019%F3 A31H M AT 2B
BEREINAE 91T (B B0.4278 T
(20184F : 0.4278 7T ) » H N F
BHEHE L FHB71F(2018
F:89%F) -

BRESE

R2017E2A218  E— R A
161 7 40 — T8 B8 AR 4 51 &) ([ BB A%
A o

BhEtEsaRs RRERE
FWAB RAKESERSHE
ERPHEIBBANESHAEE
EBaIHEE-

AERSCEEREASETM
BEE (2R ERE) £ %A
A BB  EZBRE D#EE
AR HER KRB -BF -
HMERHIARBHEED -EF
(HBIULIERITES  BBERM
TE ) A B AR #E (8 Bl £ B 2 ¥ AR
SEERERERATEHRAEE
HHEEBRATERBERESES
H) B 1K o

*ETF%H&%EJE‘J%EE’]EEH%*
EBRENRNMABEHESS
BEEWHRAMSEHE BN 31&
RTA&EEE: (A2 ARKRGOR®
ﬁ%ﬁﬁgﬁﬂjﬁﬂﬂ(bmﬁ 2% H)

AR A RERAHRE T
fjgi’(n)zli AR A BB R
BB AR A A BT
SFHMERABHOFEHREE
K i) A A 7] B 1D 70 g AR 4%t B
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(ii) Share Option Scheme (Continued)

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within
seven days inclusive of the day on which such offer was
made. The amount payable by the grantee of an option to the
Company on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an
option is HK$1.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company as from the
adoption date (excluding, for this purpose, shares issuable
upon exercise of options which have been granted but have
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme or any other share option schemes of the Company)
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of all the shares in issue
as at the Listing Date. Therefore, it is expected that the
Company may grant options in respect of up to 60,000,000
shares (or such numbers of Shares as shall result from a sub-
division or a consolidation of such 60,000,000 Shares from
time to time) to the participants under the Share Option
Scheme.

The 10% limit as mentioned above may be refreshed at any
time by approval of the shareholders in general meeting
provided that the total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at
the date of approval of the refreshed limit. Options previously
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company (including those outstanding,
cancelled or lapsed in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company) will not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the refreshed 10% limit.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding share options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Group at any time
shall not exceed 30% of the issued shares of the Company
from time to time. No share options shall be granted under
any schemes of the Company (including the Share Option
Scheme) if this will result in the 30% limit being exceeded.

(ii)

BB BR RE ST &l ()

REBRENZAORNEL S H
ZARH(EEERREARNE
o MREARABREMNELD
BFRERNBERERANAR A
187T o

B R AN B HE AR AR UK BE AR R At &
K A A R ] £ ftb B AR 4 5 &
BFRENEBREETEM
ARTHRMEHEE LR (G
T AEEERERTEERERERK
51 &1 sk 7K A 7] fa] E 4th BE AR
FFEMERRE Rk BT
MABITHRGD) &R TERB
PR ETBHEE2HBETRMDL
10% o At - BB AN 2 7] 7] 1R 3%
BREFER2HEERD Y MR
1= #£60,000,000 & f% 15 (3% & B
¥+ 4l =k & £ 5260,000,000 A% f% 15
MmESRRMDEE ) ERE -

b X Pt B9 10% £ BR AT B B AR AR
REBRAS LHEREH B
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ERMHBEE) TEHEENR -

BE WU AREERER S &
7R % (L ) L At BB AR AT 813
o ARITEN 2 BB ERETE
A% A BE BT AR 1D - NAEI B
RATEBEARRTHD#ETT
Bt B930% © AR AR 45 2K X B A fA]
e (B REERERS) R OBK
R GHEIE Lill30%H LR - Rl
TEEOERE-




WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED Xk|E#ZEREBERA T

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 ¥R 2R MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 & £20194 3 31 H [t F &

(i) Share Option Scheme (Continued) (i) BRESE @

The total number of shares issued and which fall to be issued
upon exercise of the share options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Group (including both exercised and outstanding options) to
each grantee in any 12-month period up to the date of offer
to grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue as at the date of offer to grant. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

In addition, any grant of an option to a Director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the Company (or any
of their respective close associates) must be approved by the
independent non-executive Directors (excluding any
independent non-executive Director who is the grantee of the
option). Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director (or any
of their respective close associates) will result in the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
all options already granted and to be granted (including
options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of grant representing in aggregate over 0.1%
of the shares in issue; and having an aggregate value, based
on the closing price of the Shares at the date of each grant,
in excess of HK$5,000,000, such further grant of share
options will be subject to, in addition to the approval of
shareholders of the Company in general meeting.

No share option under the Share Option Scheme has been
granted since its adoption.

HEZHRE BB IEEMA121E A
HEA - BREERES S KA
& B fA H i B8 RSCRE A 81 [A) & K
BRARLOBRE(BRDITE
R RITRE RO R A HE) AT M
BITRATETORODEE T
BSHEBARARANEZNRLE BHC
BITRO 1% EBEINKE L
H %1% £ IR &Y BB i i 0 A 8
BRRNBERAE ESITHE

O MARBEE TETK
ABHETEBRR(KEMEES
BRMETBEA)RBEMER
B AKRBYIFRTESR(T
BE S REREARANERE
VHERATER)HE-HAETE
BREBIIFATEST(IWE
EENTEAETHEA)RLE
MEREMEREHEERLA
W(BHEZB) EEM12EA B
BA - Bt A+ RR &SRR
8} AN 2 R {E f] L Ath B A A A &
EEEEK TERN 2 HBBEE
(BRETE CEHEEHEKRT
Ee R AE) EITEM E T NG
TERITNRMNDAR AaHXBAE
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The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed in Hong Kong. The
MPF scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employers
and its employees are each required to make contributions to the
plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan
vest immediately.

The retirement scheme cost recognised in profit or loss represents
contributions paid or payable to the MPF scheme by the Group at
rates specified in the rule of the MPF scheme. As at 31 March 2019
and 2018, the Group had no significant obligation apart from the
contributions as stated above and there is no forfeited contribution
arose upon employees leaving the retirement benefit scheme and
which were available to reduce contributions payable.

At 31 March 2019 and 2018, the Group had total commitments
under operating leases in respect of non-cancellable operating
leases for land and buildings to make payment in the future years
as follows:

AEBEEREFB(RHMEQIE S
ERPDMRE  REFERERERLA
BEAEEAE(RESE] - R
e ARBYRAAETENER
HRKRFE - REBERTESHE &
ITRERBELVAMZTEHAEREM
ARG EX 8 AMBERAN L
PR 30,0007 7T T #R IR » 3% &t & &9 it 5%
BB 57 8 -

REZERNERATEXNEAEAEEH
LSt eI R A TR RmgiE
SEREIE X R EN A HRERIE ©
20194 N 2018F3 A31H » % £ X AT
A HBRIB  RE BT EEME
AEFE BMERESEHEKEF
5T 31 M 2 A X AT A AR > e A B 3R

R UK -

R20194F K 2018F3A31H * KN & &
BEKEHEEB L REFTH AT
BUHCEHENRRFE M REELS
RN

2018
20184
HK$’000
FAE T

The Group as lessee AEBEREEA
Within one year R—FA 765 1,419
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EEERF (BREEERTF) - 549
765 1,968

Leases are negotiated for terms ranging from one year to two years
(2018: one year to two years) and rentals are fixed over the terms.

HEBE SN F—F2™®F(2018
F—FEMF)MHEHEREHRRASE
ETH -
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26. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 6. EFEHEAREmw
(Continued)
Future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable R 7K & B A 1 7] J 8 45 2 4 e Uk
operating lease of the Group were as follows: HARRFERERBLOT
2019 2018
2019% 20184
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FET
The Group as lessor AEBERAEEA
Within one year R—FRA 8 —
Lease are negotiated for term of 1 year (2018: nil). HEWE R —F(2018F : &) o
27. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 27. EREIE
2019 2018
20195 20184
HK$°000 HK$’000
THET FET
Contracted but not provided for : BRI AE i R -

Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE HMELXK = 354
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()  Save as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the 0] BB RREME OB ESE
Group had no significant transaction with related parties for SN - B 220195 K 20184F 3 A 31
the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018. AIEFE AEBEHMEEMERXR

(i) The remunerations of key management personnel, which are iy AEE TEEBEEAAQNAE
the directors of the Company during the year, were as EHME2HFMMNY T
follows:

2018

20184F

HK$’000

TAT

Short-term employee benefits R E SR 9,847 10,122
Retirement scheme contributions RIRGTEIEE R 346 331
Share-based compensation AR AR E - 6
10,193 10,459

The Group’s capital management objectives are to safeguard the AEBHNEAETIERZARERSE

Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide S EREHBE N 0 LA AR N E A F

returns for shareholder and benefits for other stakeholders, to B AFEREB R E SN #iE5E

maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital BAREE BREANKANRE T IFENE
and to support the Group’s stability and growth. HNEENLER -

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital AREBBEBRY THEALEEBEHEER

structure, taking into consideration the future capital requirements Lok A NREFBRKNEREK

of the Group, to ensure optimal returns to shareholders. R AR R EZERLR -

For capital management purpose, the directors of the Company MEBEAEEBEEMS N AFEER

regard the total equity presented on the consolidated statement of AR 2V NEESES

financial position as capital. BN o
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Bank borrowings

Total debt BEE
Total equity B

Gearing ratio

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks through its use
of financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations and in
its investment activities. The financial risks include credit risk,
liquidity risk, interest rate risk and fair value risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group’s
headquarter, in close co-operation with the directors. The overall
objectives in managing financial risks focus on securing the Group’s
short to medium term cash flows by minimising its exposure to
financial markets.

It is not the Group’s policy to actively engage in the trading of
financial instruments for speculative purposes. It identifies ways to
access financial markets and monitors the Group’s financial risk
exposure. Regular reports are provided to the directors of the
Company.

2018
20184
HK$’000
FBT

9,364 17,533

9,364 17,533

124,191 113,440

0.08 timesfZ 0.15 timesfZ

AREFEBRERREBARERA
BEEDSEAeRIATERSE
AR B AR AR
RBELER  FIEEKRRATEE

LA
oo
ZON

o

MERREEBASERLHAE
B 2BEFENTUAEMNRIES -
EEVHRRNAEBFERET R
AEBNPEHRAER EKAED
BWAOE S M SRR -

AEBO BRI IR B &M iE S
HEEEcRITA -HYEXBELR
MEREEAKEFBRARN A
FRARNRBEFRIERRS °
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(@) Summary of financial assets and liabilities
by category

Financial assets ERMEE

(a)

REMNESASNEREE
EZEL‘*E%E

Amortised cost (2018: Loans and receivables): & # $4 ik 4< (20184 : B X

Ko FE R IR) 51 Bk

Trade receivables B 5 W IE
Deposits and other receivables R & K H th & W IR
Cash and cash equivalents HekBAEZEY
Financial liabilities cHaE
Amortised cost: RS K AN 51 BR
Trade payables B 5 & 3IE
Accruals, deposits and other payables EBerER ek
H h fE < 5UE
Bank borrowings RITE K

(b) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributed to its trade and
other receivables and cash and bank balances. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit
risks are monitored on an ongoing basis and follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts.

The Group has concentration of credit risk with two
customers with trade receivables of HK$37,503,000 (2018:
two customers of HK$35,004,000) as at 31 March 2019.

For trade receivables, the Group reassesses the lifetime
expected credit losses at the end of the reporting period to
ensure the adequate impairment losses are made for
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of default
occurring since initial recognition. In this regard, management
of the Group considers that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

(b)

2018
20184

HK$’000

FB T

114,497 100,180
837 3,383
33,844 39,488
149,178 143,051
14,710 12,790
30,069 30,495
9,364 17,533
54,143 60,818

EEE R

AEENEERRIERANE
B REMBUKAENERE M
RITHEBRMER - EEEER

—EFERR ZREFEERREZ
FEREEEE B RIURETT

B AW EIBEET -

MR2019E3A31H  RNEBHEA
EFEERE MEEFMNES
JiE Uk 3R 18 7,%37,503,0005% 7T (2018
F : W% & F 35,004,000/ 7C) °

HREZEEREAMS  AEER
BEHRREMRFHE2HMEHREE
B 18 - DARE(R B 1) 16 #E P8 A R 3
A )32 4 7T B 1 3K [ B R 8 N
fEH RSB EREEEE - Blutm
CAEEEREERRS AKE
FEHMW%M¢
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 & £20194 3 31 H [t F &

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) 1= & & B ()

The Group applies provision matrix to measure the expected
credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9. As at 31 March 2019,
the expected loss rates applied in the provision matrix are
determined with reference to the debtors’ characteristics,
including historical actual loss on the trade receivables and
information specific to the debtors as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the debtors operate. The
weighted-average expected loss rates ranging from 0.08% to
0.59% were applied to trade receivables.

AEEBEEBEEERTER D
B 75 3 45 2%E Bl 55 9 5% AT 4l /Y 7B BB
ZEEE - N2019F3A31H -
ERRBEEERNTEREEEXT)
K2ZEBANEE  BEE S
FEWRENBAEREERER
A Z BB E A KM EB AT R
ZEERBZENMET - N
0.08% £ 0.59% ) 78 HA /&5 18 &= Jii

BFHHERNE 5 RKHIEA -

At 31 March 2019
A20193 H31H

Expected
loss rate Gross
— weighted carrying Loss
average amount allowance
FEHEBEREE—
EEFE I R H A E BEEE
HK$'000 HK$’000
T T FHET
Not yet past due 5] 7 780 2 0.08% 47,395 39
Less than one month past due 7 H DN — (& B 0.07% 53,962 38
One to three months past due mE—Z= =4 0.15% 6,799 10
More than three months past due BEA=E A A 0.59% 6,466 38
114,622 125

For other receivables, the Group has assessed and
concluded that the expected credit loss for these receivables
is insignificant based on the risk of default of those
counterparties under 12-month ECL approach. Thus, no loss
allowance was recognised as at 31 March 2019.

The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents is considered
negligible, since the counterparties are reputable banks with
high quality external credit ratings.

None of the Group’s financial assets are secured by collateral
or other credit enhancement.

RHEMERZEmMS EREH A
BHRE  ANEB#ETIGHLSE
tEmREREI2EABHEE
BB BHEEEBHZERE
WHKIBIW ANEZE - AL 72019
FIAI AW EEREEEME -

RekReEBYNEERRA
NRmAst BRI RARE
ROMEEFE BARFEE
HIERTT o

AEEN TR EEHREREERY
HHEMEEIREETER -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #{ = 201943 A31H It FE

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)  30. 81 7% & k& & 2 (&)

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERE B @
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade FRNEHERNIB Z GEEER
receivables during the year is as follows: FEmE

HK$’000
TH&ExT
Balance at 31 March 2018 under HKAS 39 BIEE B 228 E 3958

M20184E3 A31 H 2 &t =

Impact on initial application of HKFRS 9 BRERBBMBMEREAFEIR 2 HE 71
Adjusted balance at 1 April 2018 MR2018F 4 A1 B 2 AR &4 4
Impairment losses recognised during the year £ X #E 32 22 &l (8 /65 18 54
Balance at 31 March 2019 R2019F 3 A31 B Z & &% 125
The origination of new trade receivables net of those settled HE2019F3A3IAILLFE ' E
resulted in an increase in loss allowance of HK$54,000 during EHEBFERZTEBHNGR IR ZE
the year ended 31 March 2019. E&EZ S EWFIE S| BEE

B 45 1% 1154,0007% 7T ©
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Bt 75 ¥R 2R MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2019 & £20194 3 31 H [t F &

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

Prior to 1 April 2018, an impairment loss was recognised only
when there was objective evidence of impairment (see note
4.6(B)(ii). At 31 March 2018, the directors of the Company
believes that no impairment provision is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered to be
fully recoverable. The ageing analysis of trade debtors that
were not considered to be impaired was as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired

Past due but not impaired:
LLess than one month past due
One to three months past due
More than three months past due

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not be able
to meet its obligations associated with its financial liabilities.
The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement
of trade and other payables and its financing obligations, and
also in respect of its cash flow management.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with bank covenants, to
ensure the Group maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major banks and
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

R HASRIE

(b)

EEHMEARRE
BN —EA
BH—E={EA
BHI=EA AL

(c)

EER B @)

2018F 4 A1 B Al ' BEREER
BEREBREFEEER(EM
4.6(B)i) > R2018%F3 431 H & &
RElZEERA RSHEBBELE
HREREE RAEEERTE
ERNEY ZEEHRDIEERE
2HUWE - RBABBENE ZE
WHIEZ RBRSITAT -

2018
20184
HK$’000
FBTT

45,258

46,878
3,230
4,814

54,922
100,180

WEE %

mBE D AR EAS B EE W

BREB ASEEHEEEEES
REMENRBAREREREER
AR ESRAR BHIREER
EREERM-

AEENBEREHEEER

BeBRMHEBERTRENEG R
B ARERA S B4R T B/
ReRBEMEIBERRTES
MEBESEHNCIORER
B LNEMEEREREEDN
mMBEEHFK -
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)  30. Bt 7% B F& & 2 (@)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) RBEER K &)
The following tables show the remaining contractual TRIAFAEECREEN RS
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s HARANB TEONEIE R JhE
financial liabilities, based on undiscounted cash flows (including NAGEBEBE R (BREERE Y
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if M =ay (A FEFR)ERRE
floating, based on rates current at the reporting date) and the HHONBETAHERSEDNF B X
earliest date the Group can be required to pay. B)MANEBAREASINHERE
=I5

Total
contractual Within one
Carrying undiscounted year or on More than
amount amount demand one year

24

AEEKER MEFEAR
fREE B BREX 10 L
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER TR FTERx TER

At 31 March 2019 7201943 H31H

Trade payables E 5N FE 14,710 14,710 14,710 =
Accruals, deposits and  fEETE - 8%

other payables K EH i fE A~ 2018 30,069 30,069 30,069 -
Bank borrowings RITE R 9,364 9,620 9,620 -

54,143 54,399 54,399 -
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)  30. &1 7% & k& & 2 (&)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) REBE SRR @
Total
contractual Within one
Carrying  undiscounted year or on More than
amount amount demand one year
A4
REERFRIE P FAK
FREE L] RER 16N E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FET FHET

At 31 March 2018 R201853HA31H

Trade payables B 5 e IR 12,790 12,790 12,790 —
Accruals, deposits and  FEETE B - 8 &

other payables K E At & 5 5RIB 30,495 30,495 30,495 -
Bank borrowings BITHER 17,533 18,184 18,184 -

60,818 61,469 61,469 =




(c)

(d)
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For the year ended 31 March 2019  #{ Z20194 3 831 H IE F &

Liquidity risk (continued)

Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the
directors of the Company considered it is unlikely that the
banks will exercise its discretion to demand immediate
repayment. The directors of the Company considered that
the bank loans will be repaid in accordance with the
scheduled payment dates set out in the loan agreements
which are summarised in the table below:

Total contractual
Carrying  undiscounted
amount amount
G
RERANE
HREE B
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TET
At 31 March 2019 7420194
3A31H 9,364 10,003
At 31 March 2018 420184
3AS81H 17,533 18,822

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from variable rate bank
balances and bank borrowings. Exposure to interest rate risk
exists on those balances subject to floating interest rate when
there are unexpected adverse interest rate movements. The
Group’s policy is to manage its interest rate risk, working
within an agreed framework, to ensure that there are no
unduly exposures to significant interest rate movements and
rates are approximately fixed when necessary.

A reasonable change in interest rates in the next twelve
months is assessed to result in insignificant changes in the
Group’s profit for the year and retained profits.

(c)

MEE £ R

ZRIRNEENTBMRA AR
RIEERRE RIT TP ANARENIE
ERUMER AR AEFR
A RITERERE TR
B B K P At SR B HA(E
=

More than More than

Less than one year two years
one year or but less than but less than More than
on demand two years five years five years

—ERs, —-FU0LE WEHULE
REX PRME SPREE EENLE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
2,549 1,624 4,873 957
9,750 1,624 4,873 2,575

(d) #=JE

& B B A KR R 2R B RIF B A
R BHRITERRRITER -
fief HE 3R A TRORI 6 B T R R B
B AIMEEREAEFENZS
ERPNFHNERNEER - AKE
MEBRREERBEERANEEL
MEREE - ABRDREAHNEK
FPR LRI ESER  IHE
TEREBEEMONE-

RIS i S LIRS
BB HEEHAREERF R
HRRRE R RE R RS -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019  #{ £201943 831 H It F &

(d)

(e)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for bank borrowings at the end
of the year. The analysis is prepared assuming amounts of
these financial instruments outstanding at the end of the year
were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points
increase or decrease in the prevailing rates of relevant banks
is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

If the interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower for
variables rate bank borrowings, with all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year would
decrease/increase by approximately HK$39,000 (2018:
HK$73,000).

No sensitivity analysis of bank balances of the Group is
presented as all balances carry interest rate below 0.1%.

Fair value risk

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the Group’s financial statements
approximate to their fair values.

(d)

(e)

F = 3 K @)

BRE DN

Tﬂ@iﬁfé’\ﬁﬁgﬁ/\iﬂiﬁ'\]ﬁﬁ
TEROMERBRETE 22
Bﬁ"“ﬁi*r‘]?ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ’hx—ri
BTAZHREREZFAHKEE
MEE -MEEBEEABRIZ
A1) 2 = b B BB AH B SR 1T 3R 1T
A A _EF sl FREE01EE 2 - 45
EREEHMENIEAEAEE
Fr 5 H BRI &T A o

HRITERNFSHAR EF T
RO A S M HE M A & =R
BAE AAREBFANKRTE
w8 R 18 hn 49.39,0005% T
(20184 : 73,0007 7T ) °

B R AT B R1T 4 R 9 1R B R 0.1%
MF RS BEEZIAEHE
RITHEREOBRE DT o

ATEAR

ARBEERR AEEMBER
RAREBHKAERENERE
ENEBAEMNERERZEAYF
BERE
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Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

At 1 April 2017

Changes from financing cash flows:
Proceeds from bank borrowings
Repayment of bank borrowings

Total changes from financing cash flows

At 31 March 2018

Changes from financing cash flows:
Proceeds from bank borrowings
Repayment of bank borrowings

Total changes from financing cash flows

At 31 March 2019

M2017FE4H1H

RERCREES:
RITE KGR
BERITHER

M2018563A31H

MEREREZD
RITE S5 FR
BEBITHER

?énr‘

EReRELHER

R2019563A31H

RELTHELENARL

B ¥R

Bank
borrowings
8 17 18 =
(note 19)
(Mt 5E19)
HK$’000
FHET

39,643

246,865
(268,975)

(22,110)

17,533

3,647
(11,816)

(8,169)

9,364
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2018
20184
Notes HK$’'000
B 5 FET
Non-current asset I REBEE
Interests in subsidiaries R B AR Z s B - —
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments SRR 262 113
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE UL BT B A Rl R IE 56,396 46,716
Cash and cash equivalents BHe RIBEEEY 9,886 17,798
66,544 64,627
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals, deposits and other payables EErER e REME
28 201 210
201 210
Net current assets and net assets REEEFERTBEE 66,343 64,417
EQUITY EE
Share capital N 22 6,000 6,000
Reserves ER 23 60,343 58,417
Total equity B 66,343 64,417
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 EEEE2N2019F5828H #/# &
May 2019 and signed on its behalf by: RETZBTHAATRERRESE
Ng Sing Mui Sze Tan Nei
REME iR
Director Director

EZE EF



Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
Name of subsidiary operation

AR

i) NCIECR R
Directly held:
EEREH:
Winson Group Hong BVI

Kong Limited
KIBEEBEEEER RBREXES

AT

Indirectly held:
BEEE:

Winson Cleaning
Service Company
Limited

K BB 2 AR % A PR
/N EJ

AN

Hong Kong (“HK”)

BE(&EE]

Winson Professional HK
Pest Control
Company Limited

BEHE X B ER
NGT)

Wealthy Strong
Investment Limited

BERIREARLRA BB

None of the subsidiaries of the Company had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of or any time during the reporting periods.

Issued ordinary

Annual Report 2019 20195 F#k
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For the year ended 31 March 2019  #{ Z20194 3 831 H IE F &

MEBARFBENT :

Equity interest owned
by the Company

share capital At 31 March Principal activities
ERITEER ZFA2Q8MN3A31AH
[ BEHRE FEXK
%
2018
20184
US$H 100 100 Investment holding
137 KEZER
HK$6,000,000 100 100 Provisions of environmental
hygiene, airline catering
support and related services
6,000,000 % 7T RMUBRBHE MEERX
& & 18 B AR 75
HK$8,275,000 100 100 Provisions of pest
management services
8,275,000/ 7T RHUEREERS
HK$6,652,026 100 100 Property holding

6,652,026 JT MEFEHR
ERRQRWE QR RHE AR
) T fa] B RS 28 5 (T () 18 R B B E S 3B
;ﬂ%o
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Financial Summary

I HE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for B R BERGE A KR E R AR 7R
the five years ended 31 March 2019, as extracted from the audited 201742 RA28H FIBRMWEBR =R A E
consolidated financial statements and the prospectus dated 28 February  #; 2201943 31 H I+ F f £ E &9 2 45 A
2017 issued by the Company is set out below. The summary does not KEERBEHEHI O T - FHEIW ~E

form part of the audited financial statements. RS EZM B mEE — 25 o
2018 2017 2016 2015
20184 20174 20164 20154

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TET TET TET

Results E
Revenue Wy 25 537,324 508,106 467,513 449,758 369,212
Profit for the year F N m Al 20,842 21,804 8,679 18,814 14,331

Assets and liabilites ZBERE&E

Total assets BB E 191,686 186,099 195,416 139,366 128,356
Total liabilities BERTE 67,495 72,659 103,796 110,610 118,414

e

Total equity P 4R 124,191 113,440 91,620 28,756 9,942
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